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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property
investment Trust pic is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing

in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investment
property located in the UK.

INTRODUCTION

TR Property Investment Trust plc (the “Company” or the
"Trust™) was formed in 1905 and has been a dedicaled
property mvestor since 1982. The Company Is an
tnvestment Trust and 1ts shares are premium listed on the
London Stock Exchange,

BENCHMARK

The benchmark 15 the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling.

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company seeks to achieve its ohjective by investing in
shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses on an internatronal basis, although,
with a Pan-European benchmark, the majenty of the
investments will be located in that geographical area The
Company also invests in investment properly located in
the UK only.

Further detalls of the Investment Pokicies, the Asset
Allacation Guigelines and policies regarding the use of
gearing are sel out in the Strategic Report on page 25 and
the entire portfolio 1s shewn on page 18

INVESTMENT MANAGER

BMO Investment Business Limited acts as the Company’s
alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM™) with
portfolio management delegaled to Thames River Capital
LLP (“the Portfolio Manager” or “the Manager”). Marcus
Phayre-Mudge has managed the portfolic since 1 April
2011 and been part of the Fund Management team since
1597

INDEPENDENT BOARD

The Directors are all independent of the Manager and
meet regularly to consider investment strategy, to monitor
adherence to the stated objective and investment policies
and to review performance. Details of how the Board
aperates and fulfils its responsibilities are sel out in the
Report of the Directors on page 47

PERFORMANCE

The Financial Highlights for the current year are set out
opposite and Historical Performance can be found on
page 3. Key Performance Indicalors are set out (n the
Strateqic Report on pages 26 and 27

RETAIL INVESTORS ADVISED BY IFAS

The Company currently conducts 11§ affairs so that its
shares can be recommended by iIndependent Financial
Advisers (“IFAS”) in the UK to ordinary retail investors in
accordance with the Financial Conduct Authonty ("FCA")
rules in relation to nan-mainstream investment products
and intends to continue to do so. The shares are excluded
from the FCA's restrictions, which apply 1o non-mainstream
Investment products, because they are shates in an
authorised investment tiust

FURTHER INFORMATION

General shareholder information and details of how to
invest 1n TR Property Investment Trust plc, including an
investment through an ISA or saving scheme, can be
found on pages 111 and 112 Thes information can also be
found on the Trust's website www trproperty.com

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Financial Highlights and Performance

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
200 2020 Change
Balance Sheet
Net asset value per share 417.97p 358.11p +16.7%
Shareholders’ funds (£'000) 1,326,433 1,136,453 +16.7%
Shares in issue at the end of the year {m) 317.4 374 +0.0%
Net debt's - 16.5% 7.6%
Share Price
share price 392.50p 317.50p +23.6%
Market capitalisation £1,246m £1,008m +23.6%
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020 Change
Revenue
Revenue earnings per share 12.25p 14.62p -16.2%
Dividends?
Interim dividend per share 5.20p 5.20p +0.0%
Final dividend per share 9.00p £.80p +2.3%
Total dividend per share 14.20p 14.00p +1.4%
Performance: Assets and Benchmark
Net Asset Value total return®s +20.7% “N.5%
Benchmark total return® +15.9% -14.0%
Share price total returns ) +28.3% -16.8%
ongoing Charges™*
Including performance fee +1.40% +0.80%
Excluding performance fee +0.65% +0.61%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs +0.63% +0.59%

1. Net debt is the total velue of loan notes, loans (including notienal exposure to CFDs and Total Return Swap) less cash as a proportion of net asset value.

2 Dividends per share are the dividends in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2023. An interim dividend of 5.20p was paid in january 2021. A final dividend of
S.00p (2020: 8.80p) will be paid on 4 August 2021 to shareholders on the register on 18 june 2021.

The shares will be quoted ex-dividend on 17 June 2023

3. The NAV Total Return for the year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed
10 be reinvested on the ex-dividend date as this is the protocol used by the Company’s benchmark and other indices.

4. The Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.

5. Ongaing Charges are calculated in accordance with the AIC methodology. The Ongoing Charges eatios provided in the Company’s Key Information Document are
calculated in line with the PRIIPS regulation which is different to the AIC methodology.

6. Considered to be an Altemative Performance Measure as defined on page 98.

2 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Historical Performance
For the years ended 31 March

2011 2002 2013 2014 2005 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 m

Performance for the year:

Total Return (%)

NAVY 15.4 -85 21.5 24 28.3 8.2 8.0 15.5 91 -1.5 207
Benchmark®™ 152 89 18 149 23 54 65 102 56 40 159
Share Price® 126 -95 25.8 377 295 -1.6 9.1 255 6.2 -16.8 7”28.37
Shareholders’ funds (£'m)

Total 670 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326
Ordinary shares 53 470 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328 1136 1,326
Sigma shares® 139 18 - - - - - - - - -
Ordinary shares

Net revenue {pence per shaie)

Earnings 6.94 707 6.74 8.049 8.89 8.36 11.38 13.22 14.58 14.62 12.25
Dividends® 600 660 700 745 770 835 1050 1220 1350 1400 1420

NAV per share (pence) 20710 18360 21525 25494 31812 335.56 35242 39564 41854 35BN 41797

Share price {pence) 17710 15450 18630 24750  310.50 29750 314.50 38250 3940G¢ 31750 392 &
indices of growth

Share price® 100 87 105 140 175 168 178 216 22 179 222
Net Asset Value®® 100 89 104 123 154 162 170 191 202 173 202
Dividend Net® 100 116 17 124 128 139 175 203 225 233 237
RPt 100 104 107 110 1 12 16 120 123 126 128
Benchmmark® 100 87 99 105 126 130 134 144 147 123 140

Figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

{A) The NAV Tota} Return for each year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are
deemed to be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the protocol used by the Company’s benchmark and other indices. This is considered 1o be an Alternative
Performance Measure as defined on page 98.

{8) Benchmark Index: composite index comprising the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR Index up to March 2013, and thereaftes the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Index. Source: Thames River Capital.

{C) The Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shaies of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.
{0} The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012

() Dividends per share in the year to which their declaration refates and not the year they were paid.

{F) Share prices only. These do not reflect dividends paid.

(G) Capital only values. These do not reflect dividends paid.

{H)} Price anly value of the Indices set out in (B) above.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 3
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Chairman’s Statement

\ N

David Watson
Chairman

Whilst underlying earnings were initially
impacted by the pandemic, the message
from the vast majority of our invested
companies, which largely excludes
owners of retail property, has been a
considered and strong resumption in
dividends.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

INTRODUCTION

The start of this reporting penod was very close to the
recent COVID-19 influenced nadir of global equity markets
In March 2020. Since then equity markets have been
determinedly focused on he future rather than reflecting
on the more immediate ecenomic data and human
tragedy of the pandemic. As a result, I'm able to report
healthy returns for the year with a nel asset value ("NAV")
total return of 20.7%, well ahead of the benchmark lotal
return of 15 9%, The share price total return was even
stronger at 28.3% as the discount narrowed over (he year.

Stack markets have taken great comfort from the huge
amount of central bank stimulus and state ad for both
corporates and individuals Stce November 2020, this
sense of suppart has been augmented by optirmism
following the announcements and subsequent rollout of a
range of vaccine programmes.

The cisis has forced a dramalic change in the way we work,
consume and relax, Over the last year our management team
has pondered not only the pace of these changes acrass a
wide range of properly sectors but alse therr sustainability
once the world reverts to “the new normal”

Over the last quarter of the financial year under review
and into the start of the new cne, we have seen very
dramatic share price movements as investors rotated
from companies offening the safety of secure income
towards those offering grealer nsk, particularty where the
companes were {iading at large discounts o thei asset
value Your manager’s report will examine in more detail
how the portfalio structure has evoived through these
thematic rotations



REVENUE RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Earnings for the year were 12.25p per share, 16% lower
than the prior year earnings of 14.62p.

The headline earnings per share ligure 15 slightly deceptive,
earnings before tax were 24% lower than the previous year,
but a significant tax refund and some further prior penod
withholding tax recovenies reduced the revenue lax charge
fram an effective rate of 11.3% in 2020 to just 19% for the
financial year to March 2021 Further details of Lhis are set
aut 1n the Manager’s Report.

The Board has announced a final dividend of 200p per
share, bringing the full year dividend to 14.20p per share
{2020 14.00p) an overali increase of 14% on the prior year
dividend The Board 15 conscious of the income aspirations
ol some of our investor base and, although this dividend
15 not fully covered, the Company has significant revenue
reserves available. As long as the Boaid has a reasonable
expectation of income returning to previous levels in the
medium term, lhe Board 1s happy {o maintain a modest
level of dividend progression.

REVENUE QUTLOOK

wilhin our portfoiio, the manager anticipates income

[or the year to March 2022 to be split into three broadly
equal parts with one third suffering a reduction and in
some ¢ases significant cuts or even suspensions, 3 third
with income returning (o pre-pandemic levels, and the
balance offering some leve) of increase. We do not exped!
total income levels to return to pre-COVID-19 levels within
the current tinanaial year although we do expect an
improvement relative 1o 2020/21.

After allowing for the proposed dividend, revenue reserves
will stlll amount to 12.18p per share giving plenty of
capacity for the board to supplement the dividend again

in 2021/22, praviding a return to pre-Cowid levels can
reasonably be anticipated in the medium term.

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

200 [ Benchmark Total Return [l TR Property Share Price Total Return 5, TR Property Net Asset Value Total Retumn

Mar-10 Mar-11 Mar-12 Mar.13 Mar-14 Mar-15

Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21
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AWARDS

The Trust was the winner in the Specialist Equities
category of the Citywire Investment Trust Awards. This is
particularly pleasing as we were in competition with Trusts
spedialising in a broad range of equities and alternatives.

CITYWIRE

- WINNER

| INVESTMENT YRUSY 1070
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Manager’s Report

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

Capital is clearly seeking real assets.
There has been several recent instances
of private equity acquifing listed
properties companies. This will continue
if public companies are undervalued.
Such market dynamics provides us with
a strong valuation underpin.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

PERFORMANCE

The Net Asset Value total return for the year to 31 March
2021 was 20 7%, ahead of the benchmark total return of
15 9%. Al the intenim stage, | reported that Continental
Curgpean property companies had significantly
outperformed their UK counterparts (returns of 11.3% v
2.1%). The second half saw the complete reverse. The UK's
pertermance 1n the second half was so strong that the

12 month performance of 191% (in GBP) cutperformed
Continental Europe at 18 7% {in EUR).

The initial impact of the pandemic on Eurcpean real eslate
equitles saw the benchmark fall 36% from the pre-Cowvid
peak of 19th Febiuary to the trough on 18 March 2020, Our
financial vear therefore starled close (o these depressed
levels and the steady recovery since then is reflected in
the healthy figures for the year under review. However it
15 warth noting that collectively the sector remains nearly
15% below the pre-Cavid peak

This extracrdinaiy year has clearly been ke no other and

the quif in pefformance of the different real estate sectors
{and therr respeclive listed companies) requires the same

adjective. The year can be neatly divided into pre and post
the vaccine announcement.

From March to October investors focused on owning
sustanable, pandemic proof income such as residential,
supermarkels and healthcare alongside loaistics,
warehousing and industnal where the underlying tenants’
businesses had remained apen and in many cases

were hnving, Consumer facing sectors such as retail,
restaurants, hotel and leisure were shunned. we divide our
universe of pan European real estate companies Into 26
bespoke groups and aver the 7 months from the trough on
18th March 2020 our logistics / industriai group returned
~54% , German residential ~60%, healthcare «<36% whilst
UK retail fell 45% and Eurapean retail returned just 1%,
London retail also suffered falling 26% as tounsm levels
{both domestic and internatignal) coilapsed

However, from November anwards we saw a complete
volte face as investors focused on the possibility of

a normalising econermic outlook post the vacane
breakihrough. in our world that meant buying back into
the consumer facing sectors Stocks exposed to these



sectors had been standing at large discounts given the
market's expectation of {yrther asset value declines and
they enjoyed significant price recovery. Stocks such as
Hammerson and Shaftesbury, whe had bolh carned out
emergency capital raises {mare cn this later), enjoyed
100% and 85% price appreciation from therr respective
(pre-vaccine announcement) capital raise prices.

The Trust was defensively positioned as we entered the
pandemic with overweights to European PRS {private
rented sector) particularly in Germany, supermarkets

(UK and Nordics), heallthcare (mainly UK) and logistics /
industrial across both the UK and Europe. These expesures
drove much of the relative cutperformance from March to
November

tondon exposed stocks suffered particularly as office
warkers have not returned {we estimate office utilisation
rates at €25% versus a Lontinental average of over 50%)
and this combined with the collapse in leunism {both
domestic and international} has temporanly hollowed out
our global aty, Our UK office exposure was concentrated
in decentralised offices through Cis and McKay whifst

we avoided London retall focused names such as Capco
and Shaftesbury as well as those businesses wilh short
occupational leases such as Workspace.

As the Telief / reopening / reflation” trade gathered
momentum, | closed our underwelght exposure to
European shopping centres, bought back into some Ceatral
London retail and renewed our exposure to office markets
particularly those cilies with the shorter commute times.
Essentiaily | was sull shying away from the fargest twe
cenurbations {Lendan and Paris} whilst adding to smaller
ones such as Madrd and Dublin and maintaining exposure
to decentralised office sectors in the UK, Sweden and
Germany.

The pandemic has turned much ‘on its head” and 1n cur
coinef of the equity market it was the performance of
Swiss property companies which was much weaker than
history would have predicled Traditionally a safe haven,
these stocks did not inttially recover from the March lows
with investors focused on the problematic retail exposure
of the largest listed companies We continue to be
underweight the group.
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Another positive surprise has been in self-storage which
reported very steady numbers through the worst of the
year Whilst our stock selection in the UK was correct
{Safestore total return +27% versus Big Yellow +14%), the
runaway success was Shurguard, the Continental player
returning +48%, which we didn't own. In our defence, the
stock enjoyed strong demand from index Lrackers as it
entered various benchmarks midyear

Most of 2020 was an understandably subdued

period for M&A corporate activity with one particular
exception, Norwegian offices. Entra (where we were 3
top 20 shareholder) was the subject of a bidding war
between two Swedish listed players, Castellum and
Samhallsbyggnadsbolaget (also known as S8B). Whilst
nelther successfully gained control, the share price total
return was 57%, our most successful nvestment in the
periad.

The portfolio has some geanng. This was reduced In
February and March 2020 but has subsequently returned
to pre-pandemic levels Why have gearing in volatile
times? The Trust continues to take advantage of its

closed ended structure and holds a number of illiquid
small cap stocks. These well-run ccmpanies (even when
exposed to outperforming subsectors) often suffer from
hrrted investor attention, being deemed too small. As a
consequence, In fsing markets they often underperform
their larger brethren {in market parlance their ‘bela’ is less
than one). Adding some geanng helps compensate for
these lower bela names. Our experience is thal over time
the underlying property fundamentals wiil be recognised
and, it not, then the market will take them private or
merge them together Oui physical property exposure also
sits outside our benchmark and addiional gearing ensures
that we are not underexposed to equilies versus our
benchmark given that a propartion of capital is invested in
physical praperty

OFFICES

Of all the segments of the commercial real estate
landscape, the fulure demand far offices remains Lhe
hardest to forecast. The twa undeniable consequences of
the pandemic, for this asset class, has been the realisation
that employees of corporates of all sizes can work
remately (for long penods) if required and secondly that

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 9@
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Manaqger’s Report tcrnoec

the next generation of 'best in class’ office accommodation
wilf be utilised very differently with tenants having new
prionties. Built into these demands will be the overarching
need far energy efficiency, carbon neutrality and
sustaiability through the Iife cycle of the bullding

The take up figures for the last year (acrass the 15 major
cilies we monitor) offers littte comparative value given the
inabiity for businesses te physically relocate in many of
these markels from march 2020, Taking London as a case
in point, Savills reported that west End take up fell from
4.4m sq ftin 2019 to 17m 0 2020. Office uhlisation rales
through 2020 and into 2021 have varied hugely. A broad
rule of thumb was that the larger the city (and the longer
the average commute tme) the lower the office utiisation
rate. Generally the srnaller cities also had higher levels of
commuting by prvate transpact a1 where warkers were
using overground public transport Scandinavian and Swiss
cities have seen almost normahsed utilisation rates whilst
London and Paris remain sub 30% Looking forward, what
IS impartant to us 1s the amount of new space which was
scheduled to complete (construction was halted for very
short peniods 1in most marketsy arnd whether there are
signs of demand as we move into the post vaccine penod.

Looking across Europe as & whole, the combined effect of
reduced leasing activity and construction comptetians led
to 100bps Increase in vacancy 1o an average of 6.9% (BNP
data). This single statisnic clearly mdes 2 wide range of
tevels. Unsurpnsingly, London and Panis have experienced
the greatest increases from 5% to nearly 8% but Dubhn
caliects the wooden spocn with vacancy ncredsing to
over 9%. This 15 3 good example of a small market where
a (lemporary) demand strike meets a number of large
completions and refurbishments. However the histonically
low levels of vacancy in many cities prior Lo the pandemic
have insulated most markets, with modest downward
movements In prime remts recorded across the German
Big &, Milan, Madnd, Oslo, Amsterdam and Stockholm

The delivery of new office bulldings has also been
deferred. particularly for tall bulldings The hew tondon
Architecture’s annual Tall Bulldings Survey recorded

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

a 27% dechine in planning applications for buildings

gver 20 storeys in 2020 when compared with 2019 we
were suiprised that the fall wasn't larger but 73% of all
applications were in the latter part of the year and hints at
developer confidence reqarding demand for new build

Investment demand has remained very resilient almost
regardless of shorl-term weakness in occupational
markets. The welght of capital seeking real assets s

a theme which will recur through this report. The nse

in the long end of the curve as the reflation theme
gathers momentum is proving very damaging lor fixed
income structures. High quahity offices - offenng large lot
sizes - with secure incorme dehvenng 3.5-4% net yield

I attractive versus negative yielding sovereign bonds.
Further up the risk curve, opportunistic capital also remains
very active and listed develapment specialists such as
Great Portland Estates and Derwent London have found it
hard to deploy capital amidst flerce competition.

The 2021 (BRE EMEA Investor Intentions Survey highhghts
London as still the most attractive aity for investment

10 Eurepe with an estimated €40-45bn of global equaity
looking to be deployed into the market across all types
of buldings This is the highest figure since the survey
starting tacking demand in 2012 Whilst trapsaction
volumes slowed last year, the first two months of 2021
{traditionally a quiet time) have seen volumes reach
£875m gieater than the same period 1n 2019. Patt of the
London attraction is that yields didn't compress during
the Brext uncertainty making the aty loock much cheaper
than other big European ciies Post the EU-UK Trade and
Coaperalion Agreement we expect this gap to narrow.

RETAIL

The #SC1 / IPD data for the 12 months to March 2021 saw
ali retail property capital values fall 12.8% with & senous
acceleration in the decline of shopping centre values
which fell 25 5% over the 1ast 12 months In the intenims,

| comimented that we felt the valuation community were
behind the imes due to their requirement to look at deal
evidence Essentially, in fast moving markelts the pubiished
fiqures wili already be out of date Stock markets know



this and retail landlords across the globe have been
trading a1 very large discounts to their (no longer valid)
last published figures.

The woes of retail are well understood. The pandemic
has accelerated trends which were well established.
Reopening of economies will see footfall relurn to
shopping centres but the levels of sustanable rents
remain the subject of market forces. In the UK the loss

of a huge number of well known brands either through
bankruptcy or retreat has resulted in average vacancy
levels in shopping centres reaching over 15% {MSCl data}.

This means the negaotiation boet remains firmly on the
tenants’ foot and we predict a further 15% falls in rental
values. The one area where there are clear signs of price
stabilisation is in relail warehousing. Open air with plenty
of free parking, this type of retail asset sits well in an
omni-channel environment where retaller margins are
maximised through chek and collect. Affordability 1s the
eternal watchword and whilst there are some parks with
very high rents (often fashion retailer fed) the majority wall
see modest declines in rental values. Occupancy cost ratios
are aiso not burdened by escalaling sefvice charges.

Across Europe, the piclure is more nuanced Valuers are
even more conservative than their UK counterparts and
capitalisation rates are yel to move malerially. In sorme
countries, retallers have been given huge amounts of
government support and as 3 result rental delinquency

1s generally lower than in the UK. In addition, many
shopping centres are anchored by hypermarkets (which
have rematned cpen) and not department stores (3 UK/
US concept no longer fit for purpase beyond a handful

of tounist destinations such as Selfridges and Galeries
Lalayelle). There have been lower levels of retailer
bankruptcy across Continental Europe and we put

this down to two lactors: less overrenting and the UK
Insolvency legislation. On this latter paint, a huge number
of UK retatlers have taken advantage of the CVA {company
voluntary administratien) to force landlords {generally a
large creditor) to accept corporate reconstructions which
unduly damage their interests. A recent High Court ruling
involving Lthe overly indebted retailer New Lock, reinfarced
this tenant fnendly legislation
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investors remain very arcumspect towards this asset class
Income nsecurity has resulted ininvestors requinng much
higher initial yields. CBRE estimate that UK prime shopping
centre yields have moved from 4 5% to 7% in the last

5 years with poorer secondary schemes in the high teens
or literally unsaleable Retail warehousing has bucked the
depressing trend at least from an investor perspective
Investors are increasingly confident that they are able

lo measure tenant affordabtlity and this is the key lo
determining pricing. In the last couple of menlhs we have
seen compelitive bidding for @ number of retall warehouse
schemes, something not seen since 2018

DISTRIBUTION AND INDUSTRIAL

UK Industnial and iogistics take up it & record 537m sq {t

in 2020 whilst the pandemic suppressed demand in many
other parts of the property market, it clearly stimulated
logistics and business activity which utilised industrial
property. Amazon again accounted for a sizeable (20%)
portion of the aclivily and it was this XL segment (250,000 «
5q f1) which was the major beneficiary of the surging online
demand. The online share of retall sales rose from 19.2% in
2015 to 279% In 2020 hitting a new high of 36.3% in january
2021 as we returned to lockdown. This will scale back as we
regpen but the boost to online scale and efficiency is here to
stay. Supply has responded but has been more than matched
by this demand. As a consequence, supply has fallen to
73.4m sq ft, down 6% cn the year, and this tightening has
occurred 1n every size bracket

Rental growth continues to march on but there has been
a broadening of growth rates across the regions. Greater
London and the East Midlands recorded growth of over
7% whilst average rates across the country at 3 9%. Such
slrong rental growth, the secure Incame and the pesitive
outlock has driven both domestic and international buyers
to pay record prices for this sector whether it is last mile
urban writs, XL big boxes or terraces of well located
industrial units. Pnime yields are 3.5 to 4% and even short
incomne is not deternng investors as evidenced by the sale
of our Bristol distribution unit at 4.5% nival yietd with

3.5 years unexpired

The same piclure of rude heatth is evident across
Continental Europe. According to BNP take up incieased

TR PRCPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 11
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14% acrass the 6 largest European economies and vacancy
rates dropped to 5.5%, Lherr lowest and all against a
backdrop ol a sharp contraction in GDP. Again It was a
surge in e-commerce and home delvery which drove
demand. Prime yields across Europe tightened 25bps in
2020, matching the UK wilh no signs of decompression
even as the long end of the curve rises. Investment
demand is truly global with US and Asian institutional
capital compeling with more domestic lang term capital
all determined to participate in this stiuclural shift.

RESIDENTIAL

As expected the sector has remained highly resilient
duning the pandemic The majonty of our investments are
in German and Swedish housing where rents are subject
1o state control. The remaining exposure 15 Finland and the
UK where rents are open-market. The former offer greater
security with rents tied to indexation whlst the latter
offers more oppoctunity to capture market growth but
with the commensurale risk if vacancy nses and market
rents fall Duning the casis, the securily of income and very
high occupancy levels resulted in the sector retaining its
popuianty. German housing has experienced price rises in
virtually all its sub-markets

As explained earlier, Berlin remained the outher

as the State of Berlin imposed a 5 year rent freeze
(Mietendecket). The subsequent Constitutional Court ruling,
which confirmed that rent contrals are determined at the
Federal, not Stale level, came just after the year end in
mid-April We are pleased with this outcome and the share
prices of both Deutsche Wohnen {4 4% of net assets) and
Phoenix Spree (2.5% of net assels) responded positively
News construction of apartments in Berlin had al} but diied
up as developers awatted the outcome of the appeal
Barhin remains the cheapest capital oty in western Europe
In which to rent an apartment {if you can find one) The
desire of a left-wing local authonty to keep it that way
regardless of the side effect of shutung out new migrants
through the consegquential collapse in the supply of new
homes has been suitably rebuffed

ALTERNATIVES

This group encompasses sectors that have thrived
(supermarkets, healthcare, sell-starage) in the crisis and

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

those which have not (student accommaodation, hotels).
Share prce performance was an amplified reflection of
not anly the underlying property performance but also
the dramatic shift in investor sentiment Self storage
share prices have traditionally performed poorly in
slowing economic conditions as the income 1s considered
short term and volatile. However the pandernic has
focused investors’ minds on the emerging strength of
this secter where a small group of operators (mastly
Iisted companies} have the financial muscle to deminate
the price comparisan websites. Another emerqing trend
has been the increasing business usage of a product
traditionally seen as the domain of private customers.
Businesses have seen the merits of immediate, hassle free
access to short or longer term storage. The supply chan
disruption during the pandemic heightened the need for
space as lhe mantra became ‘3 hittle more just in case and
a ittle fess just 1in time’ Our self storage group returned
+46% from the low point (18th March 2020) to the end
of Oclober However, from November 2020 to the end of
March 2021 they have collectively returned just +4.1%,

A classic example of a switch in sentiment as investors
rotated away from the Covid relative winners” group into
the value names which had underperformed and looked
very cheap on historic metnics.

In another ‘alternatives’ sub-sector we expernenced the
complete reverse. Student accommodation businesses
suffered a collapse 10 income and Unite (our only
exposure) led the field in refunding rents which was the
correct PR strategy but depleted their lop ine The well
documented difficulties for students through the iast
two academic years and the complete mability for many
overseas students to enroll physically impacted investor
sentiment with the sub-sector falling 46% between 15th
February and 18th March 2020 and then staging a weak
recovery of just +17% from then to the end of October
Whilst this performance compares poarly with self storage,
smnce Lhe beqinming of November the sub-seclor has
rallied 30% as the likehhood of the reopening of tertiary
education improved.

Supermarkets have continued to attract investos
attention. Our exposure 1s through Supermarket Income
REIT (UK} and Cibus {Sweden and finland) Supermarket



Incarme REIT raised a lotal of £490m in three separate
transactions through the year and now has a markel

cap of over £900m. Cibus also raised capital (SEK

900m) in two tranches to make further acquisitions. The
larger supermarket operators have been able to attract
customers through their online network which the hard
discounters (Lidl, Aldi) are not atle to offer. Yolumes

and margins will normalise post the pandemic but these
operators have had the opportunity (o prove the resilience
of their omni-channel madel which wtilises [ast mile
distnibution from their network af stares. It is one of the
few parts of the relail landscape where physical stores are
truly integral to the online journey.

DEBT AND EQUITY MARKETS

Property companies remained busy on debt refinancings
throughout the pandemic and the huge ameunt of central
bank support and government stimulus ensured a healthy,
liquid market where pricng did not weaken. Accarding to
EPRA, €15.2bn was raised in 2079 at an average coupen of
1.8% and 2020 saw €15.6hn at a cost of 16%. These figures
are not direclly comparable as the mix of debt offenngs in
each period was different but they are a clear indicator as lo
the health and price stability in the debt markets German
residential companies were again busy with Vonovia raising
€2.5bn in {our transactions berrowing 10-year money at 1%
Later in October, Gecina, Europe’s largest office REIT raised
€200m in a 2034 term bond at 0.86%.

Early in the crisis, we saw a number of strong businesses
trading at premiums raise equity capital for opportunistic
expansion. This was in sectors with clear underlying
demand, namely healthcare (Assura, Aedifica, Pnmary
Health Properties), sell-starage (Big Yellow), logistics/
industrial {LondonMetnc, Segro, VGP ), supermarkets
(Supermarket Income REIT, Gibus) and German residential
(Vonowvia, ADO Properties, LEG) The Aulumn saw
opporlunistic faises 1n Sweden and Norway (Balder,
Klovern and Norwegian Properties) a region which had
expenenced low levels of lockdown restrictions. More
recently 1n February and March this year we saw renewed
activity in the UK, as the vacdne rollout improved
seniment, with raises from Targel Healthcare, LXI, Tritax
Eurobox and Supermarket Income REIT again. Continental
European raises in 2021 have so far been confined to

healthcare (Cofimmmao) and student accemmaodation (Xior).
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Post the summer we saw the beginning of an expected
surge of more defensive raises as companies finally
came under cashflow and valugtion pressure. in the end
It was just a handful of retall focused names whao had
been mismanaging therr balarce sheets long before

the pandemic Hammerson's £600m raise effeclively
recapitalised the balance sheet with a 24 for 1 nights issue
accompanied by the {previously announced) departure of
the CEG completing the overdue C-suite shuffle of Chair,
(ED and CFQ. in late Cctober, Shaftesbury anncunced a
£300m placing and open offer. Looking back their timing
was spectacularly unfortunate as the announcement of the
first vaccines came less than a fortmight later,

These game changing announcements immediately
allered expectations and there 1s nowhere beller to
Illustrate the paint than the corporate saga at Unibail-
Rodamico-Westfield {(URW) URW had announced a €9bn
‘Reset’ plan comprising €3.5bn capital raise, dividend
cancellation and a planned €4bn of disposals. A group

of activist shareholders lead by Leon Bressler (the CEQ

of Unibail from 1992 to 2006} launched a campaign to
oppose these AGM proposals and launch an alternative
strateqgy which dig notinclude a deeply discounted capital
raise. They proposed the sale of the US (ex Westfield)
portfolio and a return lo their rocts as an owner of

prime European shopping centres. Their timing was
fortunate, with the 10th November AGM coming just
after the vaccine announcement and the improvement in
investor sentiment even for deeply indebted businesses.
Essentially convinging investors that they didn’t need

to put ‘good money after bad’ and that the self help
strategy would succeed. They were successful in their
campaign and shareholders voted against the ‘Reset’
plan. This led Lo the departure of the Chairman, CEO

and CFO and the promation of existing seniof managers
(o the Board. The share price, which had troughed at
€35 per share, subsequently doubled amidst the closing
of short positions This corporate t3le neally encapsulates
the dramatic change In investor sentiment {and prcng
ol previously unloved businesses) which we saw from
November onwards

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - PROPERTY SHARES

Turngver (purchases and sales divided by twao) lotalled
£468m equating to 36% of the average nel assets over
the percd. This was broadly in line with last year’s

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 13
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We increased the capacity on our 1€8C loan fadinty dunng
the year and the remaining loans were renewed at
existing levels. we did see small increases on margins
gn some renewals. We also looked at the potential to
lake out new ar extend our longer-lerm debt. Our Furo
denominated loan note s due for repaymment in 2026 and
the Sterling note in 2031, however the flexibility of the
short- term facilities is valuable in mare volatile markets
and has certainly worked well for us in the current year

We continue to explore new options in ali markets.

QUTLOOK

As economies emerge from the grip of the pandemic,
investors have focesed on assessing whether the damage
{or growth) was temporary, longer lasting of permanent.
Real estate investors are no exceplion and the range

of preriums / discounis to net asset values of listed
companies highlights the breadth of expectations across
Lhe properly spectrum. The ditficully 1s that there is no
precedent for the profile of recovery mn tenant demand
across so much of this asset class. Clearly exsting
structural shufts have been accalerated and new ones have
emerged which may prove more permanent than the
markels currently expect. All of this uncertainty leads us 1o
lacus on income sustainatilily and those markets where -
If demand does return - supply 15 consirained.

Whilst tenant demand 15 hard to gauge we do benefit
from a benign financing environment. Debt markets are as
accommaodating as they have ever been, even if the long
end of the curve 15 nsing We see no reason for margins to
widen in the near term. Inflationary pressures are building
and fixed income asset values reffect these expectations
Property offers income which s tied either directly
(index-linked) or indirectly {rental growth} to economic
expansion Our intention 15 to remain focused on areas
where that income 15 both sustainable and where 1t offers
growth,

In the near term, we am to maintain the exposure to the
private rented residential sectar (particularly 1n Germany
and Sweden) as the market continues to undervalue net
only the quality of those eamings but alse the steady
growth profile There is risk - Germany - that a fefl
wing coahtion government would amend the current

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

federal taw resuiting in focal aties geiling maore control
over renls However the rent freeze in Berlin {over the
fast 18 months) resulted in a reduction in the number of
available apartments as well as a slowing 10 Lhe pace of
new apartment delivery. We trust Lthat commaon sense
will prevail over political dogrna. Elsewhere, undervalued
Income streams are evidenl in supermarkets and in

parts of the healthcare market alongside index-linked
sustainability we will also mamtain exposure to Lhe
greatest growth opportunities. The structural shifts in
retall behaviowr are still ongoing. Evolution in the speed
of delivery and post pandemic supply chain dynarmics

will drive growth across the logistics landscape fram 'big
box" to “last mile” We will continue to own the developers
where we see increases in the value of landbanks as well
2s growing development margins lnvestor demand for the
end product shows no sign of abating

Office markets will remain volatile. Businesses will spend
time working out ther requirements in a post pandemic
world. Interaction and callaboration will drive office usage
Tasks that can be fulliiled without physical mteraction will
be timetabled for remate working. A new balance will
develop with one sure fire certamty, the premium being
attached to best n ¢lass newly buill space with complete
envirgnmental credentials Develgpers will respond to
this demand and we expect an acceleration 1n buildings
being wentified for refurishment earlier than previausly
envisaged Obsolescence of the existing office stock will
accelerale.

Post the year end in early May, St Modwen Properties
announced that an olfer of 542p per share from
Blackstone, a 24% premium to the ast published NAY
had the suppart of the board This company has a large
strateqic landbank, a high qualty legistics portfoho and
3 growing housebmiding umt and whilsthit was trading
close to its asset value, private equity clearly feels it s
undervalued This is a reminder, as stated in a number of
pievious reports, that the depth of both equity and debt
avallabihty underpins listed company valuations.

Marcus Phayre-mMudge
Fund anager

3 June 2021



Portfolio

Distribution of Investments
as at 31 March

2021 200 2020 2020
£000 % £000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 395,644 28.3 352,188 30.4
UK Investment Froperties 83,07 59 94,510 81
UK Total 478,715 342 446,698 38,5
Continental Europe Securities
- quated 921,801 65.8 708,557 611
Investments held at tair value 1,400,516 " 100.0 1,155,295 995
- CFD (creditor)/debtos {141) 8,698 0.7
- 1RS creditor? - (3.808) {0.3)
Total Investment Pasitions 1,400,375 1000 1160185 100.0
Investment Exposure
as at 31 March
20 pliryl 2020 2020
£000 Y% £000 %
UK Securities
- guoted 395,644 256 352,188 289
~ CFD exposure? 45,441 2.9 32,257 2.6
-TRS exposure! - - 6,598 0.5
UK investment Properties 83,01 5.5 94,510 78
UK Total 524156 340 485,553 9.8
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 921,801 59.5 708,597 58.2
- CFD exposure? 100,560 6.5 244N 2.0
Total investment exposure® 1,546,511' 100.0 1,218,621 100.0
Portfolio Summary
as at 31 March
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Total investments £1,401 £1,155m £1,297m £1,316m £1,145m
Net assets £1,326 £1,136m £1,328m £1,256m £1,118m
UK quoted property shares 28% 31% 33% 31% 29%
Overseas quoted property shares 66% 61% 59% 62% 63%
Direct property (externally valued) 6% 8% 8% % 8%
Net Currency Exposures
as at 31 March
2021 2021 2020 2020
Company Benchmark JEEGTLNETGE: T R
% % % %
GBP 279 28.3 270 26.8
EUR 51.2 50.9 53.0 531
CHF 6.7 6.6 79 79
SEK 129 12.9 no 13
NOK 1.3 1.3 11 09
1 Net unrealised {loss)/gain on CFD contracts held as balance sheet {creditos)/debtor.
2 Net urwealised lass on total return swap (TRS} contract held as balance sheet creditor.
3 Gross value of CFC positions.
4 Gross value of TRS pasition.
5 Total investments illustrating market exposure including the gross value of CFD and TRS positiens.

I UK Securities

B Uk Property
* Continental Eurcpe

94.5%

M Equities
I UK Property
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lnvestment Portfolio by Country

as at 31 March 2021
Market Market
value value
% %
Austria
CA limmobilien 9,092 8.6 Sweden
9,092 0.6 Kungsteden 36,061 25
' wihlborgs 23,390 7
Belgium Cibus 18,201 1.3
Warehousing and Distribution de Pauw 241 18 Fabege 17,594 1.2
Aedifica 16,502 12 Castellum 16,805 12
Cofinimmo 13,677 10 Fastighets Balder 16,216 12
vGP 8,070 0.6 Nytosa 12,008 09
Xior 5926 04 Catena 8,933 0.6
Care Property 4,841 03 Sambhalis 3,737 03
Montea 2,329 0.2 Pandox 2,690 0.2
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 1923 0.1 155,635 1.1
Wereldhave 247 -
78,286 56 Switzerland
PSP . #1999 30
Finland 41,999 30
Kgjamo 17,500 12
Citycon 2170 0.2 United Kingdom
19,670 14 SEGRO 60,357 43
Derwent Landon 33,584 24
France Safestore Hoidings 32,193 23
Argan 53,987 39 Landsec 3,327 2.2
Gecina 24,036 17 Stenprop 30,477 2.2
Cavivio 13,457 10 Phoenix 25,213 18
Kiépierre 10,364 0.7 Unite Group 25,143 18
Altarea 1,351 01 Sirius 22,241 16
103,195 74 Picton 21,330 15
CLS Holdings 20,077 14
Germany Londonmelric Praperty 19,903 14
Vonovia 145,982 10.4 McKay Securities 18,104 13
LEG 63,904 46 Secure Income REIT 15,551 11
Deutsche Wohnen 54,499 39 Supermarket Income REIT 9,614 07
Aroundtown 39,306 28 Tritax Eurobox 7,634 0.6
VIB Yermoegen 37,980 27 PRS RE(T 6,189 0.4
TAG immobifien 33,294 2.4 Assufa 5,194 0.4
Alstria 8,8n 0.6 Target Healthcare 4,418 0.3
Deutsche Eurashop 5,283 0.4 Primary Health Properties 3,848 03
389,059 278 Atrato Capital 1,468 o1
Capital & Regional 1,062 01
Ireland Capital & Counties - m 01
Hibernia REIT 20,998 15 195,644 283
Irish Residential Properties _29% 0.2 Tttt T
. 139ms 17 Direct Property c83m 0 58
Netherlands CFD Positions (141) 0.0
Eurocommercial Properties 25,077 18 {included in current liabitities} i . i
unibail-Rodamco-Westfield 14,499 10
NSI 4,099 0.3 Total Investment Positions 1,400,375 1000
43,675 31
""" - — Companies shawn by country ot listing.
Norway
Entra 16,199 12
16,199 1.2
Spain
Arkma Real estate 21,102 15
werlin 1990 14
41,003 29
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VONOVIA

1. VONOVIA (GERMANY)

SEGRO

2. SEGRO (UK)

31 March
2020

iiiﬁi 31 March

2020
Sharcholding value  £146.0m  (£144.4m)
:";é;ﬁ:f“me"t 9.4%  (11.8%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.7%)
Share price €55.70 (€44.36)

Shareholding value
% of investment

£67.8m (£38.7m)

portfolig! 4.4%  (3.2%)
% of equity owned 0.6%  {0.5%)
Share price 938.0p (764.0p)

LEG :
X
B
3
la)
a
3. LEG {GERMANY) §
2
31 March SEEIRE )]
2001 2020
Sharehoiding vaiue  £63.9m  (£75.3m)
% of investment
portiolio? 1% (6.2%)
% of equity owned 0.9% (1.2%)
Share price €12.2 (€1027)

Vonovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by marke?
capitalization.

A the end of 2020, the company owned

a portfolio of EURS6.8bn split between
Germany (84%), Sweden (11%) and
Austria {5%). Vonovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which allows the company to fun a
strategy focusing on modernizing its
portfalio. The company is involved in the
whole value chain of the residential sector
via its rental business (81% of group
EBITDA), its value-add branch (energy

and multimedia related services, 8%),

its third-party development business

(6%) and its recurring sales program

(5%). Finally, the residential sector is
subject to strict regulations in Germany

in particular. Vonovia's management has
been particularly pro-active with public
authorities, complying with regulations
and assuming a social role which should
allow them to benefit fram critical political
goadwilt in the future. In 2020, Vonovia
deiivered again strong results in absolute
and relative terms. The company delivered
a +17% total accounting return (computed
as the growth in NAV + dividend paid over
the year) against +14% on average for the
main fisted residential peers. The like for
like rental growth at +3.1% was resilient
and one of the highest in the residential
sector despite the impact of the Berlin
rental freeze which implied a negative
reatal adjustment in November 2020. The
total shareholder return since listing in
July 2013 has been +314%.

Segro has become the fargest UK REIT by
market cap, and is the largest operator
of logistics and industrial property listed
in the UK, with a tota portfolio of £13bn
(split 53% in the UK, 47% in Continental
Europe, with 66% urban warehouses,
32% big boxes and 2% other uses). In
the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater London industrial and logistics.
Rental growth in these markets has
been extremely strong as there remains
an acute supply-demand imbalance,
fuelled by tenants’ requirements to

deal with the growth in e-commerce.

in Europe, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with Haly third;
these markets have a lower, but still
positive, rentai growth outtook (and are
geographically less space-constrained)
but continue to see yield compression
as investors have paid keener yields for
access to strong income. The logistics
sector has proved particularly resitient
during the COVID crisis, with high

rent cotlection. Segro has extensive
development exposure that it manages
to largely pre-let and develop at yields
significantly in excess of investment
vaiues (¢.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
net initial yield of 3.8% at FY20). we
expect this o drive both earnings and
NAY growth, as well as high shareholder
total returns. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 177%.

Notes

LEG is a German residential company
focused on the economically strong
region of North Rhine-Westphalia. it is
one of the largest real estate companies
in Germany with more than 144,000 units
under management and a combined
value of €14.6b0. 1n addition to the
strong focus on NRW, the company

is exploring opportunities on 8 and €
lecations in adjacent states with the view
to leverage their market access as well
as their existing plattorm still withir strict
and conservative financial criteria. The
company has a distinct advantage to be
less exposed to regulatory risk than peers
with 2 Berlin exposure and to benefit
from a relatively high share of state
subsidised tenants (25% of the total).
The very low average tent per sqm at
EURS.96 as well as the relatively low value
per sqm of EUR,1503 make the company
particularly well suited ta weather any
potential macro-economic shock. In
addition, the company has shown over
the years a conservative management

on the liabiiities side which continued to
be the case in 2020 with a LTV of 37.6%
(maximum taiget set at 43% for 2621},

an average debt maturity of 7.4 years (8.1
years in 2019) and a net debt 1o adjusted
EBITDA of 11.8x. In 2020, LEG delivered

a strong total accounting return of 20%
ahead of the sector average at 14%. The
five-year total sharehalder return has
been +106%.

» Ihe percentage of investment portfolic positions set out above include exposures through CFD for both the individual positions and the portfaho
>The Investment Portfolia by Country positions set out on page 18 are the physical holdings only -nctuded in the investments held at fair value in the Balance Sheet The
piofit or loss positions on the CFD cartiacts (e not the avestment exposure) are also shown on page 18 and are included i the Balance Sheet as debiois or creditors

in the Current assets
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments ccrircec

4. DEUTSCHE WOHNEN
(GERMANY)

IMARGAN

5. ARGAN (FRANCE)

EY RO 31 March
2021 2020

gecina

6. GECINA (FRANCE)

31 March
2020

%i 31 March

2020
Shareholding value  £54.5m  (£36.4m}
qu.f.r'l apoement 5%  (3.0%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%)
Share price €39.78 (€34.71)

Shareholding value £54.0m  (£46.8m)
% of investment

folio? 35%  (3.8%)
% of equity awned 3.5%  (3.5%)
Share price €80.4 (€676)

Shareholding value  £53.9m  (£47.5m}
% of investment

portiolio" 3.5%  (3.9%)
% of equity owned 0.7% (0.6%)
Share price €M7 (£1207)

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany’s second
largest residential company with the bulk
of its exposure to Greater Berlin (76%

of the total postfolio FV). The company
owns a high-quality portfolio consisting of
more than 155,600 units with & combined
value of €26bn. In addition to the rental
business, the company is present in the
Nursing and Assisted Living business
which around represented 12% of the
Group EBITDA in 2020 {target t0 get to
15% in the medium-term).The company
benefits from its development exposure
with a total investment cost of EUR6.9bn
(27% of GAV) split between buitd-to-hold
(EUR4.3bn, 62% of the pipeling) and build-
to-sell (EUR2.6bn, 38% of the pipeline).
In a context of the implementation of
the rental freeze in Berin, the company
showed a resilient financial performance
in 2020 with a totai accounting feturn of
4% in line with German residential peers.
The Greater Berlin portfolio was valued
at EUR2,853 per sgn on average which
leaves significant upside potential in the
future. As expected, post FY2Q results we
had the positive unequivocal decision
from the court that the rental freeze

was anti-constitutiona and therefore
cancelled. The five-year total sharehalder
return has been +62%.

Argan is a French company, created in
2000 by Jean-Claude Le Lan, which has
been listed since 2007, The objective

af the company has been 1o build 2
portfolio of premium logistic assets which
guaiantee a stable and high occupanty
rate at around 100%. The company is
vertically integrated and has full control
of the entire value chain by identifying
future needs of prospective and cument
tenants and developing assets on their
behalf. Therefore, Argan is able to capture
the developer margin while having little
to no risk on the letting side. In 2020,

the portfolio value amounted to EUR3bn
(160% exposed to France, 27% exposed to
Greater Paris region, 16% to the North of
France and 13% around Lyon).

The company delivered solid 2020 resuits
with an EPRA NRV per share up 19%

YoY and a DPS up 11%. The funding of

the company is based on a conservative
mix of 90% amaortizable mortgage loans
with an average maturity of 8 years

and 10% of bonds. The relatively low
dividend payout at below 50% allows the
company to retain cash and reinvest in
new development projects while repaying
debts. The management of the company
has been assumed by its founder fean-
Claude Le Lan who owns alongside family
members 40% of the share capital which
is a strong guarantee of alignment. The
five-year total shareholder retumn has
been +307%

Gecina is the largest office landlord in
Europe with a portfolio of more than
€14bn focused almaost exclusively on

the Paris region (97% of the total office
value) and with a high share in Paris city
(60% of the total office value). It owns
also a partfolio of €3.6bn of residential
assets (of which EUR367m in student
housing) predominantly located in

the Paris region. Finally, the company
owns a portialio of exclusive high

street retail assets for a value of €1.6bn
located in Paris city. The management is
capitalizing on a development pipeline
of more than €3.5bn (17% of GAV) to be
delivered in the next five years. This is a
continuation of the total return strategy
which has been implemented by the
company over the last couple of years:

in essence, redeveloping assets where
the management sees value creation
potential and disposing mature assets ‘
to arystalize capital gains. Since the end
of 2014, the company has delivered 30
projects and generated EUR1.1bn of value
creation (EUR1S5 per share). In 2020, the
company showed resilience with 99% rent
collection, stable portfolio valuation and
Like for like rental growth of +2.3%. The
financiat position of the company is very
salid with an LTV at 35.6% and an average
debt maturity of 7.1 years.

The five-year shareholder total retumn has
been +21.6%.

Notes

> The percentage of investment portfo-'0 posIions set oLt above rclude exposures through CFD for both the rdividua! pos tors ard the particlio
»The Investrnent Portfoiic by Country positiors set out cn page 18 are the phys:cal ho'cings only inc'uced ir the investments Feld at fair vaive n the 3aiznce Sheet fhe
piofit or loss positions ¢n the CFHD cartiacts [i e not the uvestimert exposure) are aise showr or page "8 ard are inc'uded n the 3alance Sheet as dehtors or creditars

Ir the Current assets
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KLEPIERRE

7. KLEPIERRE {FRANCE)

safesiore

8. SAFESTORE (UK)

PIS[P

Swiss Property

v
=
S
=3
m
=
(al
=
™
v
(=]
)
]

9. PSP (SWITZERLAND)

IiIiE! 31 March 31 March m

2020 200 2020 2020
Shareholding value £51.3m (Nil) Shareholding value £44.0m (£279m}  Shareholding value  £42.0m (Em)
p%b ::; ;:‘zzfstment 3.2% (0%) ;ﬁ;:;‘i:fme"‘ 2.8%  (2.3%) ;:;:(:ﬂ;f“‘“em 27%  (2.3%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%) % of equity owned 26%  (19%) % of equity owned 1.0% (0.6%)
Share price _ €19.89 {€1757)  Share price 796p (641p) Share price €115.20 {€120.70)

Klepierre is a European shopping

center operator, managing around 140
centers with a total portfolio valuation
of EUR22bn. The main exposures are

in France/Belgium (39% of total), Italy
(18%}), Scandinavia (17%) and theria
(10%). The company, like the rest af
shopping center owners, was impacted
by the COVID crisis in 2020 and therefore
reported an EPS down 27% YoY and an
EPRA NTA per share down 15% YoY. On

a relative basis, the company benefits
from its focus on Continental Europe
where shopping centers are anchored
by foed retailers contrary to UK or US
centers anchored by department stores
which have been undergoing significant
challenges (partly driven by online
competition). The financial position of
the campany is also more solid than its
direct peers with an LTV of 41.4% and

a net debt to EBITDA ratio of 10.8x. The
board benefits from the experience of
David Simon {Chairman of the Supervisory
Board), Chairman and CEQ of Simon
Property Group which owns a 21%
stake in Kleppierre. The five-year total
shareholder return has been -34%.

safestore is the UK's largest self-storage
operater, owning ¢.125 UK stofes,
weighted towards London and the South
East {c.60%). in additicn the company has
a large feotprint in the Paris market and
has recently been expanding into new
European cities {through bath JV structures
and outright ownership) taking footholds
in Holland, Spain and Belgiumn. Safestore
has a best in class operating platform
which, along with peer Big Yellow, allows
it to dominate the UK storage market,
particularly in terms of online search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy and rate growth,
cpening new developments) and through
acquisitions, 3 trend we expect to
continue over the medium term; the self-
storage market has proved remarkably
resilient during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 172%.

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland's
leading real estate companies owning
properties valued at around CHF8.6bn.
These are mainly office and business
premises in prime locations in
Switzerland's key economic centers.
Zutich represents 51% of the company’s
exposure (Geneva at 14%). Vacancy rate
has consistently trended downward from
a level at 8.5% in 2018 to an historic

low of 3.0% at FY20. The company
reported solid results in 2020 with EPS
(excl revaluation) stabie and NAV per
share growing by 3%. The company will
benefit from a development pipeline
adding EUR34m of rents (11% of current)
in the next three years. The pipeline is
mastly exposed to Zurich (85% of total
investment) and has a current pre-let
ratio of 77%. The financial profite of the
cornpany is very conservative with an LTV
of 35%, average cost of debt of 0.47% and
a loan maturity of 5.5 years. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 48%.

MNotes:

> The percentage ot investment portfolic posiions set out above include exposures thiough CFD for both the individual positions and the porifalio
>The investment Portfolia by Country positions set out on page 18 are the physical haldings only included 10 the invesiments held at fair value in the Balange Sheet 1he
profit or loss positians on the CFD cortracts {1e not the investment exposure) are also showr on page 18 and are included in the Balance Sheet as debtors or crediors

'n the Current assels
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@ AROUNDTOWN**

10. AROUNDTOWN (GERMANY)

VIB Vermdgen AG

11. VIB VERMOEGEN (GERMANY)

31 March BEIRIEN )
202 2020

DERWENT
LONDON

12. DERWENT LONDON (UK)

31 March
2020

ﬂ%] 31 March

2020
Shareholding vaiue £39.3m  {£20.3m)
m&:‘,’“‘“‘*"‘ 25%  (1.7%)
% of equity owned 0.5% 0.3%)
Share price _ %6.07  (€4.55)

Shareholding value £38.0m (£22.9m)

% of investment

portfoliot 2.5%  (1.9%)
% of equity owned 5.5% {4.1%)
Share price €29.25 (€22.80)

Shareholding value  £37.6m {Nil)
% of investment

portiolio! 2.4% {0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
Share price 3228p  (3270p)

Aroundtown is a diversified German-
based property company that owns a
EUR24.5bn portfalio. 1t has a diversified
commercial portfolio with exposure to
Office (60% of the commercial portfolio),
Hotels {28%), Retail (9%) and Logistics
(3%). The majarity of its exposure is

in Germany and the Netherlands (86%
together). The company is also exposed
to German Residential (14% of total GAV)
through its 39% holding in Grand City. The
portfolio has grown significantly since
Arpundtown was listed in 2015, through a
series of deals, in particular, the takeover
completed in early 2020 of listed German
peer TLG Immabitien. Mr Yakir Gabay
(advisory board deputy Chairman} who
founded the company, still owns a 16%
stake in the company via its vehicle Avisco
Group (down from 27% pre TLG deal). In
2020, the company closed EUR2.3bn of
disposals at a +3% margin to book value.
This year, the company will continue to
streamline the portfolio with a disposal
pipeline of EUR500m while buying

back shares for a maximum amount of
EURS00m, The five-year total sharehofder
return has been 58%.

Netes

VIB is a German company developing,
buying and helding commercial
praperties, primarily in the high-growth
regions of Southern Germany. The
tompany pursues a develop or buy

and hold strategy aiming at growing

its earning base while maintaining a

solid financial structure. The real estate
portfolic (EUR1.4bn) includes logistics and
light industrial properties (70% of total
rents), garden centers and DIY stores
(11%), grocery and discounters (7.5%). The
company benefits from a higher yielding
postfofio than peers at 6.8% implying

a superior EPS yield and more potential
for yield compression and theretore NAV
growth in a mid to long-term horizon. The
vacancy rate has averaged 1.26% oves the
last five years. Between 2016 and 2020,
FFQ per share increased by 41%, NAV per
share increased by 42% and DPS increased
by 36%. In 2020, the company maintained
a solid momentum with EPS growing by
+3% and NAY per share growing by 9%.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 93%.

Derwent London is a London Office

owner and developer, with a £5.4bn
portfolio covering c¢.5.5m sq ft, focused
primarity in the West End and “tech belt”
(Old Street, Clerkenwell etc.) areas of
London. 2020 has been a difficult year

far office landlords follawing the impact
of CcovID-19, which bath brought the
transaction market and occupier market
to a halt, and left ongoing uncertainty
over future office use as the necessity and
popularity of working from home grew.
We believe the role of the office remains
important however, and think that
Derwent London is the best placed London
office landlord to weather the COVID-19
storm given a) its very defensive balance
sheet {LTv 18%), b) the ongoing spread
between prime office yields in London
and other European cities (c.100bp), which
we believe will support valuations even
as ERVs soften and ¢} the company's high
quaiity development capabilities which
continue to create value as schemes like
Soho Place, The Featherstone Building and
19-35 Baker Street complete. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 18%.

» The peicentage of nvestrrent portfolio posit ans set aut »bove incude exposures threugh CFD tor both the indiv dual pos tiors and the pertfalic
»The Investment Portteio by Courtry positions set oLt ar page -8 are the physical helgings oniy nc sced i1 the irvestrrents he d at fan va.ue in the Balance Sheet The
pratit or ass postons on the CFD cartracts (@ not the rvestmert exposure) are also showr on page 18 aird dre ircluded in the Balarce Sheet as deblors o aeditors

In the Currert assets
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Investment Properties
as at 31 March 2021

Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value (%)

as at 31 March 2021

Residential
and
Retail  Industrial Ground Rents
west End of London ) % - 14.5% 0.6% 58.0%
tner London” 1.6% 31.2% - - 32.8%
South West T 9.2% - %
Total 445%  404%  145% 0.6% 100.0%
*“Inner Lurdon defined as inside the North and Sauth Circular,
Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Partfolio Contracted Rent
as at 31 March 2021 as at 31 Mairch
Gross rental income o
OtoSyears 4%  Year1 - ~ £3,000,000
5 to 10 years 7% Years 2-5 £10,000,000
10 to 35 years 53% Years 5+ _ £19,000,000

15 to 20 years
20+ years

0%
6%

VALUE IN EXCESS OF £10 MILLION

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, tondon SW18

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge
Road, Londen W2

Sector Mixed Use

VALUE LESS THAN £10 MILLION

10 Centre, Gloucester Business
Park, Gloucester GL3

Sector Industrial

Sector Industrial
Tenure freehold Tenure Freehold Tenure Freehoid
Size (sq ft)y 64,000 Size (sq ft) 36,000 Size {sq ft) 63,000
Principal  Waitrose Ltd, Graham & Green, Principal  Kougar Tool Hire Ltd Principal  Infusion GB
tenants Happy Lamb Hot Pot, tenants Page Lacquer tenants

1Rebel, Specsavers

Lockdown Baker

The property comprises a large mixed-
use block in Bayswater, constructed
in the mid-1970s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres on the north
east corner of the junction of Bishops
Bridge Road and Porchester Road,
close to Bayswater tube station and
the Whiteleys Shopping Centre. The
commercial element was extended
and refurbished in 2015 with a new
20 year lease being agreed with
Waitrose.

Site of just over an acre, 50

metres from Wandsworth Town
railway station in an area that is
predominantly residential. The estate
comprises 16 small industrial units
generally let to a mix of small to
medium-sized private companies.
Planning permission granted in
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment.

The 10 Centre comprises six industrial
units occupied by two tenants and sits
on a 4.5-acre site. Gloucester Business
Park is located to the east of junction
TA of the M5 and one mile to the
east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4
via junction 15.
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Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company’s Objective is to maximise shareholders’ total return
by investing in the shares and securities of property companies
and property related businesses internationally and also in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe
Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling. The index, calculated
by FTSE, is free-float based and as at 31 March 2021 had 105
constituent companies. The index limits exposure o any one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata.
The benchmark website www.epra.com contains further details
about the index and performance.

Business Model

The Company’s business madel follows that of an externally managed
investment trust.

The Company has no employees. its wholly non-executive Board of Directars
retains responsibility for corporate strategy; corporate governance; risk and
control assessment; the overall investment and dividend policies; setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMO Investment Business Limited as the Alternative
Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM™) with portfolio management delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the
Company on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy
Fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Properly Managef and joanne Elfiott the
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the atrangements under the
investment Management Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 41 to 43.

In accordance with the Alternative investment fund Managers Directive
(“MFMD"), BNP Paribas has been appainted as Depositary to the Company.
8NP Paribas also provide custodial and administration services to the Company.
Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company matiers.

The specific terms of the Investment Management Agreement are set out on
pages 53 and 54.




Strategy and Investment Policies

the mvestiment selecion process seeks o dentify well
maneged companies of all sizes Tho taneger generally
eggereds futtie growth end capitel epprecetion polentiz|
more hughly than immediete yield o discount T sssel

walue

Althougli the nwestment otyeclze allows forneestment
o areintarnational hasis, tha bencimark s 2 Pan-
Furopean ndex cad the mejonty of the msestments

will be focated in that geoyeeplical aiec Dinoect priopeity

investments are lucated in the UK only

As a dedicated mvestor in the propoity sectur the
Compeny cennot offer diversibiceson outside thet sectar,
hcme\,m, within the cortfolo tere are limtations, as set
it below, on the size of individual investimerts held to
ensuie diversificeton wathin the portfoli

ASSET ALLOCATION GUIDELINES
The maxareum helding i tha stack of oay ane 1ssuer or of
asingle cssetss Limeded 1o 15™: of rhu (th folio ot e ,,:Jml
of acquisttior, 10 cddition, any holdings 1 excess of

tthe poittolio must aot i cgaqregate exceed <67 of the
po e

genng cuidelings for

The Blanagar cunen
asset elloreton.

yoapphes the 1o

LK h> ed »\qmtu’ 75 - i
Contineriel Buropedn hwt ’d R tu 5 A3 - 750
Diect Progenty - Uk

Ot ther hist f“d eruite

ol ihunis 0 5%

Ungpinle ‘(Iunwy‘.le . 0

GEARING

“Ro Company mey employ levels of gearng from tne
to time At the aum b erhenaimg retums, subject to o
avorall masmum of 257 of the porttolio value

I cortan imarket conditions the Fanegar may consider it
wudent not to employ gedr 1 the Badence shect at cll,
f:l(l 10 hold part of the po |‘[ml| G Cash

Me cutrent asset ellucetron guidelne 15 10% net cesh te
25 net gearng {as a percentege of portfolic velue).

PROPERTY VALUATION

mvestment properties are valaed cvery six months by an
extemnal independent valuer, voloations of all the Group'
properties as ol 31 faarcl: 2027 ha.\- g boen emed out o
27RICS Red Book™ basis ond these valuetions have been
adopted i the accaunts.

ALLOCATION OF COSTS BETWEEN REVENUE &
CAPITAL

0n the basis of the Bocrd’s expectod long-term sgHit

af peturs 1 e torm ol copital gmes end income, the
Groug cherges 735 of ennucl base manegement fees and
financa costs to capital Al portormarce faas ors
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Trust’s objective against
the folfowing Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”):

KP[ Board monitoring and oulcome

Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the benchmark

The Directors regard the out-performance of the - The Boaid reviews the performance in detail al each
Company’s net asset value total return 1n performance meeling and discusses the results and outlogk with the
in comparison with the benchmark as being an overall Manager

measure of value delivered to the shareholders” over the

longer-term. Outcome

Tyear §years

NAY Total Return” (Annualised} 207%  77%

Benchraark Total Return (Annualised) 159%  43%

* NAV Total Return 15 calculated by re-investirg the dividends m the assets and
the Company hom the ielevant ex-cwvidend date. Dnedends are deemed 1o be
re-nvested on the ex-dividends date tor the benchinark

Delivering a reliable dividend which is growing over the longer term

The prinaipal abjective of the Company 15 a total return - The Board reviews statements on income received to date
objechive, however, the Fund Manager also aims to and income forecasts at each meeting.

deliver a reliable dividend with growth over the longer

term. Outcome

1year Syears
Compound Annual Bradend Growth” 14%  11.2%
15%  2.6%

*1he finai div.derd in the time series divided by the mitial giidend in the
peiiog (a sed 1o the power ol 1 diviced by the number of years in the senes

Compound Annual RP|

The Discount or Premium at which the Company’s shares trade compared with Net Asset Value

whilst expectation of nvestment performance isakey - The Board takes powers at each AGM to buy-back and
driver of the share price discaunt or premim to the Net 1ssue shares. When cansidering the ments cf share buy-
Asset Value of an investment trust over the longer-term, back or ssuance, the Board tooks at a number of factors in
there are perniads when the discount can widen. The addiion to the short and longer-term discount or premiym
Board is aware of the vulnerability of a sector-specialist to NAV to assess whether action would be beneficial to
trust to a change of investor sentiment towards that shareholders overall. Particular attention 1s paid to the
sector, or to penads of wider market unceriainty, and the current market sentiment, the potential impact of any
impact that can have on the discount share buy-back activity on the hquidity of the shares and

on Ongoing Charges over the longer term

Outcome
tyear 5vyears

Average discount” 10.2%  63%
Nil 150,000

Total number of shares repurchased

* Average daily discount throughaut the penod of share price 1o
NAV with income ScLrce Bioorrberg.
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KPl
Level of Ongoing Charges

The Baard 1s conscious of expenses and aims to defiver a
balance between excellent service and costs.

The AIC defimtion of Ongeing Charges includes any direct
preperty costs in addition o the management fees and
all other expenses incurred in running a publicly listed
company. As no other nvestment Lrusts hald part of their
portfolio in direct property (they either hold 100% of their
portfolio as property securilies or as direct property), in
addition to Ongoing Charges as defined by the AIC, this
statistic 15 shown without direct property costs to allow

a clearer companson of overall administration costs with
other funds vesting In secunties.

The 8oard moniters the Ongoing Charges, in comparnson
to a range of other Investment Trusts of similar size, both
property sector specialists and other sector specialists.

Board monitoring and ocutcome

Expenses are budgeted far each finanaal year and the
Board reviews reqular reports on actual and forecast
expenses throughout the year.
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Cutcome
5 years

1year

Ongoing charges excluding

0,
performance fees 065%  065%

Ongoing charges excluding performance

0.63%
fees and Direct Property Costs 3%

0.62%

The angoing charges are competiive when compared lo
the peer group

Investment Trust Status

The Company must continge to operate in order lo meet
the requirements for Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax
Act 2010

The Board reviews financial information and farecasts at
each meeting which set cut lhe requirements outlined in
Section 1158,

The Directors believe that the conditicns and ongeing
requirements have been met in respect of the year to
31 March 2027 and that the Company will conlinue to
meel the requirements.

The KPIs are considerad to be Afternative Performance Measures as defined fater in the Annual Report.
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Principal and Emerging Risks and Uncertainties

In delivering long-term returns ta sharehalders, the Board must also 1dentify and manttor the nsks that have been taken
in order to achieve that return. The Board has included below details of the pnncipal and emerging risks and uncertainties
faung the Company and the appropriale measures taken in order to mitigale these nsks as far as practicable.

The Roard also considers new and emerging risks adding appropnate momitoring and mibigation measures accordingly

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the response of financial markets, the unknown duration of the pandemic and
ongoing impact on economies around the world together with operalional changes n response to gavernment guidelines
continues to ncrease some of the nisks listed below in comparison with prior years

Risk Identified Board moniforing and mifigation

Share price performs poorly in comparison to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are listed on the tondon - The Bgard monitors the level of discount o premivm at
Stock Exchange and the share price 15 determined by which the shares are trading over the short and longer-
supply and demand. The shares may trade at a discount term.

or premium to the Company's underlying NAY and this

discount o premium may fluctuate over ime. The Board encourages engagement with the shareholders.

The Board recerves reparts al each meeting on the activity
of the Company’s brokers, PR agent and meetings and
events attended by the Fund Manager.

The Company’s shares are available through the BMO
share schemes and the Company partiapates in the active
marketing of these schemes. The shares are also widely
available on gpen architecture platforms and can be held
directly through the Company's registrar.

The Board takes the powers to buy-back and to 1ssue
shares at each AGM.

Poor investment performance of the portfolio relative to the benchmark

The Company's postiolio ts actively managed. In additon - The Manager’s objective 1s to oulperform the benchmark
to Investment securities the Company also invests in The Board reqularly reviews the Company’s long-term
commercial property and accordingly, the portfelio may sirategy and investment guidelines and the Manager’s
not follow or outperfoim the return of the benchmark relative posihians against these.

The Management Engagement Comimiltee reviews the
Manager’s performance annually The Board has the
powers [0 change the Manager If deemed appropriate
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Risk Identified
Market risk

Both share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly
and adversely impact the value of the Company’s
portfalio.

Although the portfolio is diversified across 3 number of
geographical regions, the investment mandate is facysed
on a single sector and therefore the portfolic will be
sensitive lowards the property sector, as well as giobal
equity markets more generally.

Property companies are subject to many factors which
can adversely affect their investment performance, these
include the general economic and financial environment
in which their tenants operate, interest rates, availability
of investment and development finance and reguiations
issued by governments and authorities.

Although we have now exited the european Union the
structure of our future relationship with Continental
Europe is sull evolving and there could be an impact on
occupalion across each sector.

The COVID-19 global pandernic dorminaled the financial
year. This has changed the way we live and work,
creating unprecedented uncertainty regarding the impact
on economies and properly markels around the world
both n the short and longer term.

Any strengthening or weakening of Stering will have

a direct )mpact as a proportion of our Balance Sheet is
held 1n non-GBP denominated currencies The currency
exposure I1s mamtained in line with the benchmark and
will change aver time. As at 31 March 2021, 72 1% of the
Trusl’s exposure lies to currencies other than GBP

Board monitoring and mitigation

The Board receves and considers a reqular report from
the Manager delailing asset allocation, investment
decisions, currency exposures, geanng levels and rationale
in relation to the prevailing market conditions,

The report constdars the potential impact of Brexit and Uie
Manager's respanse (n positioning the portfalic.

The report considers the current and potential future
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the ongaing
implication for the properly market and valuations overall
and by each sector.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

29

©
o
2
E]
m
o
Lo
]
m
-
=)
=
3




Principal Risks and Uncertainties confinued

Risk tdentified

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings In the undgertying portfolio putting
pressure on the Company’s ability to grow the dividend
could result from a number of factors:

lower earnings and distributions in investee
companies. Companies In some property sectors
continue o be negatively impacted by the COVID-19
nandemic. Companies In some sectors cancelled or
reduced dividends during the last financial year as a
precaulicnary measure to protect their balance sheets
in the short term. Although most have returned to
paying dividends, some are at a lower level than
previously and others are cantinuing to withhold
dividends;

prolonged vacancies in the direct property portfolio
and lease or rental renegotiations as a result of
COVID-I9,

stienglhening Sterling reducing the value of overseas
dividend receipts in Sterling terms. The Company

has seen a matenal increase n the level of earnings
In recent years. A significant factor in this was the
weakenng of Sterling following the Brexit decision
Sterhng strengthened in the last quarter of the
financial year. This may continue of reverse again

in the near or mediumn term as the longer lerm
implications of Brexit and the COVID-19 pandemic and
the impact an the UK and European econarmies are
understood. Strengthening of Slerling would lead to a
fall in earnings;

adverse changes in the tax treatment of dividends or
other income receved by the Company, and

thanges in the uming of dividend receipts from
Investee companies.

Board monitoring and mitigatien

The Board receives and cansiders regular income
forecasts

Income farecast sensitivity to changes in FX rates 1s also
monitored

The Company has substantial revenue reserves which can
be drawn upon when required.

The Board will continue to monitor the impacl of COVID-19
and the long term implications for income generation.
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Risk Identified

Board monitoring and mitigation

Accounting and operational risks

Disruplion or failure of systems and processes
underpinning the services provided by third parbies and
the nisk that these suppliers provide a sub-standard
service

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
operaticnal response from the manager and sefvice
pioviders has been closely monitored

Third party service providers preduce periodic reports o
the Board cn therr contral environments and business
continuation provisions on a regular basis
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The Management Engagemenl Committee considers the
performance of each of the service providers on a regular
basis and considers their angeing appointment and terms
and conditions.

The Custedian and Depasitory are responsible for the
safequarding of assets In the event of a loss of assets
the Depository must return assets of an identical type
or corresponding amcunt unless able to demonstrate
thal the loss was the resuit of an event beyond their
reasonable control.

ponitoring the quahity and timeliness of service as
service providers respond to COVID-19 requlations and
quidelines, in particular with widespread home working
and consideralion of the durability of the arrangements.
Many organisations are now planning to incorporate
home working into their operational structure as a
permanent feature.

Financial risks

The Company’s investment activities expose it to a
variety of financial nsks which include counterparty
credit nisk, liquidity nsk and the valuation of financial
instruments Any impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has
been considered

Details of these risks together with the policies for
managing these nsks are found in the Notes Lo the
Financial Staternents in the full Annual Reports and
Accounts.

Loss of Investment Trust S$tatus

The Company has been accepted by HM Revenue &
Customs as an investment trust, subject to continuing
to meet the relevant ehgibility conditions. As such the
Company is exemnpl from capital gains tax on the profits
realised from the sale of investments.

Any breach of the relevant eligibility conditions could
lead to the Company losing investment trust status and
being subject to corporation tax on capital gains realised
within the Company’s portfolio.

The Investment Manager monitars the investment
portfolig, Income and proposed dividend levels to ensure
that the provisions of CTA 2010 are not breached. The
results are reported to the Beard at each meeting.

The income forecasts are reviewed by the Company's tax
advisor through the year who also reports to the Board
on the year-end lax position and reports on CTA 2010
compliance.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk Identified
Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply with the London Stock Exchange
Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
fules; failure to meet the requirements under the
Alternative Investment Funds Directive, the pravisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and other UK, turopean
and overseas legislation affecting UK companies
Failure to meet the required accounting standards or
make appropnate disclasures in the Intenim and Annual
Repoits.

Board monitoring and mitigation

The Board receives regular regulatory updates from
the Manager, Company Secrelary, legal advisors and
the Auditers The Board constders these reports and
recommendations and takes action accordingly.

The Board receives an annual report and update from the
Depositary.

Internat checklists and review procedures are in place at
service providers.

Inappropriate use of gearing

Geaning, aither through the use of bank debt or through
the use of denvatives may be utilised from time (o time.
Whilst the use of gearing 15 intended to enhance the NAY
total return, it will have the opposite effect when Lhe
return of the Company’s investment portfolio 1s negative
or where the cost of debt 15 higher than the return from
the portfalio

The Board receives regular reports from the Manager on
the levels of gearing in the portfolio These are considered
agamst the geanng imits set in the Investment Guidelines
and also in the context of current markel conditions and
sentiment The cost of debt s monitored and a balance
sought belween term, cost and flexibiiity.

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

Loss of portfoho manager or other key staff

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Viability Statement

in accordance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which requires the Company [0 assess
the prospects of the Company over the longer term, the
Cirectors have assessed the prospects of the Company
aver the coming live years. This penod is used by the
Board during the slrategic planning process and the Board
consider this period of ume appropriate for a business of
our nature and size.

This assessment takes account of the Company’s current
posilion and the palicies and processes for managing the
principal and emerging nsks set cut on pages 28 to 32 and
the Company’s abiity o continue 1n operation and meet 115
liabilities as they fall due over the period of assessment.

In making this staternent the Board carried out a rabust
assessment of the principal and emerging risks facing the
Company, including those that might threaten ils Gusiness
model, future performance, solvency and liquidity.

In reaching their conclusions the Directors have reviewed
five-year forecasts for the Company with sensitivity
analysis to @ number of assumptions; investee company
dividend growth, interest rate, foreign exchange rate, tax
rate and assel value growth,

In the assessment of the viability of the Company
the Directors have noted that:

The Company has a long-term investment strategy
under which 1t mvests mainly in readily reatisable,
publicly listed securities and which restricts the level of
borrowings.

Of the cusrent portfolio, 50% could be hquidated within
frve trading days and 69% within 10 trading days.

On a Group basis, Current assets exceed curment
liabilities at the Balance Sheet Date.

The Company Invests 1n real estate related companies
which hold real estate assets, and invests in commercial
real estate directly These investments provide cash
receipts in the form of dividends and rental income.

The Company is able to take advaniage of its closed-
ended investment Trust structure and able to hold a
proportion of its portfolio in less liquid direct property
with 3 view to long-term oulperfarmance.

»n
4
3
L
m
o
o
=
m
-
b=}
=
2

Al the Balance Sheel Date the Company had
£35 mullion undrawn on its revolving loan facilities.

The structure has also enabled the Company to
secure long-term financing EUR 50 mulhion loan notes
Issued in 2016 are due Lo mature at par i 2026 and
GBP15 million loan notes issued on the same date are
due to mature at par in 2031

The impact of COVID-19 on the UK and European
commercial property markets remains a consideration.
This resulted in a reduction in dividend receipts fram
investee campanies in the year to 31 March 2021 with
some companies withholding or reducing dividends.
The majority of companies have returned to paying
dividends, although some at lower levels than before
the pandemic. As a result an improvement n income
is antictpaled in the forthcoming year. The longer
term impact on some sectors is still difficult to assess,
however the company has low exposure to these
sectors.

The direct property portfolic has been well posiioned
in respect of the COVID-19 aisis and rental collection to
date has been robust. We have very limited exposure
to retail and some smailer accupiers in the hospitality
seclor, however, overall the expected drop in Income
from the direct portfolio in 2020/21 was not malenal
and likewise 15 not expected to be in the forthcoming
year.

The expenses of the Company are predictable and
modest in comparison with the assets. Regular and
robust monitoring of revenue and expenditure forecasts
are undeitaken throughoul the year The Company
could suffer a reduction in earnings of 5% and stll be
able to meet its liabilities as they fell due
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Viability Statement continued

The Company has no employees and conseguently
does not have redundancy or other employment
related liabilities or responsibilities.

The Company retains title to its assets held by the
Custodian which are subject to further safeguards
tmposed on the Depositary

The impact of Brexit and COVID-19 have been
considered in terms of the potential effect on Sterling
724 of the portfolio 1s exposed to currencies other than
Sterhing

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

Real Estate will continue to be an nvestable sector of
international stock markets and investors will continue
to wish to have exposuse to that sector

Closed-ended Invesiment Trusts will conlinue to be
wanled by investors and regulation or tax legistation
will not change to an extent to make the structure
unallractive in companson to other investment
oroducts.

The performance of the Company will conlinue to be
satisfactory Should the perfarmance be less than the
Board deems to be satisfactory, 1t has the appropriate
powers Lo replace the investment Manager

The Board has concluded that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the coming five years. The
Company’s business model, capital structure and
strategy have enabled the Company to operate
over many decades, and the Board expects this to
continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Approach

Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG™) factors

can present both opportunities and Lhreats to the
performance we aim to debver to our sharehalders. The
Board is therefore committed to taking a responsible
approach on ESG matters This covers Lhe Cornpany’s own
responsibilities on governance and reporting and, the most
matenal way in which the Company can have an impacl,
through responsible ownership of the investments that are
made on its behalf by its Manager.

As a long-term investor, governance and sustainability
considerations have always been embedded 1n our
Manager’s Investment Process. ESG risk assessments

and censiderations are integrated into the detailed
fundamental investment research and analysis that takes
place on any potential investment befare it is considered
for inclustan in the portfolic and continues on an ongoing
basis for all investments held.

This approach 1s m hne with the definition of an Article
& Fund under the EU's Sustamable Finance Disclosure
Requlations. Whilst this is currently Furopean not UK
requlation it 1s nonetheless a widely utilised definition

There are two fundamental considerations o investment
In property companies: the assets themselves and their
management. The Manager seeks to invest in sustainable
assets which are managed by quality teams in a well
governed corporate strocture. As a result, there has

been a long-standing and strong culture of stewardship
in the Manager’s investment approach. The Manager
believes that engaging with companies is best in the

first instance, rather than simply divesting or excluding
investment opportunities. However, there are instances
where governance matters have driven a decision not o
mvest in a company. As one of the largest teams investing
m Pan-European real estale equities, our Manager meels
with a significant number of the management teams of
investee and potential Investee companies each year and
has a robust record of engagement with an agenda of
reducing risk, improving performance and encouraging
best practice Whilst likely an elevated number reflecting
the impact of Covid, over the course of the year, our
management team participated in 380 individual or group
meetings with companies and their management teams.

Corporate Governance disclosure requirements have
increased lransparency enormously In recent years
and enabled informed engagement, with social and

employment practices also gaining increased focus and
disclosure. Environmental measures are now rapidly
coming to the lare and with wider disclosure requirements
being placed upon our investee companies, as a result the
Manager 1s abte to scrutinise more easily other measures
such as chmale change and sustainability palicies and
outcomes.
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Company Corporate Governance and Reporting

The Board also recognises the importance of the
Company’s own Governance and disclosures. The
Company's compliance with the revised AIC Code of
Corporate Governance 1s detailed in the Corperate
Governance Statement on page 44 of this Annual Report.

Under Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 Lhere Is the
requirement to detail information aboul employee and
numan rights; including information about any policies

it has in relation to these matiers and effectiveness

of these policies. As the Trust has no empioyees, this
requirement does not apply. The Company is not within
the scope of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 because it
has not exceeded the turncver threshald and is therefore
not obliged to make a slavery and human trafficking
statement. The Directors are satistied thal, to the best of
therr kncwledge, the Company's principal suppliers, which
are listed on page 108, comply with the provisions of Lhe
UK Modern Slavery Act 2015.

The Board currently comprises three male Directars and
two female Duectors. The activities of the Nomination
Committee in relation to the board changes are referred
to in the Nomination Commuttee Report on pages 51 and
52 The Beard's diversity policy 1s outlined i more detail
in the Corporate Governance Report. The Manager has an
equat apporlunity policy which s set out on its website
www.bmo com

Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise of
Voting Power

The Beard has approved a corporate governance voling
pohcy which, in its opinion, accords with current best
practice whilst maintaining 2 pnimary focus on financial
returns.

The exercise of vating rights attached to the portfolio
has been delegated tc the Manager. Where practicable,
all shareholdings were voted at ail company meetings
in the financial year in accordance with BMOGAM's
own corporate governance policies. This ensures that

a strong, consistent approach 15 laken to proxy voting
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As ¢an be seen in the chart above, the fund’s portfolio
weighted carbon intensity was broadly in line with thal of
the benchmark, whilst significantly lower than the wider
global equity index. This reflects the fact that for property,
this 1s largely measunna the impact of ongoing emissions
from runming a butlding whereas the wider index includes
operating companies with manufacturing capabilities and
the need to distribute goods worldwide

For the property sector, the focus is currently on the
energy efficency of buildings once they are occupied,
bul we expect n time more atlenion will be paid o
the carbon emitled in getting ther built and eventually
dismantled which accounts for a large proportion of a
building’s emissions over 1ts lifespan

The message is that this 1s still an area where it is difficult
to make fully informed dectsions. The assessments from
the varioys data providers reach different conclusions

as they do not all score in a consistent way, We expect
this to improve and change but it will be a journey. Our
Manager is dedicating a lot of resource to the analysis

of the information available and also has the benefit

of the knowledge of BMOs award winning Responsible
Investment Team. As data coverage Improves, our
Manager will in turn be able to engage with our investee
companies on environmental matters and report to our
shareholders in more depth.

Direct Property Portfolio

The Management team recognises the importance of
sustainability in our business and in the direct properly
assets which we invest in, hold and manage on behalfl of
our investors. Property impacts upon the environment,
the health and wellbeing of occupiers, and the
communities in which they are situated. Spedific issues
relevant to physical property investment portfolio include,
for example, responsible and sustainatle refurbishment
practices, efficient use of resources throughout their
operation, and design and services to support the health
and wellbeing of occupiers and local communities.

gnvirsnmental Audits are conducted on all our buildings
prior to purchase. The Company will take remedial

action or enforce tenant obhigations to do so wherever
appropnate. In managing tnvirenmental, Social and
Governance 1ssues across the direct portfahio - our
Manager engages with occupiers, external managers and
supphiers. As a responsible steward of the Company’s
assets, our Manager is committed to impreving
sustainability characlenstics through interventions that are
carefully planned and executed
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Our Manager has strong, direct relationships with
occupiers and 1S committed to working with them to
develop the data, measurement tools and resources to
set and achieve meaningful sustainability targets for the
assets in the portfolio. As part of this, and warking with
the portfolio property managers, a Sustainability Roadmap
1s being implemented which targets biodiversity net gain
across the portfolio by 2025, improving energy, water and
waste efficiency, transitioning to 100% renewable energy
and reducing greenhouse gas emissions in ine with
climate science.

By order of the Bgard

David Watson
Chairman

3 june 2021
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Directors

KATE BOLSOVER

SARAH-JANE CURTIS

DAVID WATSON

Chairman Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Appointed: Appointed: Appointed:

April 2012 October 2019 January 2020
Experience: Experience: Experience:

David became Chairman following
the retirement of Hugh Seaborn on
28 July 2020. Since 30 September
2018 David had served as the Board's
Senior Independent Director when he
simultaneously handed Chairmanship
of the Audit Committee to Tim, a
position he was appointed to on 1
January 2073, He spent 9 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group plc,
where he was a director of four
equity investment trusts, and more
recently at Aviva plc as Chief Finance
Officer of Aviva General Insurance.
He is a Chartered Accountant and

has had a distinguished career in the
Financial Services Industry.

Kate previously worked for Cazenove
Group and ).P. Morgan Cazenove
between 1995 and 2005 where she
was Managing Director of the mutual
fund business, and latterly director of
Corporate Communications. Priof to
this, she worked extensively in the
investment fund industry and was
managing Director of Baring’s mutual
fund group. Kate was also previously
a non-executive director of JPMorgan
American tnvestment Trust plc until
2016, Senior Independent Director of
Montanaro UK Smaller Companies
Trust until 2019 and Chairman and
Tiustee of Tomorraw’s People until
2077,

Sarzh-fane is a Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Sarah-Jane was previously Business
Director at Bicester Village for Value
Retail. Before this, Sarab-Jane was
Director, Covent Garden for Capital
and Counties PLC. She has also
worked for Grasvenor for 24 years
including as London Estate Director
(retail/Residential) and Fund Manager
for LiverpoolONE.

Skills and Contribytion to the Board:

Throughout his executive career, David
has accumulated relevant skills in
finance, audit and risk management
and experience in the investment
industry. His expetience as SID and
Chair in a number of boards have built

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Feomn her executive experience, Kate
contributes significant and relevant
skills of the investment industry to
the Trust. Kate's role in various boards
also gives her the relevant experience
in investor and shareholder

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied

career, particularly in the retail, and
experience sectors and for Fund and
Investment management activities.

significant experience in shareholder engagement.
and investor engagement.
Other Appointments: Other Appointments: Other Appointments:

David is currently Chairman of
Aegon Asset Management UK pic
and he is a Director and Chairs the
Audit Committee at the Prudential
Assurance Company.
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Kate is currently Chairman of

Fidelity Asian Values PLC and Senior
independent Director of Invesco Bond
income Plus Limited. She is also a
non-executive Director of Baillie
Gifford & Co Ltd.

Sarah-fane is currently Property
Director of Bicester Motion as well as
a consultant to Value Retail PLC.




SIMON MARRISON
Senior Independent Director

TIM GILLBANKS
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Appointed: Appointed:
September 201 January 2018
Experience: Experience:

Simon joined the Board of the
Company on 28 Septernber 2011 and
became Senior Independent Director
on 28th July 2020. He has over 30
years’ experience in the European
property investment industry. He is
currently senior advisor for European
Real Estate at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts). Prior to this he spent 19 years
at LaSalle Investment Management
where he was European CEO for 12
years with responsibility for a portfolio
of over €20 biflion across Europe.
simon has been based in Paris since
1990 having started his career in
tondon. Until 1997 he was a partner
at Healey & Baker (now Cushman &
Wakefield) and from 1997 to 2001 he
was at Rodamco where hie became
Country Manager for France. He joined
tasalle in 2001 as Managing Director
for Continental Europe.

Tim is a Chartered Accountant, with
30 years’ experience in the financial
services and investment industry.
Most recently he spent 13 years at
Columbia Threadneedle investments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Operating Officer and finally as
interim Chief Executive Officer.

skifls and Contribution to the Board:
Simon brings in a wealth of
experience, particularly in the
European property market. He has
gained leadership and management
skifls in his executive roles and
refevant skills in investment
management.

skills and Contribution ta the Board:
Tim brings a wide experience,
particularly in financial services

and investment management. His
previous financial expetience during
his executive career informs him in
his role as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

other Appointrnents:
Senior advisor for European Real Fstate
at KKR (kohlberg Kravis Roberts)

Other Appointments:

Tim is currently a Non-Executive
Director for Henderson Global
Investors Limited and Henderson
Group Holdings Asset Management
Limited. He is also Vice-Chair of the
Board of Trustees of Blood Cancer UK.

All directars are independent of the manager and are members of the Audit Committee.
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Managers

P/ L

MARCUS PHAYRE-MUDGE

f

‘l .
JO ELLIOTT

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the
Management team for the Company at Henderson Global
tnvestors in January 1997, initially managing the Company’s
direct property portfolio and latterly focusing on real estate
equities, managing a nurnber of UK and Pan £uropean real
estate equity funds in addition to activities in the Trust.
Marcus moved to Thames River Capital in October 2004
where he is also fund manager of Thames River Property
Growth & Income Fund Limited. Prior to joining Henderson,
Marcus was an investment surveyor at Knight Frank

(1990) and was made an Associate Partner in the fund
management division (1995). He qualified as a Chartered
Surveyor in 1992 an4 has a B5¢ (Hons) in Land Management
from Reading University.

-

GEORGE GAY

3

Jo Elliott, Finance Manager, has been Finance Manager
since 1995, first at Henderson Global investors then, since
January 2005, at Thames River Capital, when she joined
as CFO for the property team. She joined Henderson
Global Investors in 1995, where she most recently held
the position of Director of Property, Finance & Operations,
Europe. Previously she was Corporate finance Manager
with tondon and Edinburgh Trust plc and prior to that was
an investment/treasury analyst with Heron Corporation
plc. Jo has a BSc (Hons) in Zoology from the University of
Nottingham and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with
£rnst & Young in 1988. Jo is 8 Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair of Polar Capital Global Financials
Trust plc.

ALBAN LHONNEUR

George Gay, Direct Property Fund Managey, has been the
Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008. He joined Thames
River Capital in 2005 as assistant direct property manager
and qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 2006. George was
previously at niche City investment agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerable
industry experience. He has an MA in Property Valuation and
Law from City University.

Alban Lhonreur, Deputy Fund Manager, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008. He was previously at Citigroup
Global Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on
Continental European Real Estate. Prior to that he was at
Societe Generale Securities, where he focused on transport
equity research. He has a BSc in Business and Management
from the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, London. He also attended CERAM Nice High
Business School. In 2005 he obtained 2 post-graduate
Specialised Master in Finance in 2005 from ESCP-EAP.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited financial statements of
lhe Group and the Company and their Strateqic Report
and Report of Directors for the year ended 31 March

2021 The Group comgprises TR Property Investment Trust
pic and its wholty owned subsidiaries As permitied by
legislation, some matters narmally included in the Report
of the Directors have been included 1n the Strategic Report
because the Board considers them to be of strategic
importance. Therefore, the review of the business of Lhe
Company, recent events and outlook can be found on
pages 4 to 35

STATUS

The Company 1s an investmenl company, as defined in
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and apeiales as
an investment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010.

The Cormpany has a single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a nominal value of 25p each which are premium
histed on the London Stock Exchange.

The Comnpany has received confirmation from HAM Revenue
& Customns that the Company has been accepted as

an approved investment trust far accounting periods
commencing on or afler 1 Apnl 2072 subject ta the
Company continuing to meel the eligibility conditions of
Section 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing
requirements for approved companies in Chapter 3

of Part 2 Investmenl Trust (Approved Company) (Tax)
Regulations 2011 (Statutory Instrument 2011/2999},

The Directers are of the cpinion that the Company has
conducted and will continue to conduct its affairs so as

to maintain investment trust status. The Company has
also conducted its affairs, and will continue to conducl

its affairs, in such a way as lo comply with the Individual
Savings Accaunts Requlatians. The Crdinary shares can be
held i Individual Savings Accounts {ISAS).

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

AL 31 March 2021 the nel assets of the Company amounted
to £1,326 million (2020 £1,136 million), on a per share
basis 417.97p (2020- 358.11p) per share.

Revenue earnings per share for the year amounted to
12.25p (2020: 14.62p) and the Directors recommend the
payment of a final dnadend of 9.00p (2020- 8.30p) per
share bringing the total dwvidend for the year to 14.20p
(2019 1400p). In arrving at their dividend proposal, the
Board also reviewed the income forecasts for the year Lo
March 2022

Performance detatls are set out In the Financial Highlights
on page 2 and the outcome of what the Directors consider

to be the Key Performance indicators on pages 26 and 27,
The Charman’s Slalement and the Manager’s Report give
full details and analysis of the results for the year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND BUY-BACK ACTIVITY

At 31 March 2021 the Company had 317,350,980
{2020- 317,350,980} Ordinary shares in issue.

Al the AGM 10 2020 the Directors were given power to
buy back 47,570,911 Ordinary shares. Since this AGM the
Directors have not bought back any Ordinary shares at
the nominal value of 25p each under this authonty The
outstanding authonty 1s therefore 47.570,911 shares.

This authority will expire at the 2021 AGM. The Company
will seek to renew the power lo make market purchases
of Crdinary shares at this year's AGM.

since 1 Aprif 2021t the date of this report, the Company
has made no market purchases for cancellation. The Board
has not set a specific discount at which shares will be
repurchased.

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

Detalls of the managemen! arrangements and fees are
sel out 1n the Report of the Management Engagement
Committee beginning on page 53. Total lees paid

to lhe Manager in any one year (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group
Equity Shareholders’ Funds. Total fees payable for the
year to 31 March 2021 amount to 12% (2020: 0.8%) of
Group Equity Sharehelders’ Funds. Included in this were
performance fees earned in the year ended 31 March 2021
of £9,659,000 (2020: £2,683,000).

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND IFRS

The Group and Company financial stalements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going
concern basis 1n accordance with Internaticnal Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS), which compnse standards and
interpretations approved by the international Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), together with interpretations

of the Inlernational Accounting Standards and Standing
Interprelations Commiltee approved by the International
Accounting Standards Commitlee (JASCY thal remain in
effect, to the extent that they have been adopted by the
European Union and as regards the Group and Company
finanaial statements, as apphed in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

The accounling policies are set out in note 1to the
Financial Statements on pages 73 ta 77
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Report of the Directors continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's Finanaial Instruments compnse (s
investment portfolig, cash balances, borrowings and
debtors and creditors thal arise directly from its cperations
such as sales and purchases awailing settlernent, profit

or 10ss halances on derivative instruments and acciued
Income and expenses. The finanaz! nsk management
objectives and policies arising from s financial
instruments and exposure af the Company to nisk are
disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors’ assessment of the longer-term viability of
the Company is set out on pages 33 and 34,

In assessing Going Concern, the Board has made 2 detailed
assessment of the ability of the Company and Group te
meet 1ts liahilties as they fali due, including stress and
liquidity tests which considered Lhe effects of substantial
falls In Investment valuations, substantial reductions

in revenye recerved and reductions in market iquidity
including the effects and potential effects of the continued
econamic impact caused by the Coronavirys pandermic. The
Board 1s satisfied with the operational resilience of service
providers despite COVID-19 and continues to monitor therr
performance throughout the pandemic.

in ight of testing carried cut, the overail tevels of the
mvestment liquidity held by the Company and the
significant net asset portfeho position, and despite the
small net current liabihty position af the Parent Company
and Group, the Directors are satistied that the Company
and the Group have adequate financial resources to
continue in operation for at least the next 12 months
following the signing of the financial statements and
therefore it 1s appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overalf responsibility for the Group’s
systemns of internal controts and for reviewing their
effectiveness The Portfolic Manager 1s respansible for the
day to day investment management decisions on behalf
of the Group. Accounting and company secretanial services
have balh been outsourced

The internal centrols aim Lo ensure that the assets of the
Group are safeguarded, preper accounting records are
mamntained, and the financial information vsed within

the business and for publication 1s reliable. Control of the
nisks identified, covening finanaial, operational, comphiance
and ask management, 1s embedded in the controls of

the Group by a series of regular investment performance
and atiribution statements, inancial and nisk analyses,
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AIFM and Portfolio Manager reporls and quarterly controt
reports. Key risks have been identified and controls put i
place to mitigate them, including those not directly the
responsibility of the AIFM or Portfolio Manager. The key
risks are explaned in more detail in the Strategic Report
on pages 28 to 37.

The ef(ectiveness of each third party provider's internal
controls 15 assessed on a continuing basis by the Compliance
and Risk departments of the AIFM and Portfolio Manager,
the Administrator and the Company Secrelary. Each
maintains its own system of internal controls, and the Board
and Audit Committee receive regular reports from them.
The control syslems are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance aganst material misstaternent or
Jass and to manage, rather thar eliminate, nsk of failure to
achieve objectives.

As the Company has no employees and 1ts operational
functions aie underiaken by third parbies, the Audit
Commuttee does not consider it necessary for the Company
to establish 1ts own internal audit function Instead, the
Audit Committee relies on internal control reports receved
from its pnincipal service providers Lo satisfy itself as to the
controls in place

The Board has established a process for identifying,
evaluahing and managing any majar nsks faced by the
Group The Board undertakes an annual review of the
Group's system of internal controls 1n hine with the Turnbul!
guidance Business nsks have also been analysed by

the Board and recorded 1n a nisk map that is reviewed
reqularly. Fach quarter the Board receives a formal
report from each of the AIFM, Portfolio Manager, the
Administrator and the Company Secretary detalling the
sleps taken to monitor the areas of nsk, including those
that are not directly their responsibility, and which report
the details of any known internal control failures

The Boaid also considers the flow of information and the
Interaction between the third party service providers and
the controls m place to ensure accuracy and completeness
of the recording of assels and ncome. The Baard receives
a report from the Portfcho Manager setting out the key
controls i operation

The Board also has direct access to company secretanal
advice and services provided by Link Company Matters
which, through its nominated representative, 15
responsible for ensuring that the Board and Commuittee
procedures are followed and that applicable requlations
are comphed with

These controls have been in place throughout the perod
undes review and up to the date of signing the accounts.



Key risks identified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Committee to ensure robusl internal controls and
monitoning procedures are In place 1n respect of these
risks on an ongomng basis.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE “AGM”)

The AGM will be held on 27 July 2021 at 2.30pm at the Royal
Automobile Club, 89/91 Pall Malf, London SW1Y SHS. The Nolice
of AGM 1s set out on pages 100 and 101. The full text of the
resolutions and an explanation of each 1S contained in the
Netice of AGM and explanalory notes on pages 104 to 107

MATERIAL INTERESTS

There were no contracts subsisting during or at the end

of the year in which a direclor of the Company Is or was
matenally interested and which 1s or was significant in
relation to the Company's business. Ne Director has a
contract of service with the Company. Further details
regarding the appointment letters can be found an page 52.

DONATIONS

The Company made nc pohtical or chantable donations
during the year (2020- frul).

LISTING RULE DISCLOSURE

The Company confirms that there are no items which
require disclosure under Listing Rule 98 4R n respect of
the year ended 31 March 2021,

VOTING INTERESTS

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applcable statutes and other shareholders’ nghts,
shares may be 1ssued with such rights and restrictions as
the Company may by ordinary resolution detide, or (i there
Is no such resolution or so far as it does not make specific
provision) as the Board may decide Subject to the Articles,
the Companies Act 2006 and other shareholders’ nights,
umssued shares are at the disposal of the Beard

Voting

At a general meeting of the Company, when voling is
undertaken by way of a poll, each share affords 1ts cwner
one vole

Restrictions on Voting

No member shall be entitled to vote if he has been
served with a restiiction notice {as defined i the Articles)
after failure lo provide the Company with information
concerning interesls in those shares reguired to be
provided under the Companies Act 2006,

Deadlines for Voting Rights
Voles are exercisable at the general meeting of the Company
in respect of which the business being voted upon 1s being

heard. Voles may be exercised in person, by proxy, or in
relaticn to corporate members, by corporate representatives.

The Articies provide a deadline for submission of proxy
forms ol nol less than 48 hours (or such shorler ime
as lhe Board may determine) before the meeling (not
excluding non-working days)

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be held in uncertificated
form and, subject to the Articles, title to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system. Subject
to the Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his
certificated shares by an instrument of transfer in any usual
form or in any other form which the Board may approve.

Significant Voting Rights

Al 31 March 2021, no sharehalders held over 3% of veting
rights on a discrelicnary basis. However, at 31 March 2021
the following shareholders held gver 3% of the voting
rights on a non-discretionary basis:

shareholder

Brewin Dolphin (td 1%
Retail Investors - UK 8.9%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 7.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 5.1%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 5.1%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.9%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.8%
Charles Staq!rey Group ple 3.0%

" See ahove for further informgtion on the voting aghts of Grdinary shares

Since 31 March 2027 to the date of this repart, the
Company has not been infermed of any notifiable changes
with respect to the Qrdinary shares.

Articles of Association

the Company’s Articles of Association may only be
amended by a speqal resolution al a General Meeting of
the shareholders.

Amendments to the Articles of Assoaation will be
proposed at the 2021 AGM and furlther details are set out
on page 106 to 107

Corporate Goverpance

Full details are given in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 44 o 50 The Corporate Governance Report forms
part of this Directors” Repart.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors 1s accountable to shareholders for
the governance of the Company’s affars.

This statement describes how the principles of the 2018
edition of UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”)
issued by the Financial Reporting Council (the “FRC") n
2018 have been applied Lo the affaws of the Company The
Code can be viewed at www frc.org.uk.

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

in applying the pringiple of the Code, the Cireclors

have also taken account of the 2019 Code of Corporate
Governance published by the AIC {the “AIC Code™), of which
the Company is a member. The AIC Code establishes the
framewark of best practice specifically for the Boards of
investment trust compantes. Furthermaore, the AIC Code
has full endorsement of the FRC, which means that AIC
members who repart against the AIC Code, on the whole,
meet their obligations under the Code and the related
disclosure requirements contained 1n the Listing Rules. The
AlC Code can be viewed at www.theaic couk,

The Directors believe that during the perod under review
they have complied with the main pninciples and relevant
provisions of the Code, insofar as hey apply to the
Company’s business, and with the provisions of the AIC Code.

Compliance Statement

The Directors note that the Company did not comply with
the following provisions of the Code in the year ended
31 March 2021

Provision 9 Due to the nature and structyre of the
Company the Board of non-executive directors does not
feel it 15 appropnale to appoint a chief executive.

Provision 24 The Board believes thal all Directors,
including the Chairman. should sit on all of the Board's
Committees

Provision 26. As the Company has no employees and its
operational functions are undertaken by third partes, the
Audit Committee does not consider it appropriate for the
Company to estabiish 1ts own internal audit function The
Company’s service providers provide assurance of their
effective internal processes and contrals

Provision 32 The Board does not have a separale
Remuneration Committee The functions of a
Remuneration Committee are carned out by the
Management Engagement Commitlee
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Composition and Independence of the Board

The Board currently consists of five directors, all of whom
are non-executive. The Board’s independence, including
that of the Chairman, has been considered and all of the
Directors are deemed lo be independent in character and
have no relationships or circumstances which are likely to
affect their judgement

The Board subscribes to the view expressed in the AlC
Code that long-serving Direclors should not be prevented
from forming part of an independent majority. It does not
consider that the length of a Director’s tenure, 1n 1solation,
reduces his or her ability to acl independently. The
Boards policy on tenure is thal continurly and experience
add significantly to the strength of the Board although
the Board believes in the merits of an ongoing and
progressive refreshment of 1ts compaosition.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefit of diversity and as of the
date of this report the Board consists of three men and
two women.

Diversity is laken mto account as part of the recruitment,
appointment and succession planning process and

the Board 1s also aware of the devetoping corporate
governance with regard to ethniaty of individual

Direclors The Beard 1s committed to appointing the most
appropriate candidate, regardiess of gender or other forms
of diversity and therefore no targets have been set against
which to reporl.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company's Articles ol Association, the
Companies Act 2006 and any directions given by special
resolution, the business of the Company 1s managed

by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the
Company, whether relating to lhe management of the
business of the Company or nat. In particufar, the Board
may exercise all the powers of the Campany to barmow
money and to morigage of charge any of its undertakings,
property, assets and uncalled capital and to 1ssue
debentures and other securities and to qive securty for
any debt. hability or ohhigation of the Company te any third
party.

There are na contracts or airangements with third parties
which affect, alter or terminate upon a change of control
of the Company.



DIRECTORS

The Chairman 1s Mr watscn and the Senior Independent
Oirector 15 Mi Marrison Mr Watsen succeeded Mr Seaborn
as Chairman when he retired Irom the Board of Direclor
following Lhe AGM on 28 July 2020. Mr Marrison succeeded
Mr Watson as the Senior Independent Birector on this
date. The Directors’ biographies, on pages 38 and 39,
demonstrate the breadth of investment, commercial and
professional experience relevant to their positions as
Directors of the Company.

Directors” retirement by rotation and re-election 1s subjecl
to the Articles of Association In accordance with the Code,
all directors will be subject to annual re-election.

Ms Bolsover, Ms Curtis, Mr Gillbanks, Mr Marnson,

far watson will all retire at the forthcorming AGM 1R
accordance with the Cede and, being eligible, will offer
themseives for re-election All Directors are regarded as
being free of any conflicts of nterest and no Issues I
respect of independence anse. The Board has concluded
that all Cirectors continue to make valuable contnbutions

BOARD MEETINGS

and beleve thal they remain independent in characler
and judgement.

Directors are not compensated by the Company for lass of
office in an event of a takecver bid.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Audit Commitiee, a
Norminalion Commiltee and a Management Engagement
Committee, which alse carries out the functions of

a Remuneration Committee All the Directors of the
Company are non-executive and serve on each Committee
of the Board. It has been the Company’s policy to

include all Directors on all Committees. This encourages
unity, clear communication and prevents duplication of
discussion between the Board and the Commitiees,

The roles and responsibibties of each Commultee are set
out on the individual Commiltee reports which follow. Each
Committee has wrilten terms of reference which clearly
define its responsibilities and duties. These can be found
on the Company’s website, are available on request and
will 3lso be available for inspection at the AGM.

The number of meetings of the Board and Commuttess held during the y2ar under review, and the attendance of

individual Birectors, are shown below:

Board
| Atlended  Elighle  Attended .
VD;\;d"Watsron 6 [ 2
Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2
Simon Marrison 6 6 2
Kate Bolsover 6 6 2
sarah-jane Curtis 6 6 2

Audit

_ MEC ~ - " Nemination
ighle  Attended  ‘Higible  Attended -~ Eigible
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1

2 1 1 1 1

In addition to formal Board and Committee meetings, the Directors also attend a number of informal meetings to
represent the interesls of the Company, and o discuss operatienal markets and succession planning

THE BOARD

The Board 1s responsible for the effective stewardship of the Company’s affairs. Certain sirateqic 1ssues are monitored

by the Board at meetings against a framewaoik which has been agreed with the mManager Additionaf meetings may

be arranged as required The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision, which are
categorised under varieus headings, including strategy, management, structure, capital, financiai reporting, internal
controls, gearning, asset allocation, share price discount, conlracts, investment policy, finance, nisk, rvestment restictions,
performance, corporate governance and Board membersship and appomtments.

In arder lo enable them to dischaige therr respansibiliies, all Directors have full and timely access to relevanl information.
At each meeting, the Board reviews the Company’s investmenl performance and censiders financial analyses and other
reports of an operational nature. The Board monitors comphance with the Company’s abjectives and Is responsible for
sething asset allocation and mvestment and gearing imits within which the Portfolio Manager has discretion to act and
thus supervises the management of the investment portfalio, which s contractually delegaled to the Portfelio Manager.
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The Board has responsibility for the approval of
investments i unquoted investments and any
investments in funds managed or advised by the Portfolio
Manager. It has alsc adopted a procedure for Direclors,

In the furtherance of their duties, to take independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

In line with the Companies Act 2006, the Board has the
power to authorise any potential conflicts of interest that may
arise and impose such limits or conditions as it thinks it A
register of potential conflicts is maintained and 1s reviewed al
every Board meeting tc ensure all details are kept up-to-date
Appropriate authorisation will be sought prior to the
appointment of any new Director or 1If any new conflicts anse.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder relations are given high priority by the Board,
the AlFM and the Portfolio Manager. The pime medium
by which the Company communicates with shareholders
is through the tntenm and Annual Reperts which aim to
provide shareholders wilh a clear understanding ol the
Company’s activities and theur resulls This information is
supplemented by the daily calculation of the Net Asset
value of the Company's Ordinary shares which is published
on the London Stock Exchange.

This information 15 also available on the Company’s
websile, www trproperly.com together with a monthly
factsheet and Manager commentary

It 1s the intention of the Board that the Annual Report and
Accounts and Notice of the AGM be 1ssued to sharehclders
s¢ as (o provide at least twenly working days’ nouce of
the AGM. Shareholders wishing to lodge questions in
advance of the AGM, or to contact the Board at any other
time, are invited to do so by wnting Lo the Company
Secretary at the reqistered address given on page 108

General presentations are given to both shareheiders and
analysts follewing the publication of the annual resuits
All meetings between the Manager and shareholders are
reported to the Board.

SECTION 172 COMPANIES ACT 2066

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires directors
to actin good faith and 10 a way that 15 the mast likely
1o promote the success of the Company In accordance
with the requirements of the Compantes (Miscellaneous
Reporting) Regulations 2018, below, the Company
explains how the Directors have discharged their duty
under section 172 durng the reporting period. Fulfithng
this dety naturally supports the Company in achieving its
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Investment Objective and helps te ensure that all decisions
are made 1n a responsible and sustainable way.

Upon appointment, Directors” are provided with a detailed
induction outhming their duties, legally and regulatary, as

a Director of a UK public imited company and continue to
reqularly recerve relevant technical updates and training.
Under their letter of appointment, the Directors also have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
and when deemed necessary, the Directors have the
opportunity to seek mdependent professional advice in the
furtherance of their duties as a director, at the Company's
expense The Company nas a schedule of Matters Reserved
for the Board which clearly describes the Board’s dulies
and responsibilities In addition, there are also the Terms

of References of the Board's Commuttees which outline

the responsibilities that are delegated from the Board.

The Terms of References are reviewed at least annually to
consider any requlatory and best practice developments

DECISION MAKING

The importance of stakeholder considerations, 1n
particular in the context of decision-making, 15 reqularly
brought to the Board's attention by the Company
Secrelary and taken into account at every Board
meeling, and a paper reminding Cirectors of that is
tabled at the start ol every Board meeting The Board
considers the impacl that any material decision will
have on all relevant stakeholders to ensure that it is
making a decision that promoles the long-term success
of the Company, whether this be, for example, In
relation to dividends, new investment opportunities or
the Company’s forward stralegy, In addition, the Board,
along with the Manager, hold a meeting focused on
strategy on an annual basis to look ahead in the markel
and anticipate polential scenanos and how this may
impact the Company’s stakehaolders.

STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises the needs and importance of

the Company’s stakeholders and ensures that they are
cansidered during all its discussions and as part of (s
decision-making. Since the Company 15 an nvestment
trust that 1s externally managed, the Company does
nol have any employees (the Directors have a Letter of
Appointment and are not employees of the Company),
nor does 1t have a direct impact an the community

or environment In the conventicnal sense The Board
recoqrises its key stakeholders and explains below
why these stakeholders are considered important 1o
the Company and the actions taken to ensure that their
Interests are taken into account



Stakeholder Group and wlﬁ,

Board engagement

they are important

| Sharehoiders

Shareholder support is
essential to the existence of
the Company and delivery
of long term strategy of the
business.

The Company has over 3,000 Sharehoiders, including institutional and retail investors. The
Board is committed to maintaining open channels of communication and to engage with

| Shareholders in a manner they find mast meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
' their views. These include the channels below:

- Annual General Meeting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from Shareholders at its AGM. Sharehoiders have the opportupity to meet the
Directors and Manager and to address questions ta them directly. The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation on the Company’s performance and the future outlook. The
Company values any feedback and questions it may receive from Shareholders ahead of and
during the AGM and takes action or makes changes, when and &s appropriate.

TINYNUIADD

Publications - The annual and half year reports are made available on the website

and sent to shareholders. These publications provide informaticn on the Company and

its portfolio of investments and a better understanding of the Trust’s financiai position.
This is supplemented by daily publication of the NAV on the Stock Exchange and

monthly factsheets on the Company's website. The Company is open to feedback from
shareholders to improve its publications. !

Shareholder meetings - The Manager meets with shareholders periodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

- Working with the Brokers - The Mznager and Brokers work together to maintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with regular updates at meetings and outside meetings if required.

- Shareholder concerns - in the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns
with the Board, they are welcome to do 50 at any time by writing to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senior Independent Director is also available to Sharehclders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has failed to resolve
or for which such contact is inappropriate.

- The Manager

Holding the Company’s
shares offers investors a
liquid investment vehicle
through which they can obtain
- exposure to the Company’s
: diversified portfolio. The
" Investment Manager’s
performance is critical for
the Company to successfully
deliver its investment strategy
and meet its objective.

ensure a close dialogue is maintained.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the Manager is crucial, as
the Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in
line with the {ompany’s investment objective. important components in the collaboration
with the Mznager, representative of the Company’s culture include those listed below.

Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all levels, allowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking.

Ensuring that the impact on the Manager is fully considered and understood before any
business decision is made.

Ensuring that any potential centlicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.

The Board holds detailed discussions with the Manager on all key strategic and operational
topics on an ongoing basis. In addition, the Chairman regularly meets with the Manager to
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Stakeholder Group and why Buaﬁl engagement

they are important

| External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the
‘ Depository and the Broker

Arange of advisers enables
the Company to function as
an investment trust and a

constituent of the FISE 250 to

ensure it meets its relevant
obligations.

The Board maintains regular contact with its key external providers and receives regular
. 1eporting from them through the Board and committee meetings, as well as outside of
" the reqular meeting cycle. Their advice, 2s well as their needs and views are routinely

taken into account. The Management Engagement Committee formally assesses their

. performance, fees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the

key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately
remunerated to deliver the expected level of service. The Audit Committee reviews and
evaluates the control environments in place at each service provider as appropriate.

Lenders

Availability of funding and
liquidity are crucial to the
Company’s ability to take
advantage of investment
oppaortunities as they arise.

_Regulators

The Board needs to demonstrate to lenders that it is @ well-managed business, capable of
consistently delivering long-term returns.

" The Company can only
operate with the approval
of its regulators who have

‘2 legitimate interest in how
the Company cperates in
the market and treats its

shareholders.

The Board regularly considers how it meets various requlatory and statutory obligations and
follows voluntary and best-practice quidance, including how any governance decisions it
makes can have an impact on its stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the longer-term.

-

" {nvestee Companies

Portfolio companies are
ultimately shareholders
assets and the Board
recognises the importance
of good stewardship and

communication with investee

companies in meeting the
Company’s investment
objective and strategy.

The Manager communicates reqularly with portfolio companies and is an engaged
shareholder {on behalf of the Company).

The Board monitors the Manager’s stewardship arrangements and receives regular feedback
on meetings with the management of portfolio companies and voting at their general
meetings.

The Board 1s always mindful of the requirement to act In
the best interests of shareholders as a2 whole and to have
regard to other applicable section 172 factors which form
part of Board's decision-maiang process. The fallowing
key decisions taken by the Board dunng the year ended
31 March 2021 are exampies of this.

GEARING

Dunng the financial year, the Company continued to utilise

Its exising revoiving annual loan facilines and following

a review of lhe avallable options each were renewed on
broadly similay terms as the renewals fell due throughout the
year. The Board 1s keen to maintain a wide fange of banking
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relationships to ensure that it has access to a diverse range
of terms and 15 not reliant on any one provider The facilities
provide flexibility and complement the fonger-term private

placement fixed term debt that is in place

Using revenue reserves to suppoft the dividends paid
to shareholders.

Subject 1o shareholder approval of the proposed final
dividend, the Company paid a total dividend of 14.20p for the
finangial year, representing an increase of 1.40% compared
to the previous year The financial year was a perod of
uncertainty, when many companies, particutarly within the
UK and Eurone, either cut, postponed or cancelled thew



dividends. The Board recognises the impertance of dividends
to shareholders and after careful review of the Company’s
revenue forecasts and reserves logether with the investment
outlook with the Manager, the Board decided Lhat,
notwithstanding the exceptional market conditions, it would
draw on the revenue reserve to support the dividend.

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

Dunng the year the Board continued (o focus on the
performance of the Manager In achieving the Ccmpany’s
investment objective within an appropnale nsk framewaork.
Following the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic in March
2020, the focus widened to consider the potential impact of
COVID-19 on the Company (including portfolio activity, nsks and
opporlunilies, geanng, revenue forecasts and the operations
of other third party providers) to ensure that the portiolio had
sufficient resitience together with the Company's operational
stiuclure Lo meel the unprecedented circumstanges.

DIRECTORATE

The Board's policy on tenure was reviewed during Lhe

year. The stability of the Board during cne ol lhe most
challenging periods was considered important particularly
as appointments had been made to the Board in Oclober
201% and January 2020. Therefore, no changes were made
to the Board compaosition during the financial year However,
the Board is mindful of the importance of having a suitable
succession plan especially as David Watson has served on
the Baard since 2012 and Simon Marrison since 2011

CULTURE AND BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Beard 1s in agreement that having a good corporate
culture, particularly 1n1ls engagement with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders will aid delvery
of its long term strategy. The Board promotes a cuiture
ol openness, In line with this purpose through ongoing
engagement with its service praviders and the Manager.

The Cireclors agree that establishing and matntaining

a healthy corporale culture within the Board and In 1ts
interaction with the Manager, Shareholders and other
stakeholders will suppert the delivery of 1ts purpose, values
and strateqy. The Board seeks to promole a culture of
openness, debate and integrity through ongoing dialogue
and engagement with its service praviders, pancipally the
Manager. The Board strives to ensure thal s culture 1s i
line with the Company’s purpase, values and strateqy.

The Company has a number of policies and procedures
n place to assist with maintaining a cuiture of good

governance including those relating to diversity,

Directors’ conflicts of interest and Directors” dealings in

the Company’s shares. The Board assesses and monitors
comphance with these policies as well as the general
culture of the Board reqularly through Board meetings and
in particular during the annual evalualion process which is
undartaken by each Director (for more information see the
Board evalualion secticn on page 57).

The Board seeks 1o appoint the best passibie service
providers and evaluates their service on a regular basis
as described on page 53. The Board considers the culture
of lhe Manager and other service providers, including
their policies, practices and behaviour, through reqular
reporting from these stakeholders and in particular during
the annual review of the performance and continung
appointment of all service providers

EMPLOYEE, SOTIAL IMPACT AND WIDER
COMMUNITY

The Board recognises the requirement under the Compantes
Acl 2006 to detail information about human nghts,
employees and community issues, including information
about any palicies it has in relation to Lhese matters and
the effectiveness of these policies. These requirements,
praclically, are not applicable to the Company as 1t has no
employees, all the Directors are nen-executive and it has
outsourced all operational functions to third-party service
providers. Therefore, the Company has not 1eparted further
in respect of these provisions.

DIRECTORS INDEMNITY

Directors’ and Officers’ hability insurance cover is 1n
place in respect of the Directors The Company's Articies
of Association provide, subject to the provisions of UK
legislation, an indemnity for Directars in respect of costs
which they may incur relating to the defence of any
proceedings brought against them arising out of their
positions as Directors, 1In which they are acquitted or
Jjudgement 15 given in their favour by the court.

To the extent permitted by law and by the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Cornpany has entered into
deeds of indemnity for the benelit of each Directer of

the Company in respect of habililies which may attach to
them in their capacity as Directers of the Company. These
provisions, which are qualifying third party indemnity
provisions as defined by section 234 of the Cempanies
Act 2006, were introduced in January 2007 and currently
remain In force.
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DIRECTORS' STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time
of approving the Directors’ report are fisted on pages 38
and 3%. Having made enquiries of feliow directors and of
the Company's auditors, each of these Directors confums
that

to the best of each Director's knowledge and telief,
there 1s no information (that is, information needed by
the Company’s auditors in connection with preparing
their repott) of which the Company’s audinors are
unaware; and

each Director has taken all the steps a Birector might
reasonably be expecled to have taken to be aware of
relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditors are aware of that information

This infarmation is given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of Seclion 418 of the
Compantes Act 2006.

By arder of the Board

David Watsan
Chairman

3 June 2021
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Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Chairman- far Walson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Review Lhe Board and Its Comnmittees and make
recommendations in relation to structure, size and
composition, the balance of kncwledge, experience
and skill ranges;

Consider succession planning and tenure pohicy and
aversee the development ol a diverse pipeline;

Consider the re-election of Cirectors; and
Review the outcome of the board evaluation process.

The Nomination Commutiee meets al least on an annual
basis, and mare Irequently as and when required and [ast
mel in tMarch 2021.

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

The Cammittee discussed succession planning of the
Board, the tenure and diversity polictes,

The Committee annually reviews the size and structure

of the Beard and witl continue Lo review succession
planning and further recruitrnent and lake into account the
recommmendations of external Board evaluations

BOARD EVALUATION

Following the engagement of im Stephenson of
Stephenson & Co, to faahitate an independent evaluation
of the effectiveness of the Board. its commitlees and
the performance of each direclor lor the year ended

31 March 2020. The annual evaluation for the year ended
31 March 2021 was carried out by the Company. This
look the form of questionnaires followed by discussions
to identify the effectiveness of the Board's activities,
including its Committees.

The Chairman also reviewed with each Director their
individual performance, contribution and commitment.
The appraisal of the Chairman followed the same format
and was led by Simon Marrison. The results of the
evaluation process were presented to and considered by
the Board. There were no significant actions ansing from
the evaluation process and 1t was agreed that the current
composition of the Board and its Commuttees rellected a
suitable mix of skills and experience, and that the Board
as a whole, the individua! Directors and its Commuttees
were functioning effectively.

After careful consideration, particularly of the Beard's Pelicy
Governing Board Members’ Tenure and Reappointment, all
of the directors, will be offering themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM It is considered thal each of them
merit re-election by shareholders. Further information on

each directors” skills and their contribution to the Board are
outlined in the directors” biographies on pages 38 and 39

In accordance wath the provisions of the Code. its the
intention of the Board lo engage an external faalitator to
assist with the performance evaluation every three years
and the next external evaluation will be carried out for
the year ended 31 March 2023 The Board will continue 1o
complete an internal beard evaluation annually within the
intervening years,

BOARD'S POLICY ON TENURE

In line with the update of the Code in 2018, Lhe AIC has
updated its Code of Corporate Governance in 2019, The AIC
recommended, under Provision 24, a different approach Lo
lenure in relation to Investment companies, considening
how they differ to chairs of operating companies, where
the Board does nat have a chief executive The Board took
mnto consideration the approach and introduced the ‘Palicy
Governing Board Members’ Tenure and Reappointment’
This palicy outlines the Company's approach to tenure and
reappointment of non-executive directars. It highlights the
Board's belief that the value brought through continuity
and experience of Directors with longer periods of service
15 nol only desirable, but essential in an investment
company The Board did not feel that it would be
appropriate to set a specific lenure it for individual
Directors or the Chairman of the Board or its ccmmuttees
Instead, the Board will seek to recruit a new Director on
average every thiee years so 3s regularly to bring Lhe
challenge of fresh thinking into the Board's discussions,
ensuring that on each occasion that the Board enters into
new investment commitments, at least half the Board
members have direct personal experience of negotiating
previous commitments with the Manager.

DIRECTORS  TRAINING

when a new Cirector 1s appoinled, he/she 15 offered
traming o suil their needs Nirectars are 3lso provided
with key information on the Company’s activities on

a reqular basis, including requlatory and statutory
requirements and internal controls. Changes affecting
Directors’ responsibilities are advised to the Board as they
arise. Birectors ensure that they are updatad on regulatory,
statutory and industry matters.
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Report of the fian

MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Chaimen: FA Watson
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MANAGEMENT FEES

The fee for the period under review was a fixed fee of
£3,745,000 plus an ad valorem fee of 0.20% pa based on
the net asset value (determined 1n accordance with the
AlC method of valuation) on the last day of March, June,
September and Gecember, payable quarterly in advance

The fee arrangements have been reviewed by the Board
far the year to 31 March 2022 and the fixed element of the
fee and the ad valorem rate will remain unchanged

The Board continues to consider that the fee structure
aligns the interests of the shareholder and the Manager as
well as being tighly competitive

The fee arrangernents will continue to be reviewed on an
annual basis,

PERFORMANCE FEES

In addition to the management fees, Lhe Beard has agreed
to pay the Manager perfoimance related fees in respect of
an accounting period if certain performance objectives are
achieved.

A perlormance fee s payable if the total return of adjusted
net assets (after deduclion of all Base Management
Fees and cther expenses), as defined in the IMA, at

31 mMarch each year cutperforms the total return of the
Company’s benchmark plus 1% (the “hurdle rate™); this
cutperformance {expressed as a percentage) is known
as the "percentage cutperformance” Any fee payable
witl be the amount equivalent to the adjusted net assets
at 31 March each year multiplied by the percentage
outperformance, then multiphed by 15% The maximum
performance fee payable for a period ts capped at 15%
of the adjusted net assets However, If the adjusted

net assels at the end of any pencd are less than at the
beginning of the pernod, the maximum performance fee
pavable will be imited to 1% of the adjusted net assets.

If the Lotal return of shareholders” funds for any
performance penad is less than the benchmark for the
relevant performance period, such underperformance
{expressed as a percentage) will be carned forward to
future performance periods

it any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance
(expressed as a percentage) will he carried forward and
apphed to offset any percentage underperformance

in future performance penods. In the event that the
benchmark 1s exceeded but the hurdle 1s not, that
outperformance of the benchmark can be used to offset
past of future underperformance. These amounts can
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be used for offset purposes only and therefore cannot
have the effect of creating a fee 1n a year where a fee
would not otherwise be payable or increasing the fee
in thal year. At 31 March 2021 there 15 a carry lorward of
autperformance of 1.8% (2020 1.8%).

No fee will be payable untess the adjusted net assets
outperform the hurdle rate, after taking into account

any accumulated percentage underperformance

brought lorward at the beginning of the financial year
Performance fees earned in the year ended 31 March
2027 were £9,659,000 (2020, £2,683,000). Tolal fees

paid to the Manager in any cne year (Management and
Perfarmance Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity
Shareholders’ Funds. Total fees payable for the year to 31
March 2021 amount to 1.2% (2020 0.8%) of Group Equity
Shareholders’ Funds.

DEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

BNP Paribas was appainted as Depositary on 14 July 2014
in accordance with the AIFMD The Depositary's
responsibilities include- cash manitenng; segregation and
safe keeping af the Company's finanaal instcuments; and
manitonng the Company’s compliance with investment
and leverage requirements. The Depositary receives

for its services a fee of 2.0 basis points per annum on
the first £150 mullion of the Company's assets, 1.4 basis
poINts per annum on assets above £150 mithon and
below £500 million and 0 75 basis paints on assels above
£500 million

REVIEW OF THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS' FEES

Custody and Adrministeation Services are provided by

BNP Panbas and Company Secretanal Services by Link
Company Matters The fees for these services are charged
drrectly 1o the Company and are contained within

other administrative expenses disclosed in notes to the
accounts

David Watson

3 June 2027



Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODULTION

The Board has prepared this report and the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, in accordance with the reguirements
of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Requlations 2013. An
ordinary resolution {or the approval of this report will be
put to the members at the forthcaming Annual General
Meeting.

The law requires the Company's Auditors, KPMG LLP

to audit certain of the disclosures provided Where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated as such.
The Auditor's opinion is included in the ‘Independent
Auditor’s Report”

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE COMMITTEE

The MEC met in March 2021 and considered the results
and feedback from the boaid evaluation alongside

other factors. The MEC also considered the frequency of
remuneration increases for the Trust, feedback from the
market and investors on the level of frequency and the
cutrent impact of the outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19).

Following the MEC meeting in March 2027, it was agreed
that the current level of remuneration for the Board of the
Trust remained appropnate. It was alse agreed that the
Non-executive Director’s fee would remain at £35,000 per
annum with effect from 1 Apnl 2021 It was further agreed
that the Direclors holding the role of the Audit Committee
Chairman and Senior Independent Cirector would continue
to receive an additional £5,000 to reflect the increase in
their responsibilities. Moreover, it was agreed that the
Chairman’s rermuneralion would remain at £70,000.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s policy 15 that the fees payable to the
Directors should reflecl the tme spent by the Board on
the Company’s affairs and the respansibilities borne by the
Diseclors and should be sufficient to enable candidates of
high calibre to be recruited. The policy 15 for the Chairman
of the Board, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
the Senior Independent Director o be paid higher fees

than the other Directors in recognition of their more
onerous roles This policy was approved by the members
at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’ intention is that this
will continue for the year ending 31 March 2023,

The Directors are remunerated in the form of fees,
payable monthly in arrears, to the Director personally or
Lo a third party specified by that Director. There are no
long-term incentive schemes, share oplion schemes or
pension arrangements and the fees are not specifically
telated to the Direclors’ performance, either individually or
collectively.

The Board consists entirely of Non-executive Cirectars,
who are appointed with Lhe expectation that they will
serve for a period of three years. Directors” appointments
are reviewed formally every three years thereafter by the
Board as a whale None of the Directors have & contract
of service and a Director may resign by notice in writing
to the Board at any time; there are no notice periods. The
terms of their appointment are detailed in a ietter to them
when they join the Board. As Lhe Directors do not have
sefvice contracts, the Company does not have a policy on
termination payments.

There is no notice period and no payments for loss of
office were made dunng the period The Company's
Arlicles ol Assaciation currently limit the total aggregate
fees payable to the Board tc £300,000 per annum.

Shareholders’ views in respect of Directers’ remuneration
are communicated at the Company's AGM and are taken
into account in formulating the Directors remuneration
policy. At the last AGM, over 99.6% of shareholders voled
for the resolution approving the Directors’ Remuneration
Report (0.4% againsl) Al the 2020 AGM, aver 99% voted
for the resclution approving the Directors’” Remuneration
Policy (0.4% against), showing signilicanl shareholder
support.

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-executive Directors, which are comprised in the
Directors’ remuneration policy of the Company are set out
below, with & description and approach to determination.
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| Fixed Fees Additional Fees Expenses Fees Other
The aggregate fimit for the Additional fees may be paid  The Directors are entitled Board members are not
Fees for the Board as a whole to any Director who fulfils the to be paid all reasonable eligible for bonuses, pension
is £300,000 per annum, in role of the Chairman, who expenses propefly incurred benefits, share options,
accordance to the Articles of  chairs any committee of the by them attending meetings  long-term incentive schemed
Association, which is divided . Board or who is appointed with shareholders or other or other non-cash benefits or .
between the Directors as as the Senior Independent Directors or otherwise . taxable expenses.
they may deem appropriate.  Director. in connection with the
Annual fees are set to These fees will be set discharge of their duties as
reflect the experience of at a competitive level to . Directors.
each board member and refiect experience and time

" time commitment required commitment.
by Boaid members ta carry
out their duties and is
determined with reference to
the appointment of Directors
ot similar investment
companies.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

For the year ended 31 March 2021, Directors’ fees were paid at the annual rates of Chairman: £76,000 (2020: £70,000)
and all other directors: £35,000 (2020: £35,000) An edditional £5.000 is paid per annum for each of the roles of Audit
Committee Chairrman and Senior Independent Director The actual amounts paid Lo the Directors during the financial year
under review are as shawn below

AMOUNT OF EACH DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS (AUDITED)
The fees payable in respect of each of the Directors whao served during the financial year were as foliows:.

31 March 2011 31 March 2020

£ £

David Watson® 60,461 40,0400
Simon Marrison? 38,110 35,000
Tim Gillbanks 40,000 40,000
Kate Bolsover 35,000 17,500
Sarah-Jane Curtis 35,000 6,372
Hugh-Seaborn'® 23,3313 70,000
Total ) T - S 232,204 T 208,872

All fees are at 3 fixed rale and there 15 no variable remuneration Fees are pio-rated where a change takes place durnng
a hinanaial year There were no payments to third parties included in the fees referred to 1n the table above There are no
further fees to disclose as the Company has no employees, chief executive or executive directors

gpponted as Chainmgr on 28 uly 2620
% appeinled as Ser or Irdependent Director on 28 uly 2020
% retirec 2s Chairman on 28 july 2620
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Directors’ Remuneratian Report 2o hnied

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The giaph below compares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2021, the percentage change over each period

In the share price tolal return to shareholders compared

to the share price total return of benchmark, which the
Board considers to be the most appropniale benchmark

for investment performance measurement purposes, An
explanalion of the perfermance of the Company is given In
the Chairman’s Statement and Manager’s Report.

Performance Graph - Share Price Total Return for
Ordinary Share Class

4000

3500

1000

00

MasTE MR MarTd Mane MalS MEI6 MM Maril Maetd M2 MarD

M TR Pioperty Share Price Total Return Bl Benchmark Total Return

Share Price Tatal Return asstming investment of £7,000 an 31 March 2017 and
reinvestment of ail dividends (excluding dealing expenses) (Sauice Thames
River Capetal)

Benchmark Total Return assuming notional investment into the index of £1,000 on
37 March 2017 (Source. Thames River Camital)

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES (AUDITED)

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the
Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year, or
date of appointment, if |ater, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

David Watson 36,083 35,692
Simon Marrison 43,367 42,326
Tim Gillbanks - -
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360

Sarah-Jane Curtis - _

Since 31 March 2021 to the date of this report, there have
been no subsequent changes Lo the Directors’ interests in
the shares of the Company

Relative importance of Spend on Pay

2021 2020
! £'000 £000

change
Dividends paid 44,429 43,794 1.4%
Directors’ fees 232 209 1.0%

Five year change comparison
Over the last live years, Directors’ pay has increased as set
out In the table below:

2021 2016

£000 £000 Change
Chairman 70,000 70,600 0%
Audit Committee
Chairman 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Senior Independent
Director 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Director 35,000 30,000 16.7%

For and on behalf of the Board

David Watson

3 June 2021
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Report of the Audit Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman: Mr Gillbarnks

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES
Review the internal financiai and non-finanaial controls,

Review reports from key third party service providers;

Consider and recommend o the Boaid for approval Lhe
contents of the draft Intenm and Annual Reports,

Review accounting poliaies and significant financial
reporting judgements;

Monitor, together with the Manager, the Company’s
comphance with financal reporting and requlatory
requirements,

The review and subsequent propasal to the Board of
the interim and final dividends; and

Considering the impact of providing non-audit services
on the external Auditor’s independence and objectivity

Representalives of the Manager's internal audit and
comphance departments may attend these committee
meelings at the Committee Chairman's request

Representatives of the Company’s Auditor attend the
Commitlee meetings at which the draft Interim and
Annual Report and Accounts are reviewed, and are given
the opportunily Lo speak to the Committee members
without the presence of the representatives of the
Manager.

The Board recognises the requirement for the Audit
Committee as a whole 1o have compelence relevant

to the sector and at least one member with recent and
relevant financial experience The Chairman and mr
Watson are Chartered Accountants with extensive and
recent experience In the Financiat Services Industry The
other members of the Committee have 3 combination of
prapenty, finanaial, Investment and business experignce
threugh seniar positions held throughout their careers,

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR
Dunng the year the Committee met twice with all

members st each meeting and considered Lhe following:

Consideration of the Risk Map, any changes to the
likelihood or impact of nsks and consequential
changes required to Board Monitorning and mitigation
procedures Consideration of any new or emerging
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nisks and inclusion in the Risk Map if appropriate. This
has included consideration of the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic and impact across a range of sk categories;

The Group’s Internal Controls and consideration of the
Reports thereon;

The ISAE/AAF and SSAET6 reports or their equivalent
from BMO and BNP Paribas,

Whether the Company should have its own internal
audil functien,

The External Auditor’s Planning Memorandum setting
out the scope of the annual audit and propesed key
areas of focus;

The reports from the Audilors concerning their audit
of the Financial Slatements of the Company and
Consideration of Significant 1ssues in relation to the
Finanaal Statements;

The appropriateness of, and any changes to, the
accounting policies of the Company, including the
reasonableness of any judgements required by such
policies;

The Viability Statement and consideration of the
preparation of the Finanoal Statements on & Going
Concern Basis taking account of forward looking income
farecasts, the hiquidity of the mvestment portfolio and
debt profile;

The financial and other disclosures in the Financial
Statements:

The information presented in the tnterim and Annual
Reports to assess whether, taken as a whole, the
Reports are fair, balanced and understandable and the
information presented will enable the sharehelders to
assess the Company’s position, performance, business
model and strategy;

The performance of the external auditors, to approve
their audit fees and consider the assessment of
independence;

The review and subsequent proposal to the Board of
the interim and final dividends, and

The reviewal of the Commuttee’s Terms of Reference,
ensunng they remain appropnate and comphant with
the 2078 UK Corporate Governance {ode



Report of the Audit Committee contiuag

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND MANAGEMENT OF
RISK

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system
of Internal Controls and for reviewing their effectiveness.
Key risks 1dentified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Commuttee to ensure that rebust internal controls
and monitoring procedures 1n respect of these are 1n place
an an ongaing basis. Further details can be found on

page 28 to 32.

The Audit Committee recerved and considered reports on
Internal Controls from the key service providers. No areas
cf concern were highlighted.

The Company’s Risk Map was considered toidentify any
new risks and whether any adjustments were required to
existing nisks, and the controls and mitigation measures
in place in respect of these nsks. The impact of COVID-19,
the respanse of financial markets, the cngoing impact

on economies around the world and operational changes
made by our service providers in response to government
quidelines were considered and the risk map adjusted
accordingly

Based on the processes and controls in place within the
BMC Group and other sigmificant service providers, the
Board has concuried that there 15 no current need for the
Company te have a dedicaled internal audtt function.

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IN RELATION TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Commillee has considered this report and financial
statements and the Viability Statement on pages 33

angd 34. The Commitiee considered the Auditor’s
assessment of risk of material misstatement and reviewed
the internal contrels in place i respect of the key areas
identified and the process by which the Board monitors
each of the procedures 1o give the Committee comfort

on these rnisks on an ongoing basis These risks are also
highlighted in the Company’s Risk Map

Carrying amount of listed investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The Gioup’s investments are
priced for the daily NAV by BNP Panbas. The guoted
assets are priced by the Administiatoi's Globdl Pricing
Platform which uses independent external prnicing
sources. The control process surrounding this is set
out in the BNP Panbas AAF 01/06 Internal Controls
Report and testing by the reporting accountant for the
pentod reported to 31 December 2020 did not reveal
any signilicant exceptions. The quarterly control report
to the Board from BNP Paribas covening the period up

lo 31 March 2021 had no significant 1ssues to report.
In addition the Manager estimates the NAV using
an allernative pricing scurce on a daily basis as an
independent check.

The Auditors agreed 100% of Lhe lisled investments
of the portfalic to externatly queled prices and
independently received third parly confirmations from
investment custodians and found the carrying value of
listed investments to be acceptable.

Valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The physica! property
portfolio is valued every six months by professional
independent valuers.

Knight Frank LLP value the portfolic on the basis of
Fair value in accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Slandards VP54 (1.5) Fair Value and VPGA
1 Valuations for Inclusion in Financial Statements,
which apply the defimition of Fair value adopted by
the International Financial Reporting Standards. {FRS 13
defines Fair value as:

“The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, a
tiahility settled, or an equily instrument granted could
be exchanged, between knowledgeable, willing parties
n ain arm’s length transaction”

in undertaking their valuation of each property, Knight
Frank make their assessment on the basis of a coifation
and analysis of appropriate comparable investiments,
rental and sale Iransactions, together with evidence

of demand within the vicinity of each properly This
information (s then applied to the properties, taking
into account size, focation, terms, covenant and other
material factors.

The board has reviewed reporis from the Manager and
the external valuer and delermuned the valuation to be
reasonable.

The Auditars have set out their detailed testing and
procedures in respect of the Direct property valuation
and concluded that they found the Company s valuation
of investmenti properties to be acceplable.

There has been nothing brought o the Committee’s
attention in respect of the finanaial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021, which was matenal or significant or
thal the Committee felt should be brought to sharehalders’
altention.
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AUDITOR ASSESSMENT AND INDEPENDENCE

The Company's external auditor, KPMG LLP was
appawted as the Company’s auditors at the 2076 AGM,
The Committee expecls to repeat a tender process no
later than 2026 in respect of the audit for the following
31 March year end, in ine with the lalest Corporate
Governance provisions

During the year, KPMG presented their Audit Plan for

the year end at the interim Cornmittee meeting and the
Commitiee considered the audit process and fee proposal.
The Commiltee also reviewed KPMG's independence
policies and procedures including quality assurance
procedures. It was considered thal these policies are fit
for purpose and the Directors aie satisfied thal KPmG are
independent.

Total fees payable o the Auditor 1n respedt of the audit for
the year 10 31 March 2021 were £80,000 (2020: £80,000),
which were approved by the Audit Commiltee.

The Comrmittee has approved and implemented a policy
on the engagement of the Auditor to supply non-audit
services, taking into account the recommendations of
the Accounting Practices Board with a view to ensurning
that the external Auditor does not provide non-audit
services that have the potential to imparr of appear Lo
imparr the independence of their audit role. 1n addition,
the Committee reviewed the actions put in place by the
Auditor to ensure there was a clear separation between
audit and advisory services, The Commitlee does nol
believe there to be any iImpediment to the Auditor’s
cbjectivity and independence

The fees for non-audit services for the year to 31 March
2021 were nit (2020 nil).

Fuil details of the Auditor’s fees are provided in note 6 to
the accounts on page 79

The Board noted that Mr Kelly, the current partner, was
appoinied for the 2017 year-end audit and will continue

as partner only until the conclusion of the 2021 year-end
audit. Mr Merchant wiil replace Mr Kelly 35 audit partner
for the 2022 year-end audit. Mr Merchant has considerable
expenence in the Financial Services sector and the audit of
Investment Trust Companies
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Following each audit, the Committee reviews the audit
process and considers its effectiveness and the quality
of the services provided to the Company. Within this
process, the Committee takes into consideration their
own assessment, the self-evaluation of the auditor and
the Audit Quality Review Report produced by the FRC in
order to monitor the progress of the Auditar’s performance
comparabie with its peer and the targets set by the FRC,
The review following the completion of the 2020 Audit
concluded that the Committee was satisfied with the
Auditor’s effectiveness and performance.

The Commuttee felt that KPMG had run an effective

and efficient audit process with appropriate challenge.
Subsequently, a resolution to re-appoint KPMG LLP as
the Company’'s Auditor will be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM

Tim Gillbanks

3 June 2021



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the

Group financial statements

The directors are responsible far preparing the Annual
Report, the Strategic Report, the Directors Repoit and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
requlations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group
and Parent Company financial staternenls lor each
financial year. Under that law they are required to
prepare the Group financial statements in accordance
with international accounting standards in conlormity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable law ang have elected to prepare the Parent
Company financial statements on the same basis. In
addition the Groug financial statements are required under
the UK Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules to
be prepared in accordance with internaticnal Financial
Reporting Standards adopled pursuant to Requlation {EC)
No 1606/2002 as it apples i the European Union.

Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affarrs of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group’s prafit or
loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and
Parent Company financial statements, the directors are
required ta:

select suitable accounling pohcies and then apply them
consistently;

make judgements and estimates thal are reasonable,
relevant and reliable;

slate whether they have been prepared in accordance
wilh international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the group financial statements, International
Financtal Reporling Standards adopted pursuant to
Regulation {EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
European Union;

assess the Group and Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and

use the gaing concern basis of accounting unless they
either intend to hquidate the Group or the Parent
Company oi to cease operations, or have na realistic
alternative but to do 50

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting recards that are suffiaent to show and explain
the Parent Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy al any hme the financial posihon

of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure thal

Its financial statements camply with the Companies Act
2006 They are responsible for such internal contral as
they determine is necessary o enable the preparation
of inanaial slatements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safequard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
Irregularities.

Under applicable law and requlations, the directors are
also responsible for prepanng a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate
Governance Statement that complies with that law and
those regulations.

The directors afe responsible for the mainlenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website. Legislation n the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legisiation in other
Jurisdiclions.

RESPONSIBIHLITY STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Each of the directors confirms that to the best of their
knowledge:

the financial statements, prepared 1n accordance with
the applicable sel of accounling standards, give a true
and fair view of the assels, labihties, financial position
and profit or loss of the Group and Parent Company and
the undertakings included in the consolidaticon taken as
a whole; and

the strateqgic report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the ssuer and the undertakings included

in the consolidation taken as 3 whole, together with a
description of the principal nisks and uncertainties that
they face

The Directors consider the annual reporl and accounts,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for shareholders
lo assess the group's position and performance, business
model and strategy.

By order of the Board

David Watson

3 June 2021
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust pic

1. OUR OPINION 15 UNMODIFIED

We have audited the financial statements of TR Property
investment Trust Plc {"the Company”) for the year ended
31 March 2027 which compnise the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Group and Company Statements
of Changes in Equity, Group and Company Balance Sheets,
Group and Company Cash Flow Statements and the related
notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.

in our opinign:

— The financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2021
and of the Group’s return for the year then ended;

— The Group financial statements have been propesty
prepared In accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards;

— The Parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and as applied n
accordance with the prowvisions of the Companies Act
2006, and

— The finanaial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the reguirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statemments, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation to the extent
applicable.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) ("1SAs (UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient
and appropriate basis for our opinion. Qur audit opinion is
consistent with our report to the audit committee,

Materiality:
Financial statements
as a whole

£14.9m (2020:£12.5m)
1% {2020: 1%) of Total Assets

Key audit matters vs 2020
Recurring risks vafuation of direct
pioperty investments 9
Carrying amount of listed
investments O

We were firsl appointed as audilor by the Directors on

2 November 2016 The period of lota! uninterrupted
engagernent 1s for the 5 finanaial years ended 31 March
2021 we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities

under, and we remain independent ol the Company 1n
accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the
FRC Ethical Standard as applied to histed public interest
enlities. No non-audil services prehibited by that standard
were provided.

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: INCLUDING OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of matenal misstatement {whether or not due to
fraud) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect on. the overall audit strateqy; the allocation of
resgurces in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summmarise below the key audit matters
{unchanged from 2020), 1in decreasing order of audit significance, in arnving at our audit opinion above, together wath
our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public interest entities, our results from those
procedures These rmalters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and
sofely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters
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Independent auditor’s report cortinued

The risk Our response

Valuation of direct
property investments

(Group and Parent
Company}

(£83.1 millian,
2020 £945 mullion)

Refer to pages 58 to 60
(Audil Commiltee Report),
page 74 and 75 {accounting
palicy), and note 10 on
pages 82 to 85 (financial
disclosures).

Subjective valuation:

5.6% (2020, 7.5%) of the Group’s
total assets (by value) are held in

INvestment properties

The fair value of each property
requires sigmificant estimation,

in particular wath regard o
the key estimated rental
value and yield assumplions
The key assumptions will be

impacted by 3 number of factors
including quality and condition

of the building and tenant
covenant strength,

The elfect of these matters
is that, as pait of our nisk
assessment, we determined

that the valuation of Investment
properties has a high degree of
estimation uncertainly, with a
potential range of reasonable

cutcomes greater than our
matenalty for the inancal
statements as a whole. The

finanaial staternents (note 10)
disclose the sensitivity estimated

by the Group.

We performed the detailed tests below rather than
seeking to rely on controls, because the nature

of the balance is such that we would expect to
obtain audit evidence primanly through the detailed
procedures descnbed-

OQur procedures included:

— Assessing valver’s credentials: Using our own
property valuation specslist, we evaluated the
competence, experience and independence of the
external valuer,

— Tests of Detail: We compared the information
provided by the Group Lo ils external property
valuer for a sample of properties, such as rental
income and tenancy data (o supporting documents
including lease agreements;

— Methodology choice: We held discussions with
the Group's external property valuer to determine
the valuation methadology used. We included our
own property valuation specialist to assist us in
cnbically assessing the results of the valuer's report
by checking that the valuations were i accordance
with the RICS Valuation Professional Standards
‘the Red Baok’ and IFRS and that the methodology
adopted was apprapriate by reference to
acceptable valuation praclice,

— Benchmarking assumptions: With the
assistance of our own property valualion specialist,
we held discussions with the Group's external
property valuer to understand movements in
property values For a sample of properties, we
assessed the key assumptions used by the valuer
upon which the valuations are based, including
those relating to estimated rental value and vield,
by making a compar:son to our own understanding
of the market and Lo industry benchmarks;

— Assessing transparency: We also considered the
adequacy of the Groups disclosures about the degree
ol estmation and sensitivity to key assumplion made
when valuing the direct property Investments

Our results:

— We found the valuation of investment properties to
be acceptable {2020 acceptable).
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Carrying amount of listed

investments
(Group and Parent)

(£1,3174 mllion;
2020- £1,060.1 million)

Refer to pages 58 to 60
{Audit Committee Report},
page 75 (accounting policy)
and note 10 on pages 82

to 85 {financial disclosures).

The risk
Low risk, high value:

The Group's portfolio of quoted
fevel Tinvestments makes up

88 2% (2020: 84.4%) of the
Group's lotal assets (by value)
and 15 one of the key drivers of
results. We do not consider Lhese
investments lo be at a high risk
of significant misstatement, or
to be subject to a significant
level of judgement because
they comprise liquid, quoted
investments. However, due o
therr matenality in the context
of the fmancial statements as a
whole, they are considered o
be one of the areas which had
the greatest effect on our overall
audit stiategy and allocation

of resources In planning and

Our response

we performed the detailed tests below rather than
seeking to rely on controls, because the nature of

the balance 1s such that detailed testing 15 determined
10 be the most effective manner of oblaning

audit evidence,

Qur procedures included.

— Test of detail: Agreeing the valuation of 100%of
level 1listed investments in the portfolio to
externally quoted prices; and

— Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100% of level
1 listed investment holdings in the portfolio to
independently recerved third party confirmations
from imvestment custodians,

Our results

— We found the carrying amount of listed
investments to be acceptable (2020 acceptable).

completing our audit

3. OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN
OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Mateniahty for the financial statements as a whole was
sel at £14.9m (2020: £12 5m), delermined with reference
to a benchmark of total assets, of which it represents
1.0% (2020: 10%).

Materiality for the Parent Company financial statements as
a whole was at £141m (2020: 12.0m) determined as § %%
of the total assets of the parent company (2020, 0 9%).

In fine with our audit methodology, our procedures on

indraduat account balances and disclosures were perfarmed

10 3 lower threshold, performance matenality, so as to reduce

1o an acceptable level the risk that individually immaterial
misstatements in individual account batances add up to a matenal
amount across the financial statements as a whole. Performance
matenality was set at 75% (2019- 75%) of matenality for the
financial statements as a whole, which equates to £111m (2020
£9.4m) for the Group and £10 5m (2020. £5.0m) for the Parent
Company. We applied this percentage in our determination of
performance materality because we did not identify any factors
Indicating an elevated level of nisk.

In addiion, we appled matenalty of £2 0m (2020,
£3.2m) and performance matenality of £1.5m {2020
£2.4m) to investment income, ather operating income,
gross rental income, service charge income and net
returns on contract for differences for which we believe
misstatements of lesser amounts than materniality for
the financial statements as a whaole could reasonably
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be expected te influence the Company's members’
assessment of the financial performance of the Company

We agreed (o repar! to the Audit Committee any cofrected ar
uncorrected identified misstaternents exceeding £0.75m
(2020: £0.63m) in addition to other identified misstalements
that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

Our audit of the Company was undertaken lo the
matenality leve! specified above and was perfermed by a
single audit team.

The audit team performed the audit of the Group as if it was
a single aggreqated set of inancial nfermatien. This approach
Is unchanged from the prior year. The audit of the Group was
performed using the Group matenality level set out above.

Total Assets
£1,491m (2020: £1,256m)

Group Materiality
£14.9m [2020; £12 Bm)

£14.9m

Whole finanoai
staterments matenanty
2020. £12.6m)

£14,17m

Parent Comrpany
Matenality
(2020: £12.0m)

£0.75m Misstatements
reparted to the auait
committee (2020.
£0.63m)

Total Assels



Independent auditor’s report contirued

4. GOING CONCERN

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on
the going cancern basis as they do not intend to liquidate
the Group ar Company or to cease its operations, and

as they have concluded that the Group or Company’s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have
also concluded that there are no malenal uncertainties
that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to
continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the financal statements ("the going
concern period”).

We used our knowledge of the Group, its industiy, and the
general economic environment to 1dentify the inherent
nsks te its business model and analysed how thase risks
mught affect the Group or Cempany’s financial resources

or ability to continue aperations aver the going concern
period. The risks that we censidered mast likely to
adversely affect the Group or Company’s available financial
resources and its ability to operate aver this period were:

— The impacl of a significant reduction in the valuation
of investments and the implications for the Group or
Company’s debt covenants,

— The liguidity of the investment portfohio and its atihly
to meet the habilities of the Group as and when they
fall due; and

— The operational resilience of key service orgamsations.

we considered whether these nisks couid plausibly affect
the fiquidity in the going concern period by assessing the
degree of downside assumption that, individually and
collectively, could result in a liquidity issue, taking into
account the Group or Company’s current and projected
cash and tiguid investment position {and the results of
their reverse stress testing).

we considered whether the going concern disclosure in
note 1 to the financial statements gives a full and accurate
description of the Directors’ assessment of going concern,
including the identified nsks and related sensitvities.

Dur conclusicns based on this waork:

- We consider that the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements 1s approprate,

— We have nol identified, and concur with the Directors’
assessment that there 15 not, a malenal uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, indwidually ar
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for
the going concern penod;

— we have nothing malerial to add or draw attention to
in relation to the Directors” statement in note 1 to the
financial statements on the use of the going concern
basis of accounting with no malerial uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt over the Group or Company's
use of thal basis for the going concern period, and
we found the going concern disclosure in note 1 to be
acceptable; and
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— The related staterment under the Lisling Rules set out
on pages 41 and 42 is matenally consistent with the
financial staterments and our audit knawledge.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or
conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that
were reasonable at the ume they were made, the
above conclusions are not a quarantee that the Group or
Camaany will continue i aperation.

5. FRAUD AND BREACHES OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS - ABILITY TG DETECT

Identifying and responding to risks of matenal
misstaternenl due to fraud

To 1dentify risks of malenal misstatement due to fraud
(“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud
or provide an cpportunity to commit fraud. Our nsk
assessment procedures included.

— Enquinng of Directors as to the Greup’s high-level
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as
well as whelher they have knowledge of any aclual,
suspected or atleged fraud;

— Assessing the segiegation of duties in place belween
the Directors, the Adrmimistrator and the Group's
Investment Manager; and

— Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures
to address the risk of management override of controls,

in particular to the risk thal management may be in

a position to make nappropriate accounting entries.

We evaluated the design and implementation of the
controls over journal entnies and cther adjustments and
made inquiries of the Administrator about inappropriate
or unusual activity relating to the processing of journal
entries and other adjustments. We substantively tested all
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material post-closing entrnies and, based on the results of
our risk assessment procedures and understanding of the
procass, ncluding the segregation of duties between the
Directors and the Administrator, no further tugh-nsk journal
entries or other adjustments were 1dentified.

On this audit we have rebutted the fraud nsk related

to revenye recognition because the revenue is non-
judgemental and straightforward, with limited cpportunity
for manipulation. We did not identify any significant
unusual transactions or additional fraud risks.

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement gue to non-compliance with laws and
reguiations

We (dentified areas of laws and requlations that could
reasonably be expected to have a matenal effect on the financal
staternents from our general commercial and sector experience
and through discussion with the Directors, the Investment
Manager and the Administrator (as required by auditing
standards) and discussed with the Directors the polices and
pracedures regarding compliance waith laws and requlations

The patential effecl of these laws and requlations on the
financial statemenls varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company 15 subject to laws and regulalions
that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislatien (including relaled companies
legislation), distnibutable profits legislation, and ils
qualification as an tnvestment Trust under UK laxation
fegislation, any breach of which could lead to the Group
losing various deductions and exemptions from UK
corporation tax, and we assessed the extent of compliance
with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures
on the related financial statement items,

secondly, the Group 15 subject to many other laws and
requlations where the consequences of ngn-compliance
could have a matenal effect on amounts or disclosures

in the financial statements, for instance through the
wnposition of fines or htigation We dentified the following
areas as those most Iikely to have such an effect- money
laundenng, data proteclion, bnbery and corruption
leqislation and certain aspects of company legislation
recagnising the financial nature of the Group’s activines
and its legal form Auditing standards himit the required
audit pracedures toidentify non-comphance with these
laws and regutations to enquiry of the Directors and the
Administrator and inspection of requlatory and legal
correspondence, if any Therefore if a breach of aperational
tequlations 1s not disclosed to us or evident from relevant
carrespandence, an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent hmitations of an audit, there is an
unavaidable risk that we may not have detected some
matenal misstatements in the financial staternents, even
though we have properly planned and performed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards For example,
the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations 15 from the events and transactions reflected
In the financial statements, the iess likely the inherently
iimited procedures required by auditing standards would
identify 1L

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher nsk
of non-detection of fraud, as these may invalve collusion,
forgery, intentional errissions, misrepresentations, or the
overmnde of internal controls. Qui audt procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement, we are not
respensible for preventing non-comphance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with ali
laws and requlations.

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Ditectors are responsible for the other informatien
presenled in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements Qur opinion on the financiai slalernents does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance ¢onclusion thereon

Our responsibility 1s to read the other information and,

i doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
slalernents audit work, the informalion theren is
matenally misstated or inconsistent with the financal
statements or our audit knowledge Based solely on that
work we have not identified matenal misstaternents i the
other information

Strateqic report and Directors’ report
Based sclely on our work on the other information:

— we have not identified matenal misstatements in the
Strateqic report and the Directors’ report,

— 10 our opinion the information given in those reports
for the financial year 15 consistent with the financial
statements, and

— 1n our opinion those reparts have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006



independent auditor’s repart contirued

Directors’ remuneration repeort

in our opirvon Lhe part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report te be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are required to perform procedures to identily whether
there 15 a matenial Inconsistency between the Directors’
disclesures in respect of emerging and principal nsks and
the viability statement, and the financial statements and
our audit knowledge.

Based on these procedures, we have nothing material to
add or draw attention to in relation to:

— the Directors’ confirmation within the viability Statement
on pages 33 and 34 that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the emerging and principal risks facing the
Group, including those that would threaten ils business
model, future performance, solvency and hquidity,

— the Principal Risks and Uncerlainties disclosures
describing these nsks and how emerging nsks are
identified, and explaining how they are being managed
and miligated; and

— the Directors” explanation in the viabllity Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Company,
over whal penod they have done so and why they
considered that period to be appropnaie, and their
statement as 1o whether they have a reasenable
expectatien that the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due
cver the penod of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions.

We are also required to review the Viability Statement, set
out on pages 33 and 34 under the Listing Rules. Based on
the above procedures, we have concluded that the above
disclosures are matenally consistent with the financial
staternents and our audil knowledge.

Our work is hmited to assessing these malters in the
contex! of enly the knowledge acquired during our
financial statements audit, As we cannol predict al! fulure
events or conditions and as subseguent events may

result in outcomes thal are inconsistent with judgements
that were reasonable al the ume hey were made, the
absence of anything to report on these statements 15 not a
guarantee as to the Company’s longer-term viability.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required Lo perform procedures to identify whether

there 1s a matenal inconsistency between the Directors’
corporale governance disclosures and the financial
staternents and our audil knowledge

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that each
of the following is materialty consistent with the finandial
statements and our audit knowledge:

— the Direclors’ statement that they consider that the
annual repert and financial statements taken as a
whole 15 fair, balanced and understandable, and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group’s position and performance, business
model and strateqy;

— the section of the annual report describing the work of

the Audit Committee, including the significant issues
that the audit committee considered in relation to
the financial statements, and how these issues were
addressed, and

— the section of the annual report that describes
the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s rsk
rnanagement and internal control systems

We are required to review the part of Corporate
Governance Statement relating o the Group’s compliance
with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified by the Listing Rules for our review. We have
nothing to report in this respect

7. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to reporl
o you if, in our opimon

— adequate accounting reccrds have not been kept, or
returns adequate for our audit have nol been received
from branches not visited by us; or

— the financial staternents and the part of the Directors’
Remureration Report to be audited are nat in
agreement with the accounling records and returns, or

— certam disclosures of Directers” remuneration specified
by law are not made; or

— we have nol received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

we have nothing to report in these respecls.
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8. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set cut on
page 61, the Directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the financial statements including being satisfied thal
they give a true and fair view, such internal control as
they determine 1s necessary Lo enable the preparalion

of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern:
and using Lhe going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to hquidate the Company or to cease
operatons, of have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectves are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whale are free from
malerial misstalement, whether due to fraud or efror, and
10 155u€ aur opinien 1N an auditor’s report, Reasonable
assurance 1s a hirgh level of assurance, but does not
quarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with 15As
(UK} will always detecl a matenal misstatement when it
extsts, Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are
considered matenal if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
deasions of users taken on Lhe basis of the financial
statements.

A fuller description of our respansibilities 1s provided on
the FRCs website at.
www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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9. THE PURPOSE OF DUR AUDIT WORK AND TO
WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report is made solely to the Group’s members, as

a body, 1in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement by
the Company Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state 1o the Group’s members those matters we
are required to stale to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accent or assume responstbility to anyone other
than the Group and the Group’s members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, ar for the opinions we have
formed

Richard Kelly (Senier Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Saltire Court

15 Canada Square

London

E14 561

3 June 2021



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2021
Notes Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£°000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income
Investment income 2 36,557 - 36,557 42112 - 47112
Other operating income 4 67 - 67 35 - 35
Gross rental income 3 3,185 - 3,185 3,415 - 3,415
Service charge income 3 1,051 - 1,051 1,786 - 1,786

Gains/(losses) on investments held at

fair value 10 - 196,582 196,582 - (153,614) (153,614}
Net movement on foreign exchange;
investments and loan notes - (3,144) (3,124) - 11,296 11,296
Net movement on foreign exchange; £z
cash and cash equivalents - (1,474) (1,479) - 302 362 g %
Net returns on contracts for difference 10 3,320 17,978 21,298 5724 (4,276) (35,552) g »
Net return on total return swap 10 - ~(188) (188) - (3,808) {3,808) <
Total Income 44,180 209,754 253,934 58,072 (187,100} {129,028)
Expenses
Management and performance fees 5 {1,556) (14,328) (15,884) (1,570} (7.392) (8,962)
Direct property expenses, rent payable
and service charge costs 3 (1,321) - {1,321) (1,984) - {1,984)
Other administrative expenses 6 231y (s04)  (1,835) {1,398) {615) {2,013)
Total operating expenses {4,108) (14,932) {19,040) (4,952) (8,007) (12,959}
Operating profit/({loss) 40,072 194,822 234,894 53,120 (19507)  (141,987)
Finance costs 7 (416) (1,969) {2,385} (814) {2,443) (3,257)
Profit/{loss) from operations betore ’
tax 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550) {145,244)
Taxation 8 (767) 2,667 1,900 (5,912) 3,149 (2,763)
Yotal comprehensive income 38,889 195520 234,409 46,394  (194401)  (148,007)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 9 12.25p 61.61p 73.86p 14.62p (61.26)p {46.64)p

The Total columin of this statement represents the Group's Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accordance with IFRS. The
Revenue Return and Capital Return columns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance published by the Assaciation of
Investment Companies. All items in the above statement derive from continuing operations.

The Group does not have any other income or expense that is not included in the above statement thesefore “Total comprehensive
income” is also the prafit for the year,

All incorne is attributable to the shareholderss of the parent company.
The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these financial Statements.
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary
£'000 £°000 £000 £°000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,97 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - (44,429) (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 7 - - - {44,429) (44,429)
At 31 March 2027 79,338 43,162 43971 1,159,962 1,326,433
GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Oidinary Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43,91 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - (148,007) {148,007)
Dividends paid W7 - - - (43,794) (43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,91 969,582 1,136,453
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43,91 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - {148,007} (148,007}
Dividends paid 7 - - - (43,794} (43.794)
At 31 Maich 2020 79338 43162 43,97 969,982 1,136,453

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Balance Sheets
as at 31 Masch 2021

Notes Company Group Company
{174 2020 2020
£000 £'000 £000

Non-current assets

Investments held at fair value 10 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724
Deferred taxation asset 12 686 686 - -
1,401,202 1,444,514 1,155,295 1,205,724
Current assets
Debtors 12 60,990 60,520 60,094 59972
Cash and cash equivalents 2914 29,112 40,129 40,127
90,104 89,632 100,223 100,099 -
Cument liabilities 3 (107,280) (150,120) (59.711) (110,016) 3 5
Net current (Habilities)/assets (17,176) {60,488) 40,512 ©917) 55
Total assets less current fiabifities 1,384,026 1,384,026 1,195,307 1,195,807 @
Non-turrent liabilities 13 (57,593) (57,593) {59,354) {59,354)
Net assets 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453
Capital and reserves
Cailled up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79338 79338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,91 43,971 43,97 43971
Retained earnings 16 1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982
Equity shareholders' funds 1,326,433 1,326,433 1136,453 1,136,453
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 N7.97p 1n7.97p 358.11p 35811p

These financial statemnents were approved by the directors of TR Property investment Trust plc {Company No:84492) and authorised for
issue on 3 June 2021.

D Watson
Director

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Company Group Company
201 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000
Reconciliation of profit/(loss) from operations before
tax to net cash outflow from operating activities
Profit/{loss) from operations before tax 232,509 231,844 {145,244) {145,244}
Finante costs 2,385 2,385 3,257 3,257
(Gains)/losses on investments and derivatives held at fair
value through profit or loss (214,372) (207,255) 198,698 198,711
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents and loan notes (179) (7s) 859 859
(increase)/decrease in accrued income (102) (102) 584 584
Sales of investments 353,167 353,167 316,841 316,841
Purchases of investments (370,496) (370,496) (383,674) (323,674)
Decrease/{increase) in sales settlement debtor 4,753 4,753 {1,417) (107
(Decrease)/increase in purchase settlement creditor {5,781) {5,781) 4,501 4,501
(Increase)/decrease in other debtors (11,436) {11,436) 4,447 4,447
Increase/{decrease) in other creditors 2,451 (4,001) 2,047 2,034
Scrip dividends included in investment income and net
retuinis on contracts for ditference (8,489) ~ (8,489) (3.818) (3.818)
Net cash outflow from operating activities before
interest and taxation (15,590) (15,590) (2.919) (2,919}
interest paid (2,607) {2,607) {3,47) (3,429)
Taxation paid (1,915) {1.915) (2.30) (2.37)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (20,112) {20,112) (8,661) (8,661)
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (44,429) (44,429) {43,794) (43,794)
Drawdown of loans 55,000 55,000 40,000 40,000
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 10511 10,57 {3,794) {3,794)
Decrease in cash (9,541) (9.541) (12,455) {12,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 40,129 40,127 52,282 52,280
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents (1.474) (1,474) 302 302
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 29,114 29112 40,129 40,127
Note
Dividends received 38,224 38,224 52,003 52,003
Interest received 45 45 37 37

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2062 as it applies in the European
Union and in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the Stalement of Recommended Practice (SORP), “Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts,” to the extent that it is consistent with IFRS.

in assessing Going Concern the Board has made a detailed assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group to meet

its liabilities as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falls in investment
valuations, substantial reductions in revenues received and reductions in market liquidity including the effects and potential effects
of the current and likely ongoing economic impact caused by the Coronavirys paademic. The Board is satistied with the operational
resilience of service providers despite COVID-19 and continues to monitor their performance throughout the pandemic.

in fight of the testing carried out, the liquidity of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset value position,
and despite the net current fiability position of the Group and Parent Company (which could be mitigated by the sale of fiquid level 1
investments), the Directors are satisfied that the Campany and Group have adequate financial resources to continue in operation

for at least the next 12 months following the signing of the financial statements and therefare it is appropriate to adopt the going
cancern basis of accounting.

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Sterling, which is their functional and presentational cufrency,
Sterling is the functional currency because it is the currency of the primary economic enviranment in which the Group operates.
Values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where otherwise indicated.
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Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements necessarily requires the exercise of judgement, both in application of accounting
poficies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the calculation of estimates. These estimates and
judgements are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors.
However, actual results may differ from these estimates. The only key estimate is considered to be the valuation of invesirnent
properties. See section (f) f this note. There are not considered to be any key judgements.

a) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries to 31 March 2021. All the
subsidiaries of the Company have been consofidated in these financial statements.

tn accordance with IFRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:
+ |t obtains funds from investors and provides those investors with investment management services;

= 1t commils to its investors that its business purpose is to invest solely for returns from capitat appreciation and investment
income; and

« it measures and evaluates performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

£ach of the subsidiaries of the Company was established for the sole purpose of operating or supporting the investment operations of
the Company (including raising additional financing), and is not itself an investment entity. IFRS 10 sets out that in the case of controlled
entities that support the investment activity of the investment entity, those entities should be consolidated rather than presented as
investments at fair value. Accordingly the Company has consolidated the results and financial positions of those subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue
to be consalidated until the date that such controt ceases. The financial statements of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
consalidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies. All intra-group balances and ransactions, including
unrealised profits arising therefrom, are eliminated. This is consistent with the presentation in previous years.

b) Income
Dividends receivable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis. Where no ex-dividend date is
available, dividends receivable on or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Provision is made for any dividends
not expected to be seceived. Where the Group has elected to receive these dividends in the farm of additional shares sather
than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised as income. Differences between the value of shares received and
the cash dividend foregone are recognised in the capital retusns of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fixed
returns on debt securities are recognised on a time apportionment basis so as to reflect the effective yield on each such security.
Interest receivable from cash and short term deposits is accrued to the end of the year. Stock lending income is recognised on
an accruals basis. Underwriting commission is taken to revenue, unless any shares underwritten are required to be taken up, in
which case the proportionate commission received is deducted from the cast of the investment.

Recognition of property rental income is set out in section (f) of this note.

Recagnition of incorne from contracts of difference is set out in section (g) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
<) Expenses

All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an accruals basis. An analysis of retained earnings broken down into
revenue and capital items is given in note 16. In arriving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue iterns
except as follows: )

+  Expenses which are incidental 10 the atquisition or disposal of an investrnent;

~  Expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the value of the
investments can be demonstrated, this includes irrecoverabie VAT incurred on costs relating to the extension of residential
leases as premiums received for extending or terminating leases are recognised in the capital account;

+  One quarter of the base management fee is charged to revenue, with three quarters allocated to capital return to reflect the
Board's expectations of long term investment seturns. All performance fees are charged to capital return;

- The fund administration, depositary, custody and company secretarial services are charged directly to the Company and
are included within ‘Other administrative expenses’ in note 6. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee; one quarter to income and three quarters to capital.

d) Finance costs

The finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is calculated so as to give a constant rate of return on
the outstanding balance. One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three quarters to capital retum.

) Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the batance sheet date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to iterns that are credited or charged to equity. Ctherwise income
tax is recagnised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Incame.

The tax effect of different items of expenditure is allocated between capital and revenue using the Group’s effective rate of
tax for the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit fos the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of
temporary differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

in accordance with the recommendations of the SCRP the allocation method used to ralculate tax relief on expenses presented
against capital returns in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the "marginal basis”
Under this basis, if taxable income is capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return cofumn of the
Statement of Comprehensive income, then no tax relief is transferred to the capital celuma.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on ditferences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the batance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

The Company is an investment trust under 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not lizble for tax on capitat
gains. Capital gains arising in subsidiary companies are subject to capital gains tax.

Investment property

Investment property is measured initially at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes, professional
fees for legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the tondition necessary for it to be capable of
operating. The carrying amount alsa includes the cost of repiacing part of an existing investment property at the time that

cost is incurred if the recognition writeria are met. The purchase and sale of properties is recognised to be effected on the date
unconditional contracts ase exchanged.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values are included in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

Investment property is derecognised when it has been disposed of pr permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains of losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are recognised in
the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year of disposal.

Gains or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its invesiment properties at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes in fair
values being fecogrised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Group engaged Knight Frank LLP as independent
valuation specialists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2621.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLIQES continued

Valuations of investment properties
Determination of the fair value of investment praperties has been prepared on the basis defined by the Ri(S Valuation - Global
Standards (The Red Book Global Standards) as follows:

“The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
withaut compulsion.”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revenue streams, capital values of
fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any environmentat matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount
rates applicable to those assets. These assumptions are based on locat market conditions existing at the baiance sheet date.

in arriving at their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2021, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgement and have not only relied solely on historical transactional comparables. Examples of inputs 1 the valuation can be seen
in the sensitivity analysis disclosed in note 10 (e).

Rental income
Renial income receivable under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for
contingent rental incorne which is recognised when it arises.
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Incentives for lessees to enter into lease agreements or other negotiated rent free periods agreed are spread evenly over the
lease term, ever if the payments are not made on such a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease
together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease,
the directors are reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option. Premiuins received to terminate or extend leases
are recognised in the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income when they arise.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

income arising from expenses recharged to tenants is recognised in the period in which the expense can be contractuatly
jecovered. Service charges and other such receipis are included gross of the refated costs in revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as principal in this respect.

g) Investments
when a purchase or sale is made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timeframe of the relevant
markel, the investments concerned are recognised or derecognised on the krade date.

All the Group's investments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair value through profit or loss but are also
described in these financial statements as investments held at fair value.

All investrnents are designated upon initial recognitien as held at fair value, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value, which, for quoted investments, is deemed ta be closing prices for stocks sourced from European stock exchanges and
for SETS stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange. SETS is the London Stock Exchange electionic trading service covering
most of the market including all the FTSE All -Share and the most liquid AIM constituents. Unquoted investments or investments
for which there is only an inactive market are held at fair value which is based on vaiuations made by the directors in accordance
with IPEVCA guidelines and using current market prices, trading conditions and the general economic climate.

In its financial statements the Company recognises the fair value of its investments in subsidiaries as being the adjusted net
asset value. The subsidiaries have historically been halding vehicles for direct property investrment or financing vehicles. No
assets are currently held through the subsidiary structure and all financing instruments are directly held by the Company.

Changes in the fair value are recognised in the Group Statement of Cormprehensive incorme. On disposal, realised gains and
losses are also recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held at fair value based on traded prices. Gains and losses on derivative transactions are recognised in the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses on CFDs and total return swaps resulting from movements in the price
of the underlying stock are trealed as capital. Dividends from the underlying investment and financing costs of CFDs and total
return swaps are treated as revenue/capital expenses.

Gains and losses on forward currency contracts used for capital hedging purposes are treated as capital.
contracts for Difference (“CFDs”) are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments’ underlying market values.

The sousces of the returns under the derivative contract (e.g. notional dividends, financing costs, interest returns and capital
changes) are allocated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source of income and
in accordance with the quidance given in the AIC SORP Notional dividend incorne or expenses afising on long or shart positions
are apportioned wholly to the revenue account. Notional interest expense on long positions Is apportioned between revenue
and capital i accordance with the Board's fong term expected returns of the Company (currently determined to be 25% to the
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

revenue account and 75% %o capital reserves). Changes in value relating to underlying price movements of securities in relation
1o CFD exposures are allocated wholly to capital reserves.

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures
All Inans and debentures are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, less issue costs where applicable.
After initial recognition, all interest bearing foans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is calcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement. The costs of arranging any interest
bearing loans are capitalised and amortised over the life of the loan on an effective interest rate basis.

i) Foreign currency translation
Teansactions involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost and comprise cash in hand and demand deposits.

k) Dividends payable to shareholders
Interim dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid and final dividends are recognised when approved by
shareholders.

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards
Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous consolidated financial statements except as noted below.

IERS 3 amendments. The amendments provided more guidance on the definition of a business 1o assist in determining
whether & transaction results in an asset or a business acquisition. The amendments have not had an impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Amendments to IFRS S, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7 The amendments provided temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty belore the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk free interest rate. The amendments have not had 2 material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to 1AS 1 and IAS 8 - Definition of Material. The International Accounting Standards Board refined its definition of
“material” and Issued practical guidance on applying the concept of materiality. The amendments have not had a material irpact
on the Group's financial statements.

The Conceptual Framewaork for Financial Reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard however its purpose is lo outline
a set of concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance to others in understanding and interpreting the standards. The Framework has not had a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the reporting date that become effective after 31 March 2021 are not expected to have a material
effect on equity or profit for the subsequent period. The Group has not early adopted any new International Financial Reporting
Standard or Interpretation. Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but rot yet effective up to the date of issuance of
the Group’s financial statements are listed below:

IAS 1 Amendments - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (effective date amended to 1 january 2023). The
amendments specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-cusrent, The amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

1AS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023). The amendments require an entity to disclose
its material accounting policy information instead of its significant accounting policies. The amendments contain guidance and
examptes on identifying material accounting policy infarmation. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

1AS 8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 January 2023) The amendments define accounting estimates
as “‘monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. The amendments also clarify the
interaction between an accounting policy and an accounting estimate. The amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’ financial statements.

IAS 16 Amendments - Proceeds before intended Use (effective 1 january 2022) The amendments intend to clarify the accounting
for the net proceeds from selling any items produced while bringing an itern of property, plant and equipment into use. The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

1AS 37 Amendments - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling contract {effective 1 January 2022) The amendments clarify that for
the puspose of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relale directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 39, [FRS 4, 7. % and 16 Amendments - Interest Raie Benchmark Reform {Phase 2) (effective 1 January 2021) 1BOR reform refers
to the globat reform of interest rate benchmarks which includes the replacement of some interbank offered rates (IBOR) with
alternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of financial statements can understand the effect of the reform on a company’s
financial instruments and risk management strateqy, additianat information on the nature and extent of risks to which the
company is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to I1BOR reform is required. In addition, details of the company’s
progress in completing its transitions to ajternative benchmark rates is required.

IAS 47, IFRS 1, 9 and 16 Amendments - Annual improvements 2018-20 Cycle (effective 1 january 2022) The minor improvements,
none of which will have a material impact on the Group’s financial staternents, to the standards noted were endersed in
September 2020.

1FRS 3 Amendments - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments require that for
transactions within the scope of 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework)
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination. in addition, IFRS 3 now contains a statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired in 3 business combination. The ammendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s financiat statements.

IFRS 4 Amendments - Extension of IFRS 9 Deferral {effective 1 January 2023) The option for companies whose business is the
issuance of insurance contracts, to defer the effective date of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments has been extended. The amendment
is not expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Amendments ~ Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions (effective 1 April 2021) the May 2020 amendments, which introduced
an optional practical expedient that simpfifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of
Covid-19, have been extended to lease payments originally due on or before 30 june 2022.
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IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracls {effective T)anuary 2023) IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 insurance Contsacts and contains several areas that
are covered, including measurement of revenue, insurance performance, onerous contracts and disclosure. The standard is not
expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 17 Amendments - Amendments ta IFRS 17 {effective 1 January 2023) in Jure 2020, amendments o IFRS 17 were issued
which are intended to make financial performance easier to explain and reduce compliance costs by simplifying some
requirements in the standasd. The amendments are not expected to have an impact on the Groups financial statements.

Z INVESTMENT INCOME
2021 2020
£000 £'000

Dividends from UK listed investments 3,753 491
Dividends from overseas listed investments 18,656 26,631
Scrip dividends from listed investments 7,482 3370
Property income distributions 6,666 12,200

36,557 47112

3 NEY RENTAL INCOME

2021 2020

£000 £'000

Gross rental income 3,185 3,415

Service charge income 1,051 1,786
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs {1,321) (3,984)

2,915 3.7
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3 NET RENTAL INCOME continued

Operating leases

The Group has entered into commercial leases on its property portfolic. Commercial property leases typically have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and include clauses to enable periodic upward revision of the rental charge according to prevailing market

conditions. Some leases ¢ontain options to break befare the end of the lease term.
Future minimum fentals under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as folfows:

2021 2020
£000 £000
within 1 year 3,000 2,950
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 10,000 10,100
More than 5 years 15,000 15,500
32,000 28,550

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Interest receivable 1 2
Interest on refund of averseas withholding tax 44 3
Underwriting comemission 22 -
67 35

Underwriting is part of the process of intraducing new securities to the market. The Company may participate in the underwriting of
investee companies’ securities, as one of 2 number of participants, for which compensation in the form of commission is received. The
Company only participates in underwriting having assessed the risks invoived and in securities in which it is prepared to increase its
holding should that be the outcome. The commission earned is taken to revenue unless any securities underwritten are required to

be taken up in which case the proportionate commission is deducted from the cost of the investment. During the year the Company
participated in one (2020: nil) underwriting and all commission earned was 1aken to revenue and shown under Other operating income.

MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

2021 2021 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Management fee 1,556 4,669 6,225 1,570 4,709 6,279
Performance fee - 9,659 9,659 - 2,683 2,683
1,556 14,328 15,884 1,570 7,392 8,962

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 41.
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6 OTHER ACMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

20 2020
£°000 £'000
Directors' fees (Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 55 to 57) 232 209
Auditer's remuneration:
- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial statements 80 80
Legal faes 15 3
Taxation fees 69 103
Other administrative expenses 199 199
Other expenses 454 562
Irrecoverable VAT 182 214
Expenses charged to Revenue 1,231 1,398
Expenses charged to Capital 604 615
1,835 2,013

Other administrative expenses include depositary, custody and company secretarial services. These expenses are charged on the
same basis as the base management fee; one quarter to income and three quarters to capital. Total other administrative expenses
charged to both income and capital are £797,000 (2020: £796,000).

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Directors’ National Insurance and recruitment, Registrars and
listing fees, and annual report and other publication printing and distribution cosls. These expenses are charged solely to the
revenue account.

VAT on costs incurred in connection with the extension of the residential leases on The Colonnades are charged to the capital account.

7 FINANCE COSTS
2021 2020
£000 £'000

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1241 1,866
Loan notes repayable after 5 years 1,384 1391
HMRC interest: release of Hi GLO provision (240) -
2,385 3,257
Amaunt allecated to capital return (1,969) (2,443)
Amount ailocated to revenye return 06 814
8 TAXATION

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Retuen

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

UK corporation tax at 19% (2020: 19%) 1,989 (1,989) - 3,362 (3,149) n3
Overseas taxation B66 8 B 2,606 - 2,606
2,855 (1,981) 874 5,968 (3.149) 2,819

{Over)/under provision in respect of prior

years (1,980) - {1,980) (406) - {406)
87% (1,981) {1,106) 5,562 {3,149) 2,413

Deferred taxation {108)  (686)  (794) 350 - 350
Current tax charge for the year 767 (2,667) (1,900) 5912 {3,145) 2,763
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

8 TAXATION continued

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower (2020: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for a farge company of 19%

(2620: 19%).
The difference s explained below:

2021 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Retuen
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Net profit/(iass) on ordinary activities
before taxation 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550) {145,244)
Corporation tax charge at 19% (2020:19%) 7,535 36,642 44,177 9938 , (37,535) {27,597)
Effects of:
Non taxable gains on investments - {37,351) {37.351) - 29,187 29187
Currency movements not taxable - 877 877 - (2,204) {2,208)
Tax relief on expenses charged to capital - 139 139 - (1,038) (1,038)
Non-taxable retuins {23) (3.380) (3,403) - 8,566 8,566
Non-taxable UK dividends (972) - (972) (1,043) - (1,043)
Non-taxable overseas dividends (4,573) - (4,573) (5,540) - (5,540)
Overseas withholding taxes 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
Deferred tax prior year adjustment (108) (686) (794) - - -
(over)/under provision in respect of prior
years (1,980) - {1,980) (406) 5 (a01)
Disallowable expenses 19 - 19 69 (43) 26
Deferred tax not provided 3 1,084 1,087 288 (871 20
767 (2,667) {1,900) 5912 {3,149) 2,763

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of £2,703,000 (2020: £nil} arising as a result of losses carried forward.

It is considered too uncertain that the Group will generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses would be available to
offset against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due to the Company’s status as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to obtain
approval for the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains arising on the revaluation or

disposal of investments.

¢) Pravision for deferred taxation
The amounts for deferred taxation provided at 19% (2020: 19%) comprise:

Group
200 pii74] 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) (686) - - -

Shown as:
Delermed tax {asset)/liability - {63¢6) {686) 108 - 108
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8 TAXATION continued

¢) Provision for deferred taxation continued
Company

201 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£°000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutitised fosses carried forward - (686) (685) - - -
Shown as:
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - (686) (686) 108 - 108
The movement in provision in the year is as follows:
Group “w o
2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020 3%
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total £a
Return Return Return Return =z 2
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 <
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 {350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances (108) - (108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) {686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - (686) {686) 108 - 108
Company
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£°000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 07 (350) {243)
Actelerated capital allowances {108) - {108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - {686) (686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - {686) (686) 108 - 108
9 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings/{loss) per Ordinary share tan be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 £'000
Net revenue profit 38,889 46,394
Net capital profit/(loss) 195,520 {194,401)
Net total profit/(loss) 234,409 (148,007}
Weighted average nurnber of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 317,350,980
Revenue earmings per share 12.25 .62
Capital eamings/(loss) per share 61.61 (61.26)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 73.86 (46.64)

The Group has ne securities in issue that could dilute the return per Ordinary share. Therefore the basic and diluted return per
Ocdinary share are the same.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continyed

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE

a) Analysis of investments

Company Group Company
201 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £000
Listed in the United Kingdom 394,176 394,176 351,506 351,506
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 1,468 1,468 682 682
Listed Dverseas 921,801 921,801 708,597 708,597
Investment properties 83,011 83,071 94,510 94,510
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
investments in subsidiaries at fair value - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724

b) Business segment reporting
Gross Gross
Valuation Net Net RRZITELT)] revenue revenue
31Mmarch  additions/ appreciation/ JEEIEENG] 31 March 31 March
2020  (disposals)  (depreciation) 2021 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Listed investments 1,060,103 58,477 197,397 1,315,977 36,403 46,964
Unlisted investments 682 - 786 1,468 154 148
Contracts for difference B,698 (26,817) 7978 (1a1) 3,320 5724
Total return swap (3,808) 3,99 (188) - - -
Total investments segment 1,065,675 35,656 215973 1,317,304 39,877 52,836
Direct property segment 94,510 {9.838) {1,601) 83,0M 4,136 5,201
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037

in seeking to achieve its investment objective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationally and also in investment property located in the UK. The Cempany therefore considers that there
are two distinct reporting segments, investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance and allocation of
resources. The Board, which is the principal decision maker, receives infermaticn on the two segments on a reqular basis. Whilst
revenue streams and direct property costs can be attributed to the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannot be
split to allow a profit for each segment 1o be determined. The assets and gross revenues for each segment are shown above.

The praperty costs inciuded within note 3 are £1,321,000 (2020: £1,984,000) and deducting these costs from the direct property
gross revenue above would result in net income of £2,915,000 (2020: £3,217,000) for the direct property reporting segment.

82 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued
€) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net '@ valuation revenie fevenue

3t March  additions/ appreciation/ JEEVEENG 31 March 31 March

2020  (disposals)  (depreciation} 2021 P1i74] 2020

£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

UK listed equities and convertibles 351,506 (30,616) 73,286 394,176 10,265 16,963

UK unlisted equities 682 - 786 1,468 154 148

UK direct property* 94,510 (9,838) {1,601) 83,071 4,236 5,201

Continental European listed equities 708,597 89.093 124,11 921,801 26,138 30,001

1,155,295 48,639 196,582 1,400,516 40,793 52,313

LUK contracts for difference? 5071 {13,108) 8,621 584 1,242 2,14
Eurcpean contracts for difference? 3627 (13,709) 9357 (725) 2,078 3,010 23
= »
UK total return swap® (3.808) 3,996 (188) - - - £2
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037 =7

Included in the above figures are purchase costs of £741,000 (2020: £460,000) and sales costs of £184,000 (2020: £199,000).
These comprise mainly stamp duty and commission.

The Company received £329,018,000 (2020: £367,977,000) from investments, including direct property, sofd in the year. The book cost
of these investments when they were purchased was £266,450,000 (2020: £317,581,000). These investments have been revalued
over time and until they were sold any unrealised gains/losses were included in the fair value of the investments.

' Net additions/(disposals) includes £465,000 (2020: £981,000) of capitat expenditure. Net appreciation/(depreciation) includes
amounts in respect of rent free periods.

2 Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates to dividends receivable, on an ex dividend basis, on the underlying positions
held. The appreciation/(depreciaticn) in CFDs relates to the movement in fair value in the year.

3 The depreciation in the TRS relates to the movement in fair value in the year until maturity.

d) Substantial share interests
The Group held interests in 3% or more of any class of capital in 10 companies (2020: 8 companies} in which it invests. None
of these investments is considered significant in the context of these financial statements. See note 21 an pages 96 and 97 for
further details of subsidiary investments.

) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet either at their fair value (investrnents) or the balance
sheet amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value (due from brokers, dividends and interest receivable, due to brokers,
accruals and cash at bank).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
Cateqorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset as follows:

Level 1- valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets,

Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1.
tevel 3 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The valuation techniques qsed by the Group are explained in the accounting policies in notes 1 (f) and 1{g).
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Nates to the Financial Statements continued

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

&) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continued
The table below sets out fair value measurements ysing IFRS 13 fair value fierarchy.

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

Af H March 2021 Level 1 tevel 2 Level 3 Total

£000 £°000 £000 £'000

Equity investments 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445

Investment properties - - 83,07 83,071
Contracts for difference - (111) - (a)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - (1107) - (1,107)

1,315,977 (1,248) 84,539 1,399,268

At 31 March 2020 Level 1 Level 2 level 3 Total

£'000 £000 £000 £'000

Equity investments 1,060,103 - 682 1,060,785

Investment propetlies - - 94,510 94,510

Contracts for difference - 8,698 - 8,698
Total return swap - (3,808) - (3,808)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - (5,609) - {5,609)

1,060,103 (719} 95,192 1,154,576

The table above represenis the Group's fair value hierarchy. The Company’s fair value hierarchy is identical except for the inclusion
of the fair value of the investment in Subsidiaries which at 31 March 202t was £43,312,000 (2020: £50,429,000). These have been
categorised as tevel 3 in both years. The movement in the year of £7,117,000 (2020: £13,000) is the change in fair value in the year,
which includes a distribution from a subsidiary company of £6,435,00¢ and the release of a corporation tax provision of £348,000
in & subsidiary company. The total financiat assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2021 was £1,443,828,000 (2020:
£1,214,422,000).

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3
At 31 March 2021 31 March Appreciation /SEETRIEI )]

2020  Purchases Sales (Depreciation)
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Unlisted equity investments 682 - - 786 1,458
Investment properties -
- Mixed use 52,623 315 (303) {4,658) 47,977
- Office & Industrial 41,887 150 (10,000) 3,057 35,094
94,510 465 (10,303) {1,607) 83,01
95,192 465 (16,303) (815 84,539

Alt appreciation/(depreciation) as stated above relates to movements in fair value of unlisted equity investments and investment
pioperties held at 31 March 2021,

The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end (see 11.6 overleaf).

Transfers between hiesarchy levels
There were no transfers during the year between any of the levels.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of

investment properties are:
@ Estimated rental value: £6.5 - £65 per sq ft (2020: £6.5- £65)
@ (Capitalisation rates: 2.0% - 6.0% (2020: 2.0% - 6.0%)

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth in isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower)
fair value measurement. A significant increase (decrease) in fong-term vacancy rate in isolation would result in a significantly lower
(higher) fair value measurermnent.

There are interrelationships between the yields and rentat values as they are partially determined by market rate condition. The
sensilivity of the valuation to changes in the mast significant inputs per class of investment property are shown below:

Estimated movement In fair value of investment properties at office & -
31 March 2021 arlsing from Retail  Industrial BZ
£'000 £'000 zz
zE
z
Increase in rental value by 5% 310 1,585 50 1,945 v
Dectease in rental value by 5% (250) (1,610) (25) (1,885)
increase in yield by 0.5% (4,040) {5,835) (925) {(10,800)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 5,155 9,505 1,325 15,985
Estimated mavement in fair value of investment properties at Office &
31 March 2020 arising from Retail Industrial other Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Increase in fental value by 5% 1,300 1,780 - 3080
Decrease in rental value by 5% {1,.225) (1,720 - (2,945)
Increase in yield by 0.5% (5,025) (6,005) {950) (11,980)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 6,750 9,355 1,365 17,470

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group invests in equities and other instruments for the long term in the pursuit of the Investment Objectives set out on
page 24. The Group is exposed to a variety of risks that could result in either a reduction or an increase in the profits available for
distribution by way of dividends.

The principal fisks the Group faces in its portfolio management activities are:
® Market risk (comprising price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk)
@ Liquidity risk

® Credit risk

The Manager's policies and processes for managing these risks ate summarised on page 25 and have been applied threughout the
yeay.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

11.1 Market price risk
By the very nature of its activities, the Group's investments are exposed to market price fluctuations.

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversified portfolio and reports to the Board on the portfgiio activity and performance at each Board meeting.
The Board monitors the investment activity and strategy to ensure it is compatible with the stated objectives.

The Group's expasure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property portfolic, was as

follows:
A0 2020
£000 £°000
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,155,295
CFD long gross exposure 146,001 56,728
TRS leng gross exposure - 6,598

Concentration of exposuse to price risks

As set out in the investment Policies on page 25, there are guidelines to the amount of exposure to a single company, geographical
region of direct property. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to individual or sector price risks. As an
investment company dedicated to investment in the property sector, the Group is exposed to price movements across the property
asset class as a whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The foilowing table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders’ funds to an
increase or decrease of 15% in the fair values of the Group's equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property investments. The level of
change is consistent with the illustration shown in the previous year. The sensitivity is based on the Group's equity, fixed interest,
CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other variables held constant.

2021 201 2020 2020
Increase Decrease increase Decrease
in fair in fair in fair in fair
value value value value
£°000 £000 £000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive Income - profit after tax

Revenue return {103) 103 (77 7
Capital return 209,801  (209,801) 173,817 (173,817)
Change 1o the profit after tax for the year/shareholders’ funds 209,698 {209,698) 173,740 (173,740}
Change fo total earnings pet Ordinary Share 66.08p {66.08)p 54.75p (54.75)p
11.2 Currency risk

A proportion of the Group's portiolio is invested in overseas securities and theie Sterfing value can be significantly affected by
movements in foreign exchange rates.

Management of the risk

The Board receives & report at each Board meeting on the proportion of the investment portfolio heid in Sterling, Euros or other
currencies. The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency movements cutside the Eurczone by funding investments i overseas
securities with unsecured loans denominated in the same currency or through forward currency contracts.

Cash deposits are held in Sterling and/or Euro denominated accounts.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continved

Foreign currency exposuse
At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure:
{Sterling has been shown for reference}

Sterling 28.0% 27.0%
Euro 51.0% 53.0%
Swedish Krona ' 13.0% 11.0%
Other 8.0% 9.0%

The following table sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to fareign currencies of the net
monetary assets and liabilities:

Sterling s z

2021 £000 % §

=7
Receivables {(due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 49,462 10,668 561 299
Cash at bank and on deposit 22,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank loans, ioan notes and overdrafts (95,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) {10,142) (1,031) - -
FX forwards (61,209) - 13,848 46,254
Total foreign cutrency exposure on net monetary items (94,036) 13,976 i5,059 47,825
Investments held at fair value 478,715 707,968 155,635 58,198
Non-current assets 686 - - -
Non-cusrent liabilities (15,000) (42,593) - -
Total currency exposure 370,365 679,351 170,694 106,023

Swedish

Sterling Euro Krona Other
2020 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Receivables (due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 31,552 27,495 634 413
Cash at bank and on deposit 25,602 1,922 962 1,643
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts {40,000} - - -
Payables {due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) {8,026) {6,076) - -
FX forwards (133.731) 62,014 22,525 43,583
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items {124,603} 95,355 2411 45,639
Investments held at fair value 446,698 551,576 100,836 56,185
Non-current assets {15,108) (44,246) - -
Total currency exposure 306,987 602,685 124,957 101,824

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit alter tax for the year on the Group’s equity in regard to the exchange rates
for Sterling/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies.

It assumes the following changes in exchange rates:
® Sterfing/Euro +/- 15% (2020:15%)
@ Sterling/Swedish Krona +/- 15% (2020:15%)
& Stering/Other +/- 15% (2020:15%)
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Foreign currency sensitivity continued

if sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have had the following effect:

Year ended March 201 Year ended March 2020
Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona other
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Statement of Comprehensive income -
profit after tax
Revenue retyrn (2,726) (589) (250) (3,016) (340) (99}
Capital return {83,243) (20,269) {7,579) (7,091 (13,132) (7317}
change to the profit atter tax for the
year/shareholders” funds (85,969) (20,858) {7,829) (74,107) (13,472) (7,416)
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share {36.13)p (2993)p

If Sterling had weakened against the currencies shown, this would have the fol

Year ended March 2021

llowing effect:

Year ended March 2020

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Qther

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Statement of Comprehensive Income -
profit after tax
Revenue retum 3,41 732 318 4,91 43 113
Capital retuin 124,633 27,440 10,262 97.685 17,780 9909
Change to the profit after tax for the
year/shareholders’ funds 128,044 28,172 10,580 102,656 18,203 10,022
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share 52.56p 41.24p

11.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate movements may affect:

® the fair value of any investments in fixed interest securities;

@ the fair value of the loan notes;

@ the level of income recejvable from cash at bank and on depasit;
® the level of interest expense on any variable rate bank loans; and
@ the prices of the underlying securities held in the portfalios.

Management of the risk
The paossible effects on fait value and cash fiows that could arise as a result of

changes in interest rates are taken into account when

making investment decisions. Property companies usually have borrowings themselves and the level of gearing and structure of its
debt portictio is 2 key factor when assessing the investment in a property company.

The Group has fixed and has had variable sate borrowings during the yea, The
set out in note 13. In addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, mult
rates of interest based on the currencies drawn, plus @ margin, These facilities
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Management of the risk continved

The Manager considers both the level of debt on the balance sheet of the Group {i.e. the loan notes and any bank loans drawn)
and the “see-through” gearing, taking into account the assets and liabilities of the underlying investments, when considering the
investment portfolio. These gearing levels are reported regularly to the Board.

The majority of the Group’s investment portfolio is non-interest bearing. As & result the Group’s financial assets are not directly
subject 1o significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

Interest rate exposure
The exposure at 31 March of financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk is shown by reference to:

@ floating interest rates: when the interest rate is due to be re-set;

@ fixed interest rates: when the financtal instrument is due to be repaid.

The Group’s exposure to floating interest rates on assets is £80,027.000 (2020: £79,651,000).
The Group’s exposure to fixed interest rates on liabilities is £152,593,000 (2020: £99,246,000).
The Group’s exposure to floating interest rates on liabilities is £nil (2020: £nil).

TYIINYNIA

Interest receivabie and finance costs are at the following rates:

b
=
=
m
=
m
=z
=
«

® Interest received on cash batances, or paid on bank overdrafts, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign cuirency equivalent
(2020: same).

® Interest paid on borrowings under the muiti-currency loan facilities, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent for
the type of loan {2020: same),
@ The finance charges on the €50m and £15m loan notes are at interest rates of 1.92% and 3.59% respectively.

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to interest rates during the year as the level of exposure changes
as investments are made in fixed interest securities, barrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrowings between
floating and fixed interest rates changes.

Interest rate sensitivity

A change of 2% on interest rates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact:
20 2021 2020 2020
2% 2% 2% 2%
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
£000 £°000 £000 £'000
Change to shareholders’ funds {1,176) 1176 (317) N7
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share {0.37)p 0.37p {0.10)p 0.10p

This level of change is not representative of the year as a whole, since the exposure changes throughout the period.

This assessment does not 1ake inte account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the investments the
Group holds.

11.4 Liquidity risk
Unguoted investrents in the portfolio are subject to liquidity risk. The Group held one unquoted investinent at the year end (see
11.6 below).

In certain market conditions, the liquidity of direct property investments may be reduced. At 31 March 2021, 6% (2020: 8%) of the
Group’s investment portfolic was held in direct property investments.

At 31 March 2021, 94% (2020: 92%) of the Group's investment portfolio is held in listed securities which are predominantly
readily realisable.

Bank loan facilities are short term revelving loans which it is intended are renewed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain. Loan
notes of €50m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to settle the Group's current liabilities together with anticipated interest costs.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Debt and Financing maturity profile
Within within Within within Within More than

1year 12yeais 2-3years 3-dyears 4-5years 5 years
At 31 March 2621 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Bank lcans” 95,000 - - - - - 95,000
toan notes - - - - - 57,593 57,593
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 2,178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295
Accruals and deferred income 10,719 - - - - - 10,719
Other creditors 110 - - - - - 10
108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,717
within Within within Within within  Mote than
1year 1-2 yeats 2-3years  3-4years  4-5years 5 years Total
At 31 March 2020 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Bank loans 40,000 - - - - - 40,000
Loan notes - - - - - 59,246 59,246
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 4,081 1,021
Accruals and deferred income 3,812 - - - - - 381
Other creditors 294 - - - - - 299
45,494 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 63,327 114,373

* A £60m multicurrency facility with RBS was renewed or one year in February 2021, £50m (2020: £30m) was drawn on this facitity at the balance sheet date. A
£30m one year facility with ING Luxembourg was renewed in July 2020. £30m {2020: £30m} was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date. A £40m facility
was renewed with ICBC in Novemnber 2020. £15m (2020: £ni) was drawn on this faility al the balance sheet date.

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquoted and direct property investments. These are set

out in the Investment Policies on page 25. All unquoted investments with a value over £1m and direct property investments with a

value over £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains reqular contact with the banks providing revolving facilities and renewal discussions commence weli ahead
of facility renewal dates. In addition the Company is exploring new opportunities for the provision of debt on an ongoing basis.

1.5 Credit risk

The failure of a counterparty to a transaction to dischaige its obiigations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering
a loss. At the period end the lasgest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed to was within Debtors and Cash and cash
equivalents where the iotal bank balances held with one counterparty was £53,134,000 (2020: £46,731,000 two counterparties).

Management of the risk

investment transactions are carried out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing Is reviewed periodically by the Manager,
and limits are set on the amount that may be due from any one broker. Cash at bank is only held with banks with high quality
external credit ratings.

Credit risk exposure
In surmmary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March was as follows:

021 2021 2020 200

Balance  Maximum Balance  Maximum

Sheet exposure Sheet exposure

£'000 £°000 £000 £°000

Debtors 50,990 60,990 60,094 60,094
Cash and cash equivalents 29114 29114 40129 40,129
90,104 90,104 100,223 100,23
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

where the receivables of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the requirement for impairment is assessed af each year end. For
all receivables, in the table above, no impairment has been recognised in refation to expected credit losses as the impact of these
losses is immaterial as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: no impairment).

Offsetting disclosures

in grder to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Group mitigate its counterparty risk, the Group may
enter into an ISDA Master Agreement or similar agreement with its OTC derivative contract counterparties. An ISDA Mastet Agreement
is an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC derivatives and foreign exchange contracts and typically
tontains, among other things, coliateral posting terms and netting provisions in the event of a default and/or termination event. Under
an ISDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual right to offset with the counterpaity certain derivative finandial instruments
payables and/or receivables with coliateral held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of default induding

the bankruptcy or insolvency of the counterparty. However, bankrupicy or insolvency laws of a particular jurisdiction may impose
restrictions on or prohibitions against the sight of offset in bankruptcy, insolvency or cther events.

The disclosures set out in the following tables include financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or simifar agreement.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s derivative assets and liabilities (by type and counterparty) are as follows: ;"’_’: g
o
Year ended 2021 Year ended 2020 %‘ z
Net amounts Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
liabilities liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance  Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£000 £000 £000 £'000
CFD positions:
Goldman Sachs (141) 50,913 8,698 3,525
(141 50,913 8,698 31,525
TRS position:
ING - - {3,808) 7997
- - (3,808) 7997
FX forward contracts:
Bank of Montreal - - {2,582) -
Barclays - - (2,398) -
BNP Paribas - - (620) -
HSBC (1,107) - - -
Westpac - - % -
{1,107) - {5,609) -

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost (refer ta Note 13), the fair values of the financial assets and
financial liabilities are either carried in the balance sheet at their fair vaiue (investments} or the balance sheet amount is a
reasonable approximation of fair value (debtors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, accruals and prepayments).

The fair values of the listed investments are derived from the closing price or last traded price at which the securities are quoted on
the London Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges.

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investment value as set out above and the amount due
from or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset or liability accordingly, which is disclosed in Note 13 for the
current year,

The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market (Red Book) valuation of the properties on the Balance Sheet date
by an independent fism of valuers (Knight Frank).

There was one unquoted investment at the Balance Sheel date, Atrato, with a total value of £1,468,000 (2020: Alrato, £682,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
In the Parent Company accounts there are investments of £43,312,000 in unlisted subsidiaries which are classified as level 3.

The amounts of change in fair value for investments including net returns on CFDs recognised in the tensofidated profit or loss for
the year was a gain of £214,372,000 (2020: loss of £198,698,000).

1.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group's capital management objectives are:

@ to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going cancern; and
@ to maximise the total return to its equity shareholders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and debi.

The equity capital of the Graup at 31 March 2021 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capital redemption
and revenue reserves totalling £1,326,433,000 (2020: £1,136,453,000). the Group does not regard the loan notes and loans as
permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

@ Total Borrawings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

@ the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a miniemum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
® the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000.

12 DEBTORS

Group Company Group Company
2021 20n 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £000 £'000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Securities and properties sold for luture settiement 267 257 5,020 5,020
Tax recoverable 4,231 3,761 1,414 1,292
Prepayments and accrued income’ 5176 5176 5,082 5,082
Amounts receivable in respect of Contracts for Ditference - - 8,698 8,698
CFD margin cash 50,913 50,913 31,525 31,525
TRS margin cash - - 7997 7,997
Other debtors 403 403 358 358

" 60,990 60,520 60,094 59972

Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 686 686 - -

* Includes amounts in respect of rent free periods.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£000 £'000 £'000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdrafts 95,000 95,000 40,000 40,000

Securities and properties purchased for future setilement 194 194 5975 5975

Amounts due to subsidiaries - 42,880 - 50,342

Amounts payable in respect of Contracts for Difference 141 141 - -

Amounts payable in respect of Total Return Swap - - 3,808 3,808

Tax payable 9 9 213 213

Accruals and deferred income 10,719 10,685 3,812 3783

Foreign exchange forward contracis for settiement 1,107 1,107 5,609 5,609 '

Other creditors 10 104 294 286 g §
107,280 150,120 59,711 110,016 g B

Non-current liabilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 42,593 42,593 44,246 44,246
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Deferred taxation - - 108 108

57,593 57,593 59,354 59,354
loan Notes

On the 10th February 2016, the Company issued 1.52% Unsecured Euro 50,000,000 Loan Notes and 3.59% Unsecured GBP 15,000,000
Loan Notes which are due to be redeemed at par on the 10th February 2026 and 10th February 2031 respectively.

The faif value of the 1.92% Eurg Loan Notes was £42,732,000 {2020: £44,418,000} and the 3.59% GBP Loan Notes was £15,219,000
(2020: £15,553,000) at 31 March 2021.

Using the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed to be categorised within Level 2.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

® Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

@ _the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
@ the Adjusted NAY shall not be less than £260,000,000.

The Company and Group complied with the terms of the loan notes agreement throughout the year.

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
The Group also had unsecured, multi-cusrency, revolving shori-term loan facilities totalling £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000) at
31 March 2021, At 31 March 2021 £95,000,000 was drawn on these facilities {2020: £40,000,000).

The maturity of these facilities is shown in notes 11.3 and 11.4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES continued
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term  Short term

debt debt
Group and Company £'000 £'000
Opening liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2020 59,246 40,000 99,246
Cash flows:
Drawdown of bank loans - 55,000 55,000
Movement on foreign exchange (1,653) - (1,653)
Closing ltabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2021 T 57593 95000 152,593

14 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary share capital
The balance classified as Ordinary share capital includes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Issued, alfotted
and fully paid
Number £000

Ordinary shares of 25p
At 1 April 2020 317,350,980 79,338
At 31 March 2021 317,350,980 79,338

The voting rights are disclosed in the Report of the Oirectars on page 43.
During the year, the Company made no market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2020: none).
Since 31 March 2021 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelled.

15 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Share premium account
The balance classified as share premium includes the premium above nomina) value from the proceeds on issue of the equity share

capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve is used to tecord the amount equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the Company’s own
shiares in order 10 maintain the Company's capitat.

16 RETAINED EARNINGS
Group Company Group Company
201 20 2020 2020
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Investrent holding gains 335,322 360,663 206,072 23851
Realised capital reserves 757,418 731,167 691,148 664,465
" 1,092,740 1,091,830 897,220 902,996
Revenue reserve 67,222 68,132 72,762 66,986
1,159,962 1,15—'97962 969,982 965,982

Group investment holding gains at 31 Maich 2021 include a £143,000 gain {2020: £643,000 loss) relating to unlisted investments and
gains of £45,201,000 (2020: £51,882,000 gains) relating to investment properties.

Company investment hoiding gains at 31 March 2021 include gains of £7,685,000 (2020: £83,697,000) relating to unlisted and
subsidiary investments with a £44,061,000 revaluation gain (2020: £50,742,000) relating to investment properties. Dividends are
only distributable from the revenue reserve.
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17 DIVIDENDS

Year ended Yeai ended
31 March 31 March
201 2020

£'000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holdess in the year:

Finat dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.80p 27,927 27292
{2019: 8.60p) per Ordinary share
interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p
{2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502
44,429 43,794

Amounts not recagnised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
{2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27927

The final dividend has not been included as a liability in these financial statements in accordance with 1AS 10 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date”.

Set out below is the total dividend to be paid in respect of the year. This is the basis on which the sequirements of 5.1158 of the
Corporsation Tax Act 2010 are considered.
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
201 2020

£000 £000

interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

(2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
(2020: 8.30p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27927
45,064 44,429

18 COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE iINCOME

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The net profit after taxation of the Company dealt with in the accounts of the Group was £234,409,000 (2020: £148,006,000
loss).

19 NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE

Net asset value per Ordinary share is based on the niet assets attributable to Ordinary shares of £1,326,433,000 (2020:
£1,136,453,000) and on 317,350,980 (2020: 317,350,980} Ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2021 the Group had capital commitments of £144,000 (2020: £132,000) but no contingent liabifities (2020: nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

21 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group has the following principal subsidiaries, all of which are registered and operating in Scatland, England and Wales:

Name Reg. Number
New England Properties Limited 788895
The Colonnades Limited 2826672
Showart Limited 2500726
Frust Union Properties Residential Developments Limvited 2365875
The Property Investment Trust itd 2415846
The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited 2416015
The Termra Property investment Trust Limited 2415843
Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited 2416017
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited 2415839
Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited 2416018
Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited 2415836
Trust Union Properties {Number Eight) Limited 2416019
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited 2415833
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited 241600
Trust Union Properties {(Number Eleven) Limited 24715830
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited 2416022
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited 2415818
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited 2416026
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited 2415806
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited 2416027
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) limited 2415768
Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited 2116030
Trust Union Properties (Cardiff) Limited 2415772
Trust Union Properties {Theale) Limited 2416031
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Two) Limited 2415765
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited 2416036
Skillion Finance timited 2420758
Trust Union Finance (1991) Plc 2663561
FGH Developments Limited 1481476
FGH Developments {Aberdeen) Limited (E18030) SC68799
FGH (Newcastle) Limited 1466619
NEP (1994} timited 977481
New England Developments Limited 1385909
New England investments Limited 2613905
New England Retail Properties Limited 144720
New England (Southern}) Limited 178731
Sapco One Limited 803940
Trust Union Properties Limited 2134624
Trust Union Finance Lirited 1233998
TR Property Finance Limited 241590
Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited 2420097

Principal Activities
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Noan-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Noa-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Property investment
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Investment financing
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

investment holding and finance company
Investment holding and finance company

Non-trading company
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21 SUBSIDIARIES continued
The Company has provided a guarantee for each of these subsidiaries in order for them to take the exemption from the requirement
of an audit, in line with the requirements of S.479A of the Companies Acl 2006.

All the subsidiaries are fully owned and all the holdings are ordinary shares.

All companies have the registered office of 11-12 Hanover Street, London, W1S 1YQ with the exception of fGH Developments
(Aberdeen) Limited which is registered to 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh EH3 9BY.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13
2021 2020
£000 £'000

WIDNYNIT R

The Colonnades Limited 22,619 22,619 3

TR Property Finance Limited 20,281 2743 z

New England Properties Limited R )] {20) 3
42,880 50,342

Remunesation of key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevant categories
specified in 1AS 24: Related Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remmuneration Repert on page 56.

Directors’ transactions
ransactions in shares by directors are considered to be a related party transaction due to the nature of their rale as directors.

Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 57.
Dividends totalling £17,000 (2020: £10,000) were paid in the year in respect of shares held by the Company’s directors.
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Alternative Performance Measures are numernical measures of the
Company’s current or historical perfermance, financial position of
cash flows, ather than the financial measures defined or specified
in the Financial Statements

The measures defined below aie cansidered (o be Alternative
Performance Measures. They are viewed as particularly relevant
and are frequently quoted for closed ended investment
companies.

Total Retuin

The NAY lotal Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends
in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend
date. Dividends are deemed to be reinvesied on the ex-dividend
date as this is the protacol used by the Company’s benchmark
and cther indices. The Share Frice 1otal Return 1s calculated by
reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the
relevant ex-dividend date.

NAY Share Price
NAav/share price per share at
31 March 2020 3581 3175
NAV/share price per share at
31 March 201 117.97 3925
Change in year 16.7% 23.6%
impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% 4.7%
Total Return for the year 20.7% 28.3%

Net Debt

Net debt 1s the total value of lpan notes, loans (including notional
exposure to CFOs and 1RSs) less cash as a proportion of net asset
value.

The net gearing has been ¢alculated as follows:

Loan notes 57,593 59,246
Loans 95,000 46,000
CFD positions (notional exposure) 146,001 56,728
TRS position (notional exposure) - 10,405
Less: Cash {29114) {40,129}
Less: Cash coflateral (included
within ‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) {50,913) (39,522}
218,567 86,728
Equity sharehoiders’ funds :|,3-26,433 1,136,45“3
Net qearing 16.5% 7.6%
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SIERCONN

he Ongoing Chaiges ratio has been calculated in accordance
with the guidance 1ssued by the AIC as the tatal of investment
management fees and administrative expenses expressed as a
percentage of the average Net Asset values throughout the year
The definition of administiative expenses does include property
related expenses, the Ongoing Charges calculation is shown
inclesive and exclusive of these expenses 1o allow compansaon
of the direct administrative and management charges with

the majanty of Investment Trusts which do not hold any direct
property investments.

Cha i

Excluding
Performance
Fees &

Direct
Property Costs
£'000

kncluding

Excluding
Performance Performance
Fees Fees

£000 £'000

Management fFee

(note 5) 15,884 6,225 6,225

Other

Administrative

expenses {note 6) 1,835 1,835 1,835

Propefty Costs 270 270 -

Less: Non

recurring

expenses - - -
17,989 8,330 8,060

Average Net 1,283,051 1,283,051 1,283,051

Assets

Ongoing Charge 0 o

2091 1.40% 0.65% 0.63%

Ongoing Charge 0.80% 0.61% 0.59%

2020

Ihe Ongoing charges ratio provided in the Company’s Key
Informaticn Docurnent is calculated in line with the PRIIPS
regulations which 1s different to the AIC methodology above.

Key Performance indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting
the Irust's objective against a number of Key Perfarmance
Indicatars, these are considered to be Alternative Performance
Measures. These are set qut on pages 26 and 27 ot this repart
together with information about any calculations or the source of
data



Glossary and AIFMD disclosure oot uen

2.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

AFMD

The Alternative Fund Managers Direclive 1s European legisiglion
which cieated a kurapean wide framework for regulating the
managers of "alternative investment funds” (Alts) 1t 1s designed
to requlate any fund which 1s not & UUTS (Undertakings for
Collective Investment in iransferable Secunities) fund and which
Is managed or marketed in the kU

AlC
The Assaciation of Investment Companies - the AIC is the
representative body for tlosed-ended investment companies

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measure cf financial performance or financial position
other than a financial measure defined ar specified in the
accounting statements.

Discount

The amount by which the market price f a share of an
investment trust is lower than the Net Asset Value per share
expressed as a percentage of the NAY per share.

Key Information Document

under the PRIIPs Regulations a short, consumer friendly Key
Information Document 1s required setling out the key features,
risks, rewards and costs of the PRIIP and 15 intended to assist
nvestors to better understand the Irust and make comparisons
between Trusis

The document inctudes estimates of investment performance
under a number of scenanos These calculations are prescibed
by the requlation and are hased purely on recent hustorical data.
It 1s important for investors to note that there 1s no judgement
applied and these do not in any way reflect the Board or
Manager's views

Key Performance Indicator "KP1”

AKPI” 15 3 quantifiable measure that evaluates how successful
the trust is in meeling its cbjectives The Irust’s KPIs are
discussed an pages 26 and 27

MEFID

The Markets in kinancial Instrurments Directive 1s the EU
‘egislation that requtates firms who provide serwices to clients
Inked to “kinanoal mstruments” (shares, bonds, units in collective
investment schemes and dervatives) and the venues where
thase instrurnents are traded.

Net Asset Value {NAV) per share
Ihe value of total assets less habilities (incleding borrowings)
divided by the number of shares in 1ssue

3.0 ALTERNATEVE INVESTMENT FUND MANAGERS
DIRECTIVE (“AIFMD”)

In accordance with the AIFMD, information in relation to the
Company’s leverage and remuneration of the Company’s AIFM,

F&C Investment Business Limited, 1s required ta be made
avallable 1o investors. Detailed regulatory disclosures snciuding
these on the AlFM's remuneration poticy are available on the F&C
website ar from F&C an request. The pumerical remyneratign
disclosures in relation to the AlFM's first relevant accounting
period will be made available in due course

Lleverage
Under the AIFM Directive, 1t 1S necessary far Alks to disclgse therr
leverage I accordance with prescribed cafculations

Although leverage is often used as another term for gearing,
unger the AIFMD leverage 15 specifically defined 1wo types of
leverage calculations are defined; the gross and commitment
rnethods. These methads sumnmarily express leverage as a ratio
of the exposure of the AIF against its net asset value ‘Exposure’
typically includes debt, the value of any physical properties
subject to martgage, non-Sterhing currency, equity of currency
hedging at absalute notional values (even those held purely
for nsk reduction purposes, such as forward foreign exchange
contracts held for currency hedqing) and dervative exposure
(converted into the equivalent underlying positions) The
commiiment method nets off derivative instruments, while the
gross method aggregates them.

Ihe table below sets aut the current maximum permitted limit
and the actual level of leverage for the Company as at 31 March
2020:

Gross {ommitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
Actual 118%

124%

The leverage limits are set by the AIFM and appraved by the
Board and are In line with the [imits set out In the Company’s
Articles of Associatian.

This should not be confused with the geanng set cut in the
Financial Highlights which is calculated uader the traditional
method set out by the Association of Investment Comparies The
AlFM 15 also required to camply with the gearng parameters set
by the Board in resation to barrowings
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Notice of Annual General flecting

THIS NOTICE 1S IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should 1ake you
should seek your own advice from a stockbroker, solicitar,
accountant or other independent professional adviser who 1s
authorsed under the tinancial Services and Markets Act 2000 1if
you are resident in the United Kingdom, or if not, from another
approptiately authonsed independent inancial adviser,

If you have sold or atherwise transferred all of your shares,
please pass this document, together with the accampanying
documents ta the purchaser, or transferee, or to the person who
aranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these documents
to the person who now holds the shares.

Qur preference is to welcame shareholders in person to our 2021
AGM, particularly given the canstraints we faced in 2020 due 1o
the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company 15 continuing to manitor
the current COVID 19 legislation and public health guidance 1ssued
by the UK Government.

we have prepared for this AGM based on the anticipated status
of the UK Gavernment's roadmap out of lockcown at the date
of the meeting. It 15 expected that the AGM will be able to go
ahead as ncrmal as a physical meeting.

However, it may be necessary to adapt our arrangements to
respond ta any changes in circumstances, including the possibiiity
of a delay to the further easing of restrichions. Any changes to the
arrangements for the AGM (including any change to the location
of the AGM) will be cammunicated to shareholders before the
meeting, including through our website (www.trpraperty.com)
and via an RNS announcement

the meeting will be conducted in accordance with legislation
and public heaith guidance in farce at the ume of the meeting
Depending on the circumstances at the tme of the meeting, 1t
may be necessary to it physical attendance by shareholders.
We regret that it will not be possible to provide refreshments
In the usual way It new restrictions are impased, 1t 1s possible
that we will not be in a position to arccommeodate sharehalders
beyond the minimum required to hold a quorate meeting.

Regardless of the current expectation for the physical meelting
to proceed as planned, we strongly encaurage all sharehoiders
to vote in advance by praxy and appaint the Chairman of the
meeting as their proxy rathes than any other named person,
who may not be permitted to atlend the AGM. This will ensure
that their vote will be counted if they (or any other proxy they
might otherwise appoint) are not abie to attend the meeting. All
resolutions will be voted on by a poli.

Sharehoiders intending to attend the AGM are asked to register
their intention as soon as practicable by email to the following
dedicated address: cmuk-trpropertyinvestment@linkgroup.co uk

Shareholders whao are not able or da not wish to attend the
meeting In person (regardless of an easing of restrictions) will be
able to watch 3 live webcast of the meeting. This will nclude the
formal business of the meeting, the mManager’s presentation and
questions and answers. The webcast will not enable shareholders
to participate n the meeting ar vote However, shareholders will
be nvited to submit qeestions through our website, by 12.00
noon on 2% July 2021, Questions of a very similar nature may be
grouped together to ensure the orderly running of the AGM.
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shareholders are asked ta consult the website in the penod
leading up to the event where any restrictions or changes will
be set out and the format detalled when we know what will be
permitted at that time.

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of

TR Property investment {rust plc (the "Company”) will be held
at 2.30 pm on 27 july 2021 at the Royal Automaobile Club, 83/91
Pall Mall, London SW1Y 5HS for the purpose of transacting the
following business:

1o consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions,

of which Resolutions 1 to 11 will be propesed as Ordinary
Resolutions and Resolutions 12 to 14 shall be praposed as Special
Resalutions

To receive the Report of the Directors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 march 2021

To approve the Directors’ Remurteratian Report {other than the
part containing the Directors’ remuneration policy) for the year
ended 31 March 2021

Ta declare a final dividend of 900p per Oidinary share
To re-elect Simon Mariisan as 3 Director.

To re-elect David walson as a Diector.

To re-elect TIm Gitlbanks as a Drrector.

Ta re elect Kate Bolsover as a Duector.

fo re-elect Sarah-Jane Curlis as a Director

la re-appoint KPMG LLP (the "auditor”) as Auditors of the
Company to hold office untll the conclusion af the naxt Annual
General Meeting of the Company

lo authornse the Directors to determing the remuneration of
the Auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Ordinary rasolution
[HAT, 10 substitution for all such existing authorties, the
Directors be generally and unconditionally authonsed
pursuant to and in accordance with Section 551 of
the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”) ta exerase all
the powers of the Campany to allot shares in the
Company and to grant nghts to subscnbe for, or to
convert any securty into, shares in the Company up to
a nominal value ol £26,181,455 (being approximately
33% of the totalissued share capital of the Company
as at the latest practicable date prior to publication of
this halice) prowided that this authonty shall expire
al the date of the nexl Annual General Meeting of
the Campany (or, Il earlier, al the close of business
on 27 October 2027), save that the Company shall
be entitled to make offers or agreements before the
expiry of this authonty which would or might requue
shares to he allotted or nighls to be granted after
such expiry and the Directors shall be entitled to allot
shares and grant nights pursuant to any such offers or
agreements as if this authonty had notl expired



MNatice af Annuat General Meeting

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

THAT

{a) {in substilution for all such existing authonties and subject
to the passing of Resclution 171 set out abave) the directors
be empowered pursuant to Section 570 and Section 573 of
the Act to allot equity secunties (as defined In Section 560
of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authonty conferred
by Resolution 11 above and/ar to sell shares held by the
Company as treasury shares for cash as if Section 561(1) of
the Act did nat apply to any such allotment, provided that
this pewer shall be imited to-

(1) the allotment of equity securities and sale of treasury
shares far cash in connection with an offer of, ar
invitation ta apply for, equity securties:

{aa) to sharehalders in propertion {as nearly as may be
practicable) te their existing holdings; and

(bb) to holders of ather equity securilies, as required
by the rights of those secunties, or as the Board
otherwise considers necessary,

and sa that the Board may impose any imits or resirictions
and make any arrangements which it considers necessary
or appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional
enttlements, recard dates, legal, regulatory or practical
problems in, ar under the laws af, any temitory or any other
matter, and

{1} in the case of the authority granted under Resolution
11 and/or in the case of any sale of treasury shares
for cash, to the allotment (otherwise than under
paragraph {1} above) of equity securities or sale of
treasury shares up to 2 neminal amount of £3,966,887
{being approximately 5% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the latest practicabie date
prior to publication of the notice of meeting),

{(b)the power given by this resolution shall expire upon the
expiry of the authonty canferred by Resolution 11 abave,
save that the Company shall be entitled to make offers or
agreements before the expiry of such power which would
or might reguire equity securities to be aliotted after such
expyuy and the directors shall be entitled ta allot equity
securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if the
power cgnferred hereby had not expired

THAT the Company be and 15 herehy generally and
uncondionally authonsed 1n accorcance with Section 707
of the Act to make market purchases (within the
meaning of Section 5%3{4) of the Act) of Ordinary shares
of 25p each i tne capial of the Company on such terms
andn such imarrer as the directors may from Ume o
ume determine orovided that

(a) the maximum numrber of Ord:nary shares hereby
autharised to be purchased shall be 14 95% of the
Campany's Ordinary shares 'n ssue al the date of the
Annual Cereral Meeting (equivalert to 47570917 Ordirary
shares af 25p eack at 3 june 2027, the latest practicable
date prior to pubiicatior of this Natice),

(b) the maximum price {exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for any such share shall not be more than the
higher of:

{n 105% of the average of the middle market quotaticns
for an Qrdinary share as taken from the Londan Stock
txchange Daily Offical List for the tive business days
immediately preceding the date on which the Company
agrees to buy the shares concerned; and

(1) the hugher of the price of the last ndependent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an Ordinary
share in the Ccmpany on the trading venue where the
purchase Is carried out at the relevant time;

{C) the minimum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for an Ordinary share shall be 25p, bemng the nominal
value per Ordinary share; and

{d) the authonty hereby conferred shall expire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeling of the Company
In 2022 (or, if earlier, at the close of business on 27 October
2022), save that the Company shall be entitled to enter
Into 3 cantract to purchase Ordinary shares which will, or
may, be completed of executed wholly or partly after the
power expires and the Campany may purchase Ordinary
shares pursuant to such contract as i the power conferred
hereby had not expired

THAT, with effect from the conclusion of this meeting,

the Articles of Association produced lo the meeting and
initialled by the Chairman of the meeting for the purposes of
identification be hereby appraved and adopted as the Articles
of Association of the Company, in subshitution for, and to the
exciusion of, the existing Articles of Association.

Registered Qffice:
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Registered in kngland No 84492 11-12 Hanaver Street

London
W15 1YQ
By Qrder of the Board

Far and on behalf of
Link Comepany Matters Lanited
Secrelary

3 June 2027
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Metice of Anpual General Meeting

.

NOTES FO THE NOVICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

A member entitled 1o attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notice 1s entitled to appaint one

or more proxies Lo exercise all or any of the rights of the
member to attend, speak and vole in his or her place
Sharehalders are strongly encouraged to appoint the Chairman
of the meeting as therr proxy, rather than any ather named
person who may nol be permitted to attend the AGM in the
cvent of restrictions or himits on attendance. A proxy need

not be a sharehalder of the Caompany. To appoint more than
one proxy, the proxy form should be photocopied and the
name of the proxy ta be appointed Indicated on each proxy
form together with the number of shares that such proxy s
appainted in respect of Compietion and submission of a proxy
instruction wiil not preclude 3 member from attending and
voting 1n persen at the AGM (subject to any restrictions on
physical attendance).

To be valid any proxy form or other instrument appainting

& proxy must be returned by post, by courier ar by hand to
the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, 1he Pavilians, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 62Y, or
alternatively, by going to www.eproxyappaintment.com
and following the instructions provided All prexies must

be appointed by na later than 48 hours before the time of
the AGM In the case of joint haolders, where more than one
of the joint holders purparts to appoint a proxy, only the
appointment submitted by the most senior holder will be
accepled. Senionty I1s determined by the order in which the
names of the jaint holders appear in the Company’s register
in respect of the jomt holding {the first named being deemed
the most senior).

In order to be able to atlend and vole at the AGM or any
adjourned meeting {and also for the purpose of calculating
how many vales a person may cast), a person must have

his or her name entered on the Register of Members of the
Company by 2 30 pm on 23 July 2027 (or 6.00 pm on the
date two days before any adjourned meeting). Changes to
entres on the Register of Members after this time shall be
disregarded 0 determining the nghts of any person to attend
or vote at the meeting.

voung will be cenducted on a poll at the Meeting. On a pall
vale every shareholder wiil through their proxy have one vote
for every ardmary share of which he or she is the holder

Sharehoiders should nate that it 15 possible that, pursuant to
requests made by shareholders of the Company under Section
527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may be required
to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter
relating to. (1) the audn of the Company’s accounts (Including
the auditar’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to
be laid before the AGM, of (It) any Circumstance connected
with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since
the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports
were taid in accordance with Section 437 of the Companies
Act 2006
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The Company may not require the shareholders requesting
any such website publication 1o pay Its expenses In camplying
with Sections 527 or 528 of the Campanies Act 2006 Where
the Company 15 required te place a statement on 3 website
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, it must farward
the statement to the Company's auditar not later than the
time when it makes the statement avatlable on the website
The business which may be dealt with at the AGM includes
any staternent that the Company has been required under
Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a
website

Any corporation which 1s a member of the Company can
appoint one of mere corporate representatives who may
exercise on 1ts behalf al! of its powers as a member provided
that they do not do so in refation to the same shares.

The night to appoint 2 praxy does not apply to persons whose
shares are held on their behalf by another person and who
have been nominated to recerve cammunication from the
Company 1n accordance with Section 146 of the Companies Act
2006 {"nominated persans”). Nominated persans may have

a right under an agreement with the reqistered shareholder
who halds shares on their behalf to be appainted {or to

have someane else appointed) as a proxy. Alternatively, if
nominated persons do nat have such a right, or do not wish
1o exercise 1t, they may have a nght under such an agreement
to give instructions 1o the person halding the shares as to the
exercise of voting nghts.

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies
through the CRESI electionic proxy appomntment service

may do so far the AGM to be held on 27 July 20271 and any
adjournment(s) thereaf by using the procedures desciibed in
the CREST mManual. CREST personal members or other CREST
sponsared members, and those CRESI members who have
appointed a voting service provider should refer to their CREST
sponsors or votng service provider(s), who will be able to
take the appropnate action on their behalf

in order for a proxy appeintment or instruction made by
means of CRESI to be valid, the appropriate CREST message

{2 “CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with Euraclear UK & Ireland Limited's specifications
and must contain the information regquired for such
nstructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message
must be transmitied so as to be received by the Company's
agent, Computershare Investor Services PLC {CREST Participant
ID: 3RA50), no later than 48 hours befare the tme appainted
for the meeting For this purpose, the time of receipt will

be taken to be the time {as determined by the time stamp
applied to the message by the CREST Application Host) friom
which the Company's agent is able to retrieve the message by
enqguiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by (REST.

CRES| members and, where apphicable, their CREST sponsor of
vating service provider should note that kuraclear UK & Ireland
Limited does not make available special procedures in CRESI
for any particutar messages.
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Normal system tumings and imitations will therefore apply

in retation to the input of CREST Proxy Instiuctions 1 1s the
responsibility of the CREST member cancerned to take (or, If
the CREST member 1s a CRESI personal member or sponsored
member ar has appointed a valing service provider, to procure
that his of her (RESI sponsor of voting service provider

takes) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that
message 15 transmitted by means of the CREST system by any
particular time. In this coannection, CREST members and, where
apphcable, thew CREST sponsar or voting service provider are
referred I particular to those sections of the CREST Manual
conceining practical limitations of the CREST system and
timings. The Company may treal as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction in the circumstances set out 1IN Regulation 35(5)(a)
of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 20G1.

Any member attending the meeting {subject to any
restrchions in place at the time of the meeting) has the night
to ask questions. The Company must cause 1o be answered
any such question relating to the business being dealt with at
the meeting but no such answer need he gven If (@) to do so
would interlere unduly with the preparation for the meeting
or involve the disclosure of confidential iInformation; (b) the
answer Nas already been given on a website in the form of an
answer 10 a question; or {t) 1t 1s undesirable 1n the interests
of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the
question be answered Questions of a very smilar nature may
be grouped together 1o ensure the orderly running of the
AGM

A copy of this notice, and other information required by
section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found at
www IIproperty com

tMembers satistying the thresholds in section 338 of the
Companies Act 2006 may require the Compary o give, 10
members of the Campany entitled 1o receive notice of the
AGM, nolice of a resofution which thase mermrbers intend to
move (and which may property be moved) at the AGM A
resolution may properly be moved at the AGM unless.

(1) 1t would, if passed, be ineffective (whether by reascn of
any incansistency with any enactrment of the Company’s
constitution or otherwise); {1} it 1s defamatory of any person;
or {n) 1t s frivolous or vexatious A request made pursuant
to th:s right may be in hard copy or electromc form, must
identty the resclution of which notice 1s to be given, must
be authenticated by the person(s} makmng it and must be
received by the Company not later than six weeks before the
date of the AGM

members satisfying the threshelds in section 3384 of the
Companies Act 2006 mray request the Company to include

0 the business to be deait with at the AGM any matter

{other than a propcsed resalution} which may properly be
included r the business at the AGM A matter may properly
be included In the business at the AGM unless (1) 1itis
defarmatory of any person; or (1) 1t 1s frnvolous or vexatiaus

A request made pursuant to this night rnay be in hard copy

ar electroric form, must identify the matter to be inciuded in
the business, must be accompan.ed by 3 statement sett ng
out the grounds for the reguest, rrust be acthent.cated by the
persor(s) making 1t and must be received by the Company naol
later thar six weeks before the date of the AGM

Biographical detalls of the directors are shown on pages 38
and 39 of the Annual Report & Accounts.

As 3t 3 june 2021 (being the latest practicable day prior

to publicatior of this Notice), the issued share capital of

the Company 15 317,350,980 Ordinary shares of 25p each
Therefare, the total number of voting rights in the Campany at
3 June 202715 317,350,980

* The terms of reference of the Audit Cammittee, the

Management Engagement Committee, the Namination
Commuttee, the New Articles of Association and the Letters of
Appointment for directars will be avaiiable for inspecuion for
at least 15 minutes prior to and duning the Company’s AGM

fou may nat use any electronic address praovided either in
this Notice or any related dacuments to communicate for any
purpuses other than those expressly slated

. The Company may process personal data of atlendees at the

Annual General Meeting This may include webcasts, phates,
recording and audio and video links, as well as other forms
of personal data. Ihe Company shall process such persanal
data in accordance with its privacy policy, which can found at
https://www trproperty com/legal
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Explanation of Notice of Annuai Gen

RESOLUTIONS 1, 2. AND 3: ACCOUNTS,
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT AND
DIVIDEND

Ihese are the resolutions which deal with the presentation of
the audited accounts, the approval of the Directors” Remuneration
Repart and the declaration of the final dividend

The vote lg apprave the Remuneration Repart is advisory only
and will not require the Company to alter any arrangements
detaiied in the report should the resolution not be passed

The Board 1s proposing a final dividend for the year ended

31 march 2021 of 900p per ardinary share. If appraoved at the
AGM, the Company would pay the dividend on 4 August 2021
to those shareholders on the Company's register al the close of
business on 18 june 2021

RESOLUTIONS 4, 5, 6, 7, AND B: RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

fhese resolutions deal with the re-election of Simon Marrisan,
Tim Gitlbanks, David Watson, Kate Bolsover and Sarah-jane
Curtis In accordance with the UK Corparate Gavernance Code, ali
directors will retire an an annual basis and have confirmed that
they will offer themselves far re-efection.

A performance evaluation has been completed and your Board
has determined that each of the directors cantinues to be
effective and demanstrates thefr cammitment to their role.

Iheir biographical details, which are set out on pages 38 and

39, demonstrate how the Board has the appropriate balance

of skills, experience Independence and knowledge o lead the
Campany’s lang-term sustainable success Accardingly, the Board
unanimously recommends their re-election.

RESOLUTIONS 9 AND 10: AUDITORS

These deal with the reappointment of the Audilors, KPMG
LLP ard the authonisation for the directors to determine their
remuneration

RESOLUTION 17: ALEOTMENT OF SHARE CAPITAL

Ouwr Board considers 1t appropriate that an authority be granted

to allot shares in the capital of the Company up to 8 maximum
nominal amount of £26,445,915 (representing approximately one
third of the Company’s 1ssued share capital as at 3 June 2021,
being the latest practical date prior to publication of this Nolice of
the meeting). As at the date of this notice the Company does not
hold any shares in treasury.

Ihe directors have no present intention of exercismg this
authority and would only expect to use the autherity if shares
could be issued at, or at a premium to, the Nel Asset Value per
share.

this authanty will expire at the earlier of close of business
on 27 October 2022 and the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company ta be held in 2022
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RESOLUTION 12: DISAPPLICATION OF STATUTORY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

This resclution would give the diectors the authonty te allot
shares {or sell any shares which the Company elects to hald
in treasury) for cash without first offering them to existing
sharehalders in proportion to their existing shareholdings.

This authority would be limited to allotments or sales in
connection with pre-emptive offers and offers to holders of
other equity secunties if required by the rights of those shares
ar as the board atherwise considers necessary, or otherwise up
to an aggregate nominal amount of £3,966,887. This aggregate
narinal amount represents 5% of the total issued share capital
of the Company as at 3 June 2021, the Iatest practicable date
pnior 1o publication of this Naotice In respect of this aggregate
nominal amount, the directors confirm their intention to follow
the provisions af the Pre-Emphion Group's Staterment of Principles
regarding cumnulative usage of authonties within a rolling
3-year period where the Principles provide that usage in excess
of 7.5% should not take place without prior consuliation with
shareholders.

The autharity will expire at the earlier of close of business on
27 October 2022 and the condiusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Caompany ta be held in 2022,

RESOLUTION 13: AUTHORITY TO MAKE MARKET
PURCHASES OF THE COMPANY'S DRDINARY
SHARES

At the AGM held 1n 2020, a special resolution was proposed and
passed, qiving the directors authonty, until the conclusion of the
AGM in 2021, to make market purchases of the Company’s awn
issued shares up to a maximum of 14.99% of the 1ssued share
capital.

Your Board 1s propesing that they should be given renewed
authority to purchase Ordinary shares in the market Your

Board believes that to make such purchases in the market at
appropriate times and prices is a suitable method of enhancing
shareholder value. The Campany would, within quidelines sel
from time to tme by the Board, make either a single purchase or
a series of purchases, when market conditions are suitable, with
the aim of maximising the benefits to shareholders

Where purchases are made at prices below the prevailing Net
Assel Value per share, this wiil enhance the Net Asset value

for the remaining shareholders it 1s therefore Intended that
purchases would only be made at prices below Net Asset vValue.
Your Board considers that it will be maost advantageous to
shareholders for the Company o be able to make such purchases
as and when it considers the timing to be favaurable and
therefore does not propose to set 3 imetable for making any
such purchases

Ihe Campanies (Acquisition of Qwn Shares) (Ireasury Shares)
Regulations 2003 enable companies in the United Kingdom to
hold 1n treasury any af their own shates they have purchased
with @ view to possible resale at a future date, rather than
cancelling them 1f the Company does re-purchase any of its
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shares, the directors do not currently intend to hold any of the
shares re-purchased in treasury The shares so re purchased wil
continue 1o be cancelled.

the Listing Rules of the UK tisting Authonty hmit the maximurm
price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for any such
share. 1t shall not be more than the higher of.

(1) 105% of the average of the middle market quatations far an
Ordinary share as taken from the Londan Stock Exchange Daily
Official List for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the Company agrees to buy shares
concerned; and

(i) the higher of the price of the last independent trade and
the highest current independent bid for an Ordinary share in
the Company an the trading venue where the purchase is
carried out.

The mimimum price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary

share {being the nominal value). The Listing Rules also limit

a listed company to purchases of shares represening up to
15% of 1ts 1ssued share capital in the market pussuant to a
general autharity such as this For this reasan, the Company 15
limiting its authority to make such purchases to 14 99% of the
Company’s Ordinary shares in issue at the date cf the AGM, this
15 equivalent ta 47.570,911 Qrdinary shares of 25p each {nominal
value £11,892,727) at 3 June 2021, the latest practicable date
prior to publication this Notice The authoiity will last until the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2022

RESOULUTION 11: ADOPTION OF NEW ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

Resolution 14 relates to the adoplion of new Articles of
Association (the “New Articles” in order to update the
Campany’s current Articles of Association (the "Current Articles™,
which were adapted an 14 December 2012 The New Arlicles
retlect developments in best practice, and provide additional
clarfication and flexibility. The main changes in the New Articles
are summarised in the Appendix on pages 106 and 107 Other
changes, which are ¢f a minor, technical or clar fying nature have
not been noted in the Appendix. The New Articles showing all
the changes to the Current Articles are available for inspection,
at www trproperty com and wll also be available at the Annual
General Meeting

RECOMMENDATION

Your Board believes that the resolutions contained in this Notice
of Annuat General Meeting are In the best interests of the
Company and shasehalders as a whole and recommends that you
vate sn favour of thern as your Directors intend to do in respect ol
their bereficial shareholdings.
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APPENDIX

Further information and Explanatary notes regarding
amendments 1o the Company’s articles of association

sigma Shares and Qeferred Shares

The New Articles amend the Current Articles to remave
provisions and references telating to Sigma Shares and Deferred
Shares. 1hus reftects that on 14 Decemnber 2012 all Sigma Shares
were consolidated and redesignated as Qrdinary Shares, and
the resulting Deferred Share was purchased by the Company for
canrellaton The Company now has a single class of Ordinary
Shares.

Untraced sharehalders

The New Articles amend the position in relation to untraced
shareholders Rather than requinng the Company to take oul
twe newspaper advertisements, the New Articles require the
Company to use reasonable efforts to trace the shareholder,
‘Reasonable efforts’ to trace a shareholder may include, if
considered appropriate, the Company engaqing a professional
asset reynification company or other tracing agent to search for
a sharehalder who has not kept their shareholder details up to
date

In addition, the New Articles pravide that money from the sale
of the shares of an untraced shareholder will be forferted if not
claimed after twa years, rather than six years

These changes reflect best practice and prowide the Company
with appropriate flexibility m cannection with locating untraced
sharehglders

Sub-division of shates

Ihe New Articles clanfy that any shares resulting from a sub
division of the Company’s existing shares may, in addition to
hawving any preference or advantage as compared with the
Company’s ather shares, also have deferred or other nghts. rhis
change makes admunistering any sub-division of shares more
straightforward

Operation of generai ineetings

The New Arlicles contain specific prowisions to clanfy that the
Company can hold “hybrid” general meetings (including annual
general meetings) and to set out how such meetings are to

be conducted Under the New Articles, the Company may hold
“hybrd” general meelings in such a way that enables members
to altend and participate 1n the business of the meeting by
altending a physical location or by attending by means of an
electronic facility. vating at hybnd meetings will, by default, be
decided on g polt Hybnd meetings may be adjaurned in the
event of a technological fallure

Ihe New Articles allow the Company, where appropriate, to make
changes to the arrangements for general meetings (including the
intraduction, change or carcellaticn of electronic facilities) afle
notice of the meeting has been i1ssued. Ihe Company may give
notice of any such changes in any manner considered appropriate
{rather than via an adverlisement in two national newspapers).
Ihe New Arlicles also explicitly allow the Cornpany to intraduce
health and safety arrangements al its meetings.

Ihese changes were introduced to provide the Board greater
flexibility ta align with technological advances, changes in
investor sentiment and evalving best practice, particularty in fight
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of the Covid-19 outbreak and the uncertain duration af social
distancing measures and restrictions on gatherings The Board
beleves that hybrid meetings will allow for greater shareholder
and stakehelder engagement over the corming years in a way
that is more convenient for ail parties. Absent exceptional
crcumstances, members of the Board intend to continue the
practice of attending general meetings of the Company i person
In line with the views expressed by the Investment Association
and Institutional Shareholder Services, the changes will not
permit meetings to be held exclusively on an electronic basis, so
a physical meeting wall sull be requned. In deciding whether and
how to hold a hybrid general meeting 1n future, the Company
will have regaid to the views of shareholders and institutional
governance bodies at the relevant time as well as to relevant
guidance or codes of best practice

The New Articles also specifically refer o the possibiiity of
satellite/multi-venue meetings, such as the use of gverflow
rooms Satelhte meetings are legally valid even without such a
provision but it has been added for clarity

these changes are primarly contained in arlicles 47, 48, 50
and 53 in the New Articles. A number of other consequential
amendments have heen made ta the New Articles.

Hyjections of £rraes i Yoling

in relation to the statutory requirement that a proxy must vote
i accordance with any nstructions given by the member by
whom the proxy is appointed, the New Articles state expliatly
that the company 1s not required to check that prexies and
corporate representatives have voted in accordance with ther
mstructions or that their failure to do so would vitiate the result
of & shareholder vote

Number of directons
The New Articles reflect the statutory mimmum of two directors,
and introduce @ maximum of 10 directors.

Reappointment of directors

tn line with the requirements of the UK Carparate Governance
Code, the New Articles require directers to retire (and should
they wish ta remain in office, seek re-election} al each annual
general meeting. This requirement does nat apply te directors in
their first year of appointment who were appointed in the periad
between the AGM nolice bemg 1ssued and the AGM itself. This
confirms existing {ompany practice

Diractors fees

The Current Articles provide that the aggregate of all fees paid

ta directors shall not exceed £250 000 per annum. Article 88 of
the New Arlicles increases this amount to £300,000 to reflect the
amount approved by resalution of the Company on 22 July 2014,

Barroveing Powers

the New Articles include in the defimtion of “barrawings” the
minanty proportion of moneys borrowed by a member of the
group and owing ta a partly-owned subsidiary undertaking
{with “the minonty propartion” meaning a propartion equal to
the proportion af the 1ssued share capital of a partly owned
subsidiary undertaking which s rot attributable to @ member of
the group)
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Forfeiture of gnclaimoed dividends

lhe Current Articles provide that if a dividend or other payment
due to members has not been claimed far twelve years after
being declared or becorming due, 1t will be forferted to the
Company Article 122 of the New Articles reduces this perod fram
twelve {0 six years,

Payments of dividends and other amaunts

The New Articles give the Board greater flexibilily to determing
the apprapriate methad(s) it pays dividends (and other sums)
to sharehalders. This flexibility will help the Board take account
of developments in market practice and keep down the
administrative cost of making payments The New Articles

also provide that where a payment cannot be made because

a shareholder has not provided valid account detalls to the
company, that amount will treated as unclaimed citil the
sharehalder provides those details.

Capital Reserve

The New Articles remave Article 132 1n the QId Articles, which
was included 1o ensure that the company qualifies as an
nvestment trust and 1s trealed as an investment company
Following the madernisation of the investment trust regime and
amendments to legislatian abohishing the restiction gn the ability
to distribute capital profits, this provision is no longer necessary.

strategic raport and supplementdry materiais

ihe Compantes Act 2006 and the Campanies (Recelpt of Accaunts
and Reporis) Regulations 2013 allow the Company to send a copy
of its strategic report with supplementary matenial instead of

its full accounts to a member who has elected oi lacitly agreed
1o receive these docurnents, provided that the Company 15 not
prohibited from doing so inits articies Article 129 1s intended to
make 1t clear there 1s no such prohibitian Shareholders should
note that they can always view the full annual report on the
Campany’'s websile of request a hard copy fram the Company’s
reqistrar

Gender Neutral Drafting
The New Articles amend the Current Articles so that gender
neutral language 15 used

Generai

Other changes which are of a minor, technical or clanfying nature
ar which have been made to remgve provisions in the Current
Articles which duplicate krglish company law are not noted
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The half year results are announced in 1ate November. The fult
year resulls are announced In early June
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GEMORAL MWIEiNG
Ihe AGM 15 held in London in July

SIS HATHIENT DATES

Drvidends are usually paid on the Crdinary shares as follows

Intenim January

Final: August
D IEND PATMENTS
Dividends can be paid to shareholders by means of BACS
(Bankers” Autamated Clearing Services), mandate forms for
this purpose are available from the Reqistrar Alternatively,
sharehalders can wiite 1o the Registrar (the address s given on
page 108 of this report) to qive their instructions; these must
include the bank account number, the bank account title and the
sort code of the bank 1o which payments are to be made.
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TR Property Investment Trust plc offers shareholders the
opportunity 1o purchase further shares in the Company thiaugh
the DRIP Please nate that [ollowing Brexit shareholders in Europe
are no longer able to paiticipate in the ORIP DRIP forms may

be abtained fram Computershare investor Services PLC through
their secure website www.investorcentre co uk, or by phoning
0370 707 1694 Charges do apply, dealing commissian of 0 75%
{subject to a minimum of £2 50) Government stamp duty of
0.5% also applies

PRI

The market prices of the Company’s shares are published daily

in The hiranual Times Some of the infarmation 1s puilished n
other leading newspapers The Hinarual Times also shows figures
for the estimated Net Asset values and the discounts applicabie

ISIN GBOGOS06409/7
SEDOL 0906409
Bioomberg [RY (N
Reuters TRYL

Datastream TRY
Detalls of the beachmark are given in the Strategic Report

ar page 24 of this Repart and Accounts. The benchmark index 1s
pubhished daily and can be found or Bloomberg,

FTSE EPRA/NARE | Developed Europe Capped Net lota
Return Index in Sterling
3loomberg TRORAG Index

INFESCA RN
Details of the market price and Net Asset value of the

Ordinary shares can be found on the Company's website at
www trproperty com.

Shareholders who hold their shares in certificated farm can check
their holdings with the Registrar, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, via www Investarcentre.co.uk Please note that to gan
access to your detalls an the Computershare site you will need
the holder reference number stated on the top feft hand corner of
yous share certificate

DiSAQIITY ALY
Coples of this Report and Accounts and other docurnents 1ssued
by the Company are available from the Company Secretary If

needed, copies can be made available 10 a variety of formats,
including Brarle, audio tape ar larger type as appropriate

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare Investar Services
PLC, which has installed textphones to allow speech and hearing
impaired people who have then own lextphone (o contact

themn dwectly, without the need for an mtermediate operator, by
dialling 0870 702 0005. Spectally trained operators are avallable
during normal business haurs to answer queries via this service.

Alternativety, If you prefer to go thraugh a ‘typetalk’ operator
{provided by the Royal Nalional Insutute for Deaf Peaple) you
should dial 18001 fallowed by the number you wish to dial
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where notification has been provided 1n advance, the Company
will arrange for coples of shareholder communications to be
provided to the aperatars ¢f nominee accounts. Nominee
investors may attend general meetings and speak at meetings
when invited to do so by the Charrman

e e p. s
DTt (sl
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Upon a dispesal of all ar part of a shareholder’s holding of
Ordinary shares, the impact on the shareholder's capital gains
tax base cost of the canversion to Sigma shares in 2007 and the

redesignation ta Ordinary shares in 2012 shouid be considered.

in respect of the conversion ta Sigma in 2007, agreement
was reached with HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC") to base
the apportionment of the capital gains tax base cost on

the proportion of Ordinary shares that were converled by a
shareholder into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007,

Therefore, if an Ordinary shareholder converted 20% of then
existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007, the
capital gains tax base cost of the new Sigma shares acquired
would be equal to 20% of the anginal capital gains tax base cost
af the Grdinary shares that they held pre-conversion The base
cost of their remaining hotding of Ordinary shares would then be
80% of the oniginal capital gains tax base cost of their Ordinary
shaies held pre conversion

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares into Ordinary
shares In December 2012, a further shareholder’s agreement
was reached wilh HMRC that a shareholders capntal gains tax
base cosl in thet new Ordinary shares should be equivalent to
their capital gains base cost in the pre-existing Sigma shares
(1e. their captal gains base cost under the existing agreement if
applicable).

It in doubt as to the consequences of this agreemnent with HMRC,
shareholders should consult with their own professional advisors
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The shares of IR Property investment Trust ple are listed and
traded on the Londan Stock kxchange. Investois may purchase
shares through their stackbroker, bank or other tinancial
mtermediary.
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Investors may hold their investment in certificated form Qur
registrars, Computershare operate a dealing service which enables
nvestors to buy and sell shares quickly and easily online without
a broker or the need to open a trading account Alternatively the
investor Centre allows investors ta manage portfolios quickly and

securely, update details and view balances without annual charges.

Further details are available by contacting Computershare on 0370
707 1355 or visit www computershare com

TR Property Investrment Tiust plc now offers shareholders the
opportunity ta purchase further shares in the company thiough
the Dividend Re-investment Plan {"DRIP"} through the reqistrar,
Computershare Shareholders can obtain further infarmation on
the DRIP through their secure website www investaicenire.co.uk,
or by phoning 0370 707 1694. Charges do apply. Please note

that 10 gain access 1o your details or register for the DRIP on the
Computershare site you will need the halder reference number
stated on the tap left hand corner of your share certificate

T E T W I : Vo
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A number of banks and wealth management arganisatians
provide Savings Schemes and 1SAs through whrch UK clients can
invest In TR Property Investment Trust ple

1SA and savings scheme providers da charge dealing and other
fees for operating the accounts, and wnvestors should read the
Terms and Canditions pravided by these companies ang ensure
that the charges best suit their planned mnvestment profile. Most
schemes carry annual charges but these vary between provider
and product Where dealing charges apply, in some cases these
are appiied as a percentage of funds :nvested and others as a
flat charge The optimum way to hold the shares will be different
for each investor depending upan the frequency and size of
Investments ta be made

Details are given below of two prawiders offening shares in
TR Property Investment Trust, bul there are many other options

Irteractive investar provide and administer a range of self-select
nvestment plans, Includirg lax-advantaged [SAs and SiPPs
(Self-Invested Personat Pension), and Trading Accounts

For mare information, interactive investor can be cortactec or
0345 607 6607, ar by visiing https //www i.co.uk/

‘nteractive investor offer imvestors in TR Property ard other
rvestment tusts a free opt in or.ne shareho der voting and
.nformation service that enabies :nvestaors to recewve sharebalder
communicaticns and, if they wish, ta vote or the sharebaldirgs
held in the:r account

IR Praperty 15 2'sG or the interact ve super 60 rated ist

BMO offer a number af Private Irvestor Plans, nvestment Trust
ard Jumor ISAs and Children’s Investment Plans Investments
can be made as lump sums or through reguiar sawings For mote

nformation see inside the back cover 8MO can be contacted on
0800 136 420, a1 visIL www.bmaogam com

Please remember that the vatue of your investments and any
income from them may go down as well as up Past performance
is not a guide 1o future performance You may not get back

the amaunt that you invest. if you are in any doubt as to the
sutability of a plan or any investment available within a plan,
please take prafessional advice

T O LI MR ML A T LA
Fallowing the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
investor, A1S self-directed accounts were transferred 1o the

interactive investor platfoim on 14th October 2019

In 2012 BNP farnibas closed down the part of their business that
operated Savings Schemes and ISAs. Investars were given the
choice of transfernng their schemes to Alliance Trust Savings
{"AI5") or 10 & provider of their own chosce, of to close thei
accounts and sell the holdings,

If investors did not respond to the letters fram 8NP Panbas, therr
accounts were transferred to ATS.

Fallowing the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
investor, ATS self-directed accounts were transferred to the
interactive investor platform on 14 October 2019,

P L U P S T U U B DU
Shareholders in a number of Investment Irusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are informed
ol an apportunity to sell therr shares as the company s
subject to a takeover bid. This is nat true and ts an attempt to
defraud sharehalders The share fraud also seeks payment of a
“commission” by shareholders to the parties carrying out the fraud.

shareholders should remain alert 1o this type of scam and lieal
with suspicion ary contact Dy telephone offering an attractive
investment oppartunity, such as a premium price for your shares,
or an attempt to convince you that payment 15 required in order
to release a settlernent for your shares These frauds may also
offer to sell your shares in companies which have littie or no
value or may offer you bonus shares. These sa called “boiler
room” scams can alsa involve an attempt to ebtan your personal
and/or banking infermation with which to commit igentity fraud

The caller may be friendly and reassunng of they may taxe a
more urgent tone, encouraging you te act quickly atherwise you
could lose money or miss aut on a deal.

it you have been contacted by an unauthansed frm regarding
your shares the FCA wovid like to hear from you You can report
an unauthonsed firm using the FCA belpline on 0800 11" 6768 or
by visiting their website, which alse has other usefui .-rformation,
at www fra org Lk

If you rece-ve any unsalic ted investment advice make sLre you
get the correct name of the person and organisation If the calls
persist, hang up 1 you deal with an unautheniseg firm, you wrl
nat be eligible to receive payment under the Firanc al Services
Compersation Schemne

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager would
never make unsolicited telephone calls of such 3 nature to
shareholders.
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BMO I5A

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the
current tax year with a lump sum from £100 or regular
savings from £25 a month. You can also transfer any
existing 1SAs to us whilst maintaining the tax benefits.

BMO JUNIOR iSA {JISA)~

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,600 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 lump sum or
£25 a month. JiSAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO.

BMO LIFETIME ISA {LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime 1SA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retisement in later life.
Invest up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive
a 25% Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest
with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from
£25 a month.

8MO CHILD TRUST FUND (CTF)

If your chitd already has a CTF you can invest up to
£9,000 per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a
month. (TFs with other providers can be transferred

te BMO.

BME GENERAL IMVESTMENT ACCOUNT {GI14)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range

of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and investments can be made from
£100 lump sum or £25 a month.

BMO JUNIGR INVESTMENT ACCOUNT {BA}
This is a flexible way to save for a chitd in our

range of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and the plan can easily be set up under
bare trust (where the child is noted as the beneficial
ownes} or kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investrment. Investments can be made
from a £100 lump sum or £25 a month per account.
You can also make additional lump sum top-ups at any
time from £100 per account.
“Ihe {1F 2nd JISA accounts are opered by parents i+ he childs nare

ane they Fave acress to the money al age '8 " ‘Calls may be recorded ol
monitered for ttainirg and quality purposes

BMO e

R TR
HERS R

CHARGE S
Annual management charges and other charges apply according 1o
the type of plan.

AR R T

v b EQO+VAL
T FAD+VAT
coohy T E25+VAL
You can pay the arnual charge fram your account, or by direct debit
(in addition to any annual subscription Himits)

LEALING THAT LD
£12 per fund {reduced to £0 for deals placed through the online BMO
Investor Portal) tor ISA/GIA/LISA/)IA and JiISA. Ihere are no dealing

charges an a CTE

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sald but not on the
reinvestment of dividends or the investment of monthly direct debits

Government stamp duty of 0 5% alsa applies on the purchase of
shares (where apphcatle).

Ihe value of investments can go down as well as up and you may

nat get back your original investment. lax benefits depend on your
individual circumstances and lax allowances and rules may change
Please ensure yau have read the full Terms and Conditions, Privacy
Policy and relevant Key Features documents before investing For
regulatary purpeses, please ensure you have read the Pre sales Cost &
Charges disclosure related to the product you are applying for, and the
relevant Key Information Dacuments (KiDs) for the nvestment trusts
you want to invest inta.

b BN L
lo open a new BMO plan, apply online al bmogam.com/apply

Online applications are not available If you are transferning an existing
plan with apother provider to BMO, or 1f you are applying for a new
plan in mare than one name but paper applications are avallable al
bmoinvestments.co uk/documents of by contacting BMO

Plud (SR P
R Y P I TN .Q‘:_("ﬁ

Call:
Ema\l: R TV A

Call: Ty, il i
Emawl: L A . BN
By post:

You can also invest 1n the trust through online dealing platiorms for
private snvestors that offer share deaiing and I15As, Companies include:
Barclays Stockbrokers, £Qi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

bmeinvestments.co.uk
§ facebook com/bmonvestmentsuk

0345 600 3030, 900am - 5 00pm, weekdays, calls may be recorded
of monitored for traming and quality purposes

BMO Asset Managerrent Limited 15 authbrsed and regulated by the Financial Corduct Authorty and s 3 membet of BMO Giobal Asset Managernent EMEA af whith the

ultimate parent compdny s the Baitk of Montreal 747510 156 05/27 UK
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TR Property Investment
Trust plc is managed by

MO & I A part of BMO Finanial Group




